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DACRE, a pasish in Learit ward, county of Cuaie
BERLAND, 5 miles (8. W. by W.) from Penrith, compri-
sing the townships of Dacre, Great Blencow, Newbipgin,
Soulby, and Stainton, and containing 04 inhabitants,
The living is a discherged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the king's books at £8,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, £200 royal
bounty, and £1200 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown,  The church is dedicated to St.
Andrew. A school was built in 1746, by subscription,
.in which four {ree clildren are educated, and others at a
#mall charge. A monastery existed here in the time of
Bede; and at this place, Constantine, King of Scotland,
and Eugenius, King of Cumberland, placed themselves
and their kingdom under the authority of King Athel-
ﬁ‘u Ducre castle was long the residence of un ancient
‘sudnoble family of that name: the main body of it, con-
sisting principally of four towers of excellent workman-
ship, remains in a very perfect state. Lime-stone is ob-
tained bere; and at Southwaite, in this parish, i& a
mineral spring.

DACRE, a township in that part of the parish of
Riron which is in the lower division of the wapentake
of CLaro, West riding of the county of Yorx, 64 miles
(W.) from Ripley, containing.777 inhabitants. A school-
roogn was built in 1695, b}'JW jar~ Hardcastle, who
eudowed it with. £100 for the egucauion of children ;
and ip 1778 ‘William Mountain bequeathed £100 in
addition to the above, producing together £8. 8. per
pouum; but from lts being geperally conceived that the
Jenefit of the schoel 18, confined to the descendants of
@iml‘lwﬁchqﬁc,the number of free scholars has been
yery limited.  dn 1774, Bdward Yates bequeathed au
Mntate, mow yroducing £32 per.annum, for the endew-
& 0f @ mchgol 5 between thirty and forty schulars are

;. % gbapeley in the perish of Hinck-
BEZNGOR, county of LriczsTey,
o Hingldey, containing 179
e Ia Zouch capsl passes

4 the. bundred gf Broon-
i (5. vy ) P o
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ford, containing 1864 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese of
London, rated in the king's books at £19. 10.

Mrs, Bonyvinge was patroness in 1816. The church
is dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul.  The parish
is bounded on the south by the Thames, There is a

small endowment for the instruction of children. A
very destructive irruption of the Thames occurred here in
1707, the waters, rushing in by an opening made by
the blowing up of a small shuice for draining the
land, overflowed .one thoussnd acres of rich land,
and washed uearly one hundred and twenty acres
into the river, where a sand-bank was formed almost
half-way across its bed; in this state it remained
nearly fifteen years, when the breach was stopped,
and the land recovercd by Captain Perry, at an expense
of £40,000. _

DAGLINGWORTH, a parish in the hundred of
CrowrHonnE and Mingty, county of GLOUCESTER,
2% miles (N.W.) from Circucester, containing 253 inha-
bitants.  The living is a reetory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at
£8. 6. 3., and in the patronuge of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to the Holy Roed. The Roman road,
called Ermin-street, passes through the parish, and a
tesselated pavement hus been discovered.  There is
school for poor children, supported by an annuity of
£4. 10., arising from a bequest of £100 by Jeremiah
Hancock, in 1729,

DAGNELL, a chapelry in the parish of Eppres-
poroucs, hundred of CorresLok, county of Buck-
iNGEAM, 3% miles (£.) from Ivinghoe, containing 314
inhabitante. The chapel, dedicated to All Saints, has
long been in ruins. )

PAGWORTH, a hamlet in the parish of OLp Nzw-
toN, hundred of Stow, county. of SurroLk, 2% miles
(N.) from Stow-Market. The population is returned
with the parish. .

DALBURY, a parish in the hundred of Awuﬂf:j
county of DggBy, 6% miles (W. by 8.) from Derby, eon-
taining, with the. township of Lees, 241 inbabitants.

oThe living is_a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Derby,
and dioeese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's
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books at £4. 16. 3.,and in the pstron
The church is dedicated to All Sainégsed=™"" '

DALBY, a parish in the Wold division of the wapen-
‘take of CanpuLesHOE, parte of Linpsry, county gf
LincoLn, 22 miles (N.) from Spilshy, containing 99 in-
habitants. The living is a perpetusl curacy, in the
peculie jurisdiction of the Dean and Chapter of Lin-
coln, endowed with £200 royal bounty, and £200 par-
liamentary grant. Lord Monson was patron in 1808.

DALBY, a parish in the wapentake of Burwmer,
North riding of the county of Yorxk, 94 miles (W, by
%.) from New Malton, containing, with Skewsby, 169
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese of York, rated
in the king's books at £5. 1. 0.  Mrs. Leybourne was
patroness in 1806, The church is degicated to St.
Mary.

DALBY (MAGNA), a parish in the eastern division
of the hundred of Goscotg, county of LEicesTer, 33
miles (8. hy w,) from Melton-Mowbray, containing 402
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Leicester, and dovese of Lincoln, rated
in the king’s books at £8. 4. 7.. and endowed with £200
royal bounty, and in the patronage of Sir Francis
Burdett, Bart. The church is dedicated to St. Swithin.

DALBY (PARVA), a parish in the hundred of Fram-
1AND, county of LricesTer, 44 miles (8.8.E.) from
Melton-Mowbray, containing 185 inhabitants, The
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£9, and in the patronage of E. B. Hartop, Esq. The
vhurch is dedicated to St. James.

DALBY on the WOLDS, a parish in the eastern di-
vision of the hundred of GoscoTtr, county of Lmicks-
TER, 63 miles (N. W, by W.) from Melton-Mowbray, con-
taining 357 inhabitants, The living is a perpetunal curacy,
in the jurisdiction of the peculiar court of Old Dalby,
and in the patronage of Lord Feversham. The church is
dedicated to St. John the Baptist. A preceptory of
Kuights Hospitallers was founded, it is supposed, by
Robert Bossu, Earl of Leicester, in the reign of Henry
II.: at the diseolution its revenue was valued at
£91. 2. 8. per annum. Here is a chalybeate gpring.

DALDERBY, a parish in the gouthern division of
the wapentake of GARTREE, parts of Linnsey, county
of LincoLn, 3 miles (8. by W.) from Horncastle, con-
taining 40 inhabitants, The living is a discharged ree-
tory, united in 1731 to the rectory of Scrivelsby, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £4. 19. 44., and in the patronage of H. Dy-
moke, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Martin. The
river Bane and the Horncastle canal pass throngh
this parish,

DALE-ABBEY, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
bundred of MorLrsTON and LiTCHURCH, county of
Dersy, 7 miles. (E, by N.) from Derby, containing 418
mhabitants. Here is a chapel within the jurisdiction of
the manor and peculiar court of Dale-Abbey. The poor

f this liberty arc cntitled to the benefit of the school at

ceat Hallam, founded by the Rev. John Scargill; ‘and
4’ that at Risley, founded by Mrs. Elinabeth  Grey.
' are the remains of an abhey of Premonstintensian
canons, which was founded about the ygge 1904, by
‘William $itz-Remf, ‘seneschal of Noﬂgynﬂ - his
séh-in-lawidefirey de Salicosa Mara. iti ronsur of the.
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]  Vidgiv-Dleryy at the dissolution ite revenm
was estimated at €144, 12.

DALE-TOWN;®township in the parishof Hawnay
wapentake of BizprorT, North riding of the county
of Yorxk, 94 miles(N.E. by E.) from Thirsk, containing
68 inhabitanta,

DALHAM, a parish in the hundred of Rissringr
county of SurroLg, 5 miles (E. by 8.) froon Newmarket
containing 498 inhabitants.  The living is a rectory, In
the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich
rated in the king's hooks at £15. 10. 5.  Sir James
Affleck, Bart. was patron in 1823. The church is dedi
cated to St. Mary.

DALLINGHOQ, a parich partly in the hundred of
Logs, but chiefly in the hundred of Winrorp, county
of SurroLk, 2§ miles (W. by 8.) from Wickham-Market
containing 303 inhabitunts. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £13, 6. 8. Ed-
ward Moor, Esq. was patron in 1827.  The church i
dedicated to St. Mary.,

DALLINGTON, a parish in the hundred of NosoT-
TLE-GROVE, county of NorraamMeron, 14 mile (N.W.)
from Northampton, containing 369 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archideaconry of
Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the
king's books at £6. 15. 8. Miss Wrighte was patroness
in 1823. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, has por-
tions in the early style of English architecture,

DALLINGTON, a parish in the hundred of NEe-
THERFIELD, rape of Hastings, county of Sussex, 6
miles (W.N.W.) from Battle, containing 548 inhabit-
ants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king'e
books at £8. The Earl of Ashburnhain was patron
in 1810. The church, dedicated to St. Margarer, i
principally in the later style of English architecture.

DALPOOL, a hamlet in the parish of THURETANTON,
hundred of WirraLL, county palatine of CHESTER, 8§
miles (N.W. by N.) from Parkgate. The population i
returned with the parish. :

DALSCOTE, a hamlet in the parish of ParTisHaLL,
hundred of Towcesrer, county of NoRTHAMPTON, 4
miles (N. by E.) from Towcester. The population is re-
turned with the parish. ”

DALSTON, a parish in the ward and comnty ef
CuMBERLAND, comprising the chapelry of Ivegill, and
the townships of Buckhowbank, Cumdevock, Dalston,
Hawkesdale, aud Raughton with Gatesgill, and con:
taining 2617 inhabitants, of which number, - 855 -aw
in the township of Dalston, 44 miles (5.8.W.) from
Carlisle. 'The living is & vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the king's boeks al
£8, 18 1}., and in the patronage of the Bishop o
Carlisle. The church, dedicated to St. Micheel; we
rebuilt ahout eighty years ago. There are several cattm
and other mills ; also an iron sad Sorge, Where
spades snd other implements of b ‘Afe SN0
factured to a cunsidershle extent. A susall custowmery
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Strong bequeathed £100 for the ingtruction of girle.
From some extensive quarries of free-stone here it is sup-
posed a great part of the stoue used for building the
Rowan wall from Carlisle to Bowness was extracted,
wndd the discovery, about the middle of the last century, of
a Roman inscription on the face of a rock, serves to
féonfirm this supposition, .~ Vestiges of three Roman
encampments likewise exist in the neighbourhood ; and
= circle of stones, ebout thirty yards in circumference,
is thought to mark the site of a Druidical place of
warship. The old castellated mausion of Dalston has
heen converted into a farm-house. Rose castle, in this
parish, is situated in a beautiful valley, throngh which
winds the river Caldew, and is supposed to have heen
the principal residence of the bishaps of Carlisle from
the year 1228, In 1322, it was burned by Robhert
Bruce, and, ubout 1366, it was twice attacked and ra-
vaged by the Scots. Before the civil war in the seven-
teenth century, the building formed a complete qua-
drangle, had five towers, and was surrounded hy a
turreted wall ; in 1648, heing then héld for the king,
it was attacked hy General Lambert, and taken by
atorm ; shortly afterwards, the Duke of Hamilton's
army was here reinforced by that under Sir Marmaduke
Langdale, and the castle, after having been used as a
prison for the royalists, was burnt down by order of
Major Cholinley. Since the Restoration it has been
rebuilt and improved by successive prelates, The ce-
1ebrated Dr. Paley was vicar of Dulston from 1774 to
1793,

DALSTON, a hamlet in the parish of Hackwey,
Tower division of the hundred of UssvLsTong, county
of Mippureex, 24 miles (N. N. £.) from London. The
population is returned with the parish.

DALTON, a township in that part of the parish of
Burron in KenpaL which is in the hundred of Lons-
DALE, south of the sands, county palatine of Lancas-
1ER, 14 mile (8. E. by E.) from Burton in Kendal, con-
taining 151 inhabitants. Fairs arc held, June 6th for
eattle, and October 23rd for cattle, horses, and pedlary.

DALTON, a township in that part of the parish of
Wiean which i8 in the hundred of WesT DEnny, connty
palatine of LANCASTER, containing 486 inhabitunts.

DALTON, a hamlet in the parish of Hexnawm,
southern division of TinpaLe ward, county of Nor-
THUMBERLAND, ¢ miles (S, by W.) from Hexham, with
whicly the population is returned.

-+ PALTON, 8 township in that part of the parish of
MNegwaUvax which is in the eastern division of TinpaLe
ward, county of NoRTHUMBERLAND, 104 miles (N. W.
Yy W.) from Newcastle upon Tyne, containing 122 in-
" DALTON, a township in that phrt of the parish of
Torourrsz which is in the wapentake of Birpreary,
Northoviding of the county of Yor, 4} miles (8.) from
Thivek, containing 235 inhabitants, -
< {ALYTON, a township partly in the parish of Crorr,
calMarn ‘diviston, but chiefly in the parish of Kinnay-
Riws #vm, - western - division, of the wapentake of
@y nd; North riding of the county of York, 34 miles
0.2} from Greta-Bridge, and containing 265 inhabi-,
ko ‘anomity of £40 i paid by the Master and
TWaiaks of Kirkby-Bavensworth hospital to & school-
: thiy- townalip, for the education of the poor
ol those from: Newsbam ; and there is s
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small sndowment of £3 a year, bequeathed by Thomas
Bult-.kFon, for which three pogr children are instructed,
Within the towuship is a place called Castle-Steeds,
w;here are the remains of e casira @stiva, on a dlip of
land above the conflux of two rivalets, near which
passes the Ronan Watling-strect. y

DALTON, & township in the parlsh of Kimx-
errrm:l, upper division of the wapentake of AGBRIGG,
West riding of the county of Yonk, 2 miles (N.E.)
from Huddersficld, containing 2289 inhabitants,

DALTON, a township in that part of the parish of
Roraxusam which is in the southern division of the
wapentake of STrarrorTn and TickniLn, West riding
of the county of York, 3 wiles (E.) from Rotherham,
containing 225 inhabitants, -

~ DALTON Je DALE, & parish in the northern divi-
sion of Easinaron ward, county palatine of Durnam,
comprising’ the townships of Dalton le Dale, Dawdon,
Cold Hesleton, and East Morton, and containing 211 in-
habitants, of which number, 49 are in the township of
Dalton le Dale, 6 miles (S.) from Sunderland. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry snd
diocese of Durham, rated in the king's books at £6.0.7.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal .
bounty, and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter
of Durham. The church, dedicated to St. Andrew, is
principally in the early style of English architecture :
there is 8 Norman door-way, now closed.

DALTON in FURNESS, a parish in the hundred
of LonspaLE, north of the sands, county palatine of
LANCASTER, comprising the market town of Dalton, the
chapelry of Ireleth, and the townships of Hawcoat-above-
town and Yarleside, and containing 2445 inhabitants, of
which number, 714 ure in the town of Dalton, 25 miles
(N.W. by W.) from Lancaster, and 265 (N7 hy N.) from
London. This place derives its nawne from heing situated
in a dale in the lower part of the district of Furness, of
which it was formerly the chief town. According te
Tacitus, Agricoln, when he had conquered that district,
erected a fort here for its protection, and the remains of
a Roman road, discovered in 1503 by some workmen, at
a considerahle depth from the surface, confinm the pro-
bability of its having been a Roman station, though
there are no other vestiges except some slight traces of
the fosse by which it was surrounded, The mount on
which the fort was built, upon due exumination, was
found to be of artificial construction; it was defended
on the south and west sides by steep precipices, and on
the east by a rampart and ditch; and a brook which
flowed at the base supplied the garrison with water,
The town derived its principal importance from the
erection of the magnificent abbey of Furness, founded '
in 1127, by Stephen, afterwards king of England, for
monks of the Uistercian order, whom he removed from
Tulket, in Amounderness, to this valley, where, obtaining
valuable grants, they coutinued to flourish for mere than
four ceuturies. The abbots were invested with extensive
privileges, and enjoyed large possessions; they held in
their own right the woods, pastures, fisheries, and mills
of the district, and had considerable shares in the salt-
works and mines: the abbey snd monastic edifices
formed a vast pile of buildings, the character of which
was more Wpat of simple roagnificence arising from
their extent, than of richness and beauty resulting from
their style. The chapter-house, which waqZhy far tha

B2
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most elegant of the conventual buildings, was of the
early style of English architecturc; ‘the church, and
most of the other parts, were in the Norman style, partly
intermixed with the early English: the revenue of this
eatablishment, at the dissolution, was £966. 7. 10, The
remains, un extended mass of ponderous ruins, occupy a
considerable part of an area of sixty-five acres, called
the Deer park, encloged with a stone wall, in the se-
questered vale of Bekang's Gill, about half a mile west
of the town; the approaches arc strewed with memo-
rials of its abbots, and mutilated tombs. In the reign
of BEdward I11., a cgstle, in which during peaceable times
the abbots of Furness held their secular courts, was
erected here, probably as a pluce of retreat for the inha-
bitants, and for the protection of their property from
the frequent predatory incursions of the Scots, of whose
'l.p'pr:;;gh numerous beacons in this part of the country
were kept in constant readiness to give notice. In the
reign of Henry VIIL, Lambert Simnel, the pretended
earl of Warwick, landed here, whence he proceeded to
‘assert his claims to the throne; and during the parlia-
mentary war in the reign of Charles 1., the towu aund
neighbourhood were the scene of frequent engagements
between the hostile parties,
" The town is situated on the acclivity of a gradual
- eminence, and consists principally of one street, at the
‘western extremity of which.is the market-place: the
houses, in gencral old, have in some instances given place
to others of modern erection : some improvement has been
mnade, but the inhabitants are indifferently supplied with
water. The environs are pleasant, and favourable for the
sports of the chase ; the Dalton Hunt, established in 1703,
and noticed in the London Gazette, under the title of the
Dalton Rout, and in a contribution to the Tatler, in
which the balls and amusements attending its celebra-
tion are described, has been discontinved since 1789 :
a hook society, anciently established here, is still conti-
nued under judicious regulations. The trade is principal -
Iy in malt, which is carried on to a great extent; and the
iron mines in the vicinity, which have been worked for
more than four centuries, produce many thousand tons
of excellent ore. A canal, one mile and a hdlf in length,
has bheen constructed, by which vessels may sail up to
the town from the sea; and at South Lnd Haws, at the
extremity of the Isle of Walney, a light-house, sixty-
‘eight feet in height, was erected in the year 1790. The
market 'is on Saturday: the fairs are, April 28th,
June 6th, and October 23d ; the first is a statute fair,
The parochial afairs are under the direction of twenty-
four sidesmen appointed by the parishioners. A court
for the recovery of debts under 40s. is held every third
week for the barony of Farness; and the Jord of the
“manor holds a court leet twice in the year: the land-
‘holders in the parish are customary tesants of the
‘manor ; the estates are of the same extent, and pay the
e mnt and can neither bo partitioned by the tengnt,
ﬁrd&ﬁﬁhy:{m The castle, erected in the: of
ward and supposed’.to occupy a portion of the
‘#ite’ of the fort built by Agncd!awis it present gp-
" ﬂlﬁnﬂ to - the imldm of the courtsfor the kberty, -
‘gnd dor the recovery ofdgbu

Uberal “bilding of three stages, having ho.

‘mp 3 ‘the south side, ovar which ilp«ﬂm

: 2 ts eumnwd’by“ il
oy Worests

e Ceda

it is 8 massive quadei-< (&J}

m&t&h#ﬂm M
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The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdea
conry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester, rated ir
the king's books at £17. 8. 6., endowed with £600 pri
vate henefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £1500 par
linmentary grant, and in the patronasge of the King, a
Duke of Lancaster. The church, dedicated to St. Mar
is & neat plain structure of considerable antiquity,
on the declivity of a hill within the precincts of the an-
cient castellum. There is a place of worship for Wes-
leyan Methodists. The free grammar school was foundec
in 1622, by Thomas Boulton, Esq., who bequeathed. ir
trust to the twenty-four sidesmen £220, of which sum
£20 was to be laid out in the erection of the school
room, and the remainder to be invested in the purchase
of land for its endowment ; with this sum, a farm a
Beggar, in the Isle of Walney, has been purchased, pro.
ducing at present £ 137 per annum, of which, £100 i
paid to the master, who instructs so many of the scho-
lars as require it, in Latin, arithmetic, and the mathema.
tics, and £35 per annum to the assistant, who teaches
the rest on Dr. Bell's system. the school is free to al
the boys and girls of the parish, and there are, upor
the average, eighty scholurs attending it. At Ireleth, ¢
chapelry in this parish, there is a similar school. Ther
are various charitable bequests for distribution among the
poor. Omn High Haume, an eminence near the town, it
a circular intrenchment which appears to have been &
fortified beacon ; and on the Pile of Fouldrey, a mckj
island separated from the Isle of Walney, are the ruins
of a castle, thought by Camden to have heen erected in
the reign of Kdward 1IL., by the abbots of Furness, tu
defend the approach to the harbour. George Romney,
an historical and portrait painter of considerable emi-
nence, was horn in this parish, in 1734.

DALTON (NORTH), a parish in the Bainton-Beacon
divisiou of the wapentake of HarTuivLL, East riding of
the county of York, comprising the townships of North
Dalton and Neswick, and coutaining 453 inhabitants,
‘of which number, 398 are in the township of North
Dalton, 74 miles ($.W.by W.) from Great Driffield. The
living i# a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of the
East riding, and diocese of York, endowed with £400
private benefaction, £600 ‘bounty, and £ 800 . par-
liamentary grant. James Walker, Esq. was patron in
1827. The church is dedicated to All Saimts.

DALTON-PIERCY, & township in:the parish of
HarT, north-eastern division of § ward, county
palatine of DurraM, 84 miles (N. by,’&’) from Stockton
upon Tees, contdining 756 inhabitants.

DALTON (SOUTH), aparmhmtheﬂumley Bescon
division of the wapentake of HanTmiLL, East riding of
the cougty of York, 6 miles (N.W.) from Beverley, een-
tainipg 277 inhabitants. The living is a rectovy,in the
archeaconry of the - riding and ‘disosse f York,
rateq in the kmg‘lm at £12. Lond Hothue was
patron is 1802, Jhe church is dedicated te St. Mary.

DALTON upoh TEES, @ townelip in the ] of
Crovwr, partly within the liberty of S, Pnﬁﬁbﬁvm

wapentiis of

-nndwﬂymthemrdivimdth

North riding of the. Wd«Ymm
ammmm emtaining 167

"DALWOOD,; 4 Mum parish;

Lanp; within the Mmt mewm_

of Awmiatar; wouity.
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{W.N.w.) from Axminster, containing 522 inhabitants.
The chapel is dedicated to St. Peter. A fair is held on
the Wednesday after August 24th, |

DAMERHAM (SOUTH), a parish in the southern
division of the hundred of DAMmERHAM, county of WiLTs,
4 miles (N.E. by E.) from Cranbourn, containing 605
inbabitants. The living ie a vicarage with the curacy
of Martin, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salisbury,
rated in the king's books at £25. 10. 2%, and in the
‘patronage of the Duke of Newcastle. The church is
dedicated to St. George.

DANBURY, a parish in the hundred of Curims-
vorD, county of Essex, 54 miles (E. by 8.) from
Chelmeford, containing, with the hamlet of Russels,
which is in the hundred of Dengie, 1005 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Essex,
and diocese of London, rated in the king's books at
£20. Sir B. W. Bridges, Bart. was patron in 1793.
The church ig dedicated to Si. John the Baptist, The
name is coutracted from Danesbury, signifying the
town or castle of the Danvs. On the summit of Dan-
bury hill is an ancient encampment, about six hun-
dred and eighty yards in circumference ; the glacis on
the south side is still nearly thirty feet deep, and the
lines may be distinetly truced on the other sides,  In
1402, the body of the church, and part of the chancel,
were destroyed by lightning ; and in February, 1750,
the upper part of the epire was struck down by a like
cause, There is a fair for toys on the 29th of May.

DANBY, a pearish iu the eastern division of the
liberty of LanapavraH, North ridiug of the county of
Yorg, 93 miles (8 E) from Guilsbrough, containing
1378 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diccese of York,
endowed with £400 royal bounty, and £1400 parlia-
apentary grant. Lord Viscount Downe was patron in
1781. On a neighbouring hill are the ruins of Danby
castle, an edifice of uncertain antiquity.

DANBY-WISK, a parish in the eastern division of
the wapentake of GrLrLing, North riding of the county
of Yorxk, comprising the chapelry of Yallorth, and the
townehip of Danby-Wikk, and containing 477 inhabi-
tants, of which nw , 328 arc in the township of
'Danby-Wisk, 3% miles (N.W.) from North Allerton.
The living ‘is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Rich-
‘mond, and ese of Chester, rated in the king's books
‘at £9. 3. 41§+5The Rev. Willitm Cust was patron in
A81L. o :

DANTHORPE, s township in the parish of um-
:prLETON; middle division of the wapentake of HoLpek-
-wees, East riding of the county of York, 104 wmiles

{B.N.E.) fiom Kingston upon Hull, containkng 52 in-
S | X ['H, a purish in- hundred c&'ixmn,

Dawerons, and WILMINGTON, me of Sureen as Hong,
' ot i Kewr, 94 miles (5.E. Wy 5.) frofv Dartford,
'sontaiting 674 inhabitents. The living is a discharged
wiokraige, ‘in the peculiar . jurisdiction of the Archbishop
i Csiterbupy, rated-in-the king'é books at £9.-18. 114.,
st in 2he D »f. the'Dean. and "Chy of Ro-
dhiosder | he . church, -dedicated to St. Margeret, ¥
inthe early style - of English architecture,
g weverabintaresting specimeus of the period
which has.attracted
‘passes through the

diptlly’
wy, particabarly the font,

¥
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parish, and gives name to it. In 1195, Archhishop
Hubert gave this manor to the prior and convent of
Rochester, by whom a monastery, dedicated to St. Mar-
garet, was formded here, of which there are still some

mains.  There are also vestiges of various tumuli, or
barrows,

DARESBURY, a chapelry in the parish of Runconn,
hundred of Buckrow, comaty palatine of Cresrer,
5% miles (N.E.) from Frodsham, cootaining 146 inhabi-
tants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with £1000
private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £900 par-
limmentary grant, and in the patronage of the Dean and
Canous of Christ Church, Oxford. The chapel is dedi-
cated to All Saints, A school, founded by subserip-
tion in the reign of Elizabeth, is endowed with the
interest of £185, the amount of various benefuctions.

DARTFIELD, a parish comprisink the chapelry of
Worsbrough, and the towuship of Ardsley, in the wapen-
take of Sraincross, and the townships of Billingley,
Darfield, Great Houghton, Little Houghton, and Wonb-
well, in the uorthern division of the wapentake of STray-
rowry and Tickuiny, West riding of the county of Yorxk,
and containing 4340 inhabitants, of which number, 512
are in the township of Darfield, 53 miles (E. by 8.)
from Baruesley. The living is a discharged vicaruge
in the archdeaconry and diocese of York,-ruted in the,
king's books at £14, 11. 7., endowed with £600 private
benefaction, and £600 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the Master and Fellows of Trinity College, Cam-
bridge : there is also a rectory, one moiety of which is
rated at £53. 1. 8., and in the patronage of the Rev.
Henry Cooke, The church is dedicated to All Saints.
The rivers Drame and Dove run through this parish,
and on their bunk¢ are some large aulls. There are
grounds for bleaching linen and yurn, aud establishments
tor weaving cloth, smelting and casting iron, &c. Several
trifling endowments have heen given for the instruction
of children ; and an hospital for four widows has been
endowed by the Saville family.

DARLASTON, u parish in the southern division of
the hundred of Oryrow, county of Starromrp, 14 mile
(N.W. by N.) from Wednesbhury, containing 5585 inha-
bitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the kiug's hooks at £3. 11. 54, and in the patronage
of the Society for purchasing advowsons. The church
is dedicated to St, Lawrence. There are places of wor-
ship for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists, A
National school is supported by subscription, in which:
about one hundred and seventy boys and eighty girls
are educated. The manufacture of gun-locks is carried
on to a considerable extent, and there are some iron-
foundries : naily, screws, und hinges are also manufac-
tured. Coal and ironsstone abound, and, what is nausual
.in this mining neighbourhoad, there is & good supply of
water. The Birmingham canal passes through the parish.
‘On the top of a hill at Berry Bauk are ruins of a large

gastle, fortificd with a double vallnm and intrenchments,
ahout two hundred and fifty yards in dinmeter: this,
pccording to tradition, was the seat of Wulpher, King
of Mercia, who murdered his two song for embracing
‘CMistianity, aod the barrow, near ft his tob. '
" "DARLASTON, a liberty in the parish of Svone,
.southera division of the . hundred .of. PinzitiLL, . county
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of STA¥rorp, 2 miles (N.W.) from Stone, with which
the population is returned.

DARLESTON, a hamlet in the parish of PreEs,
Whitchurch division of the hundred of Braprorp
(North), county of SaLop, 6 miles (S.8.E.) from Whit-
church. ‘The population is returned with the township
of Sandford.

DARLEY, a parish partly in the hundred of
WirkswoRTH, but chiefly in the hundred of Hicn Peax,
county of DERBY, 8 miles (N.W.) from Matlock, con-
taining, with the hamlet of Winsley with Snitterton, which
is in Wirksworth hundred,1830 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, comprising the medicty of North Darley, rated
in the king's books at £9. 13. 14., and the discharged
mediety of South Darley, rated at £9. 13. 04, which
were united in 1774 ; it is in the archdeaconry of Derby,
and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, endowed with
£2000 parliamefitary grant, and in the patrovage of
the Dean of Lincoln. The church, dedicated to St.
Helen, is partly of Norman architecture. There is a
school with a small endowment for the education of poor
children.’ Fairs for cattle and sheep are held on the
moeors in this parish, May 13th and October 27th. Dar-
ley is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of Launcaster,
and within the jurisdiction of a court of pleas held at
Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts
under 40s. *A Benedictine abbey was founded here in
the reign of Henry L., or in that of Stephen, to the
honour of the Blessed Virgin Mary, the annual revenue
of which, at the suppression, was valued at £258. 13. 5.

DARLEY, a joint township with Menwith, in the
parish of IlampsTawarTe, lower division of the wapen-
take of Craro, West riding of the county of York,
5% miles (W. by S.) from Ripley, containing 648 inha-
bitants.

DARLEY-ABBEY, a chapelry in that part of the
pearish of St. ALkmunp, Derny, which is in the hun-
dred of MorLEsTON and Litcrurch, county of Dersy,
1} mile (x.) from Derby, containing 841 inhalitauts,
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, and
in the patronage of Walter Evans, Esq., who, in 1819,
built and endowed the church at his sole expense, for
the accommadation of his work-people. It is pleasantly
situated on the banks of the Derwent, on which are
extensive cotton and paper-mills, the proprietors of
which have established schools on an extensive scale,
for the children of the people in their employment.
The abbey was founded in the reign of Henry L, for
friars of the order of St. Augustine, and endowed and
it privileges confirmed by Henry II. ; at the dissolution
its annual revenue was £285, 9. 64.

DARLINGSCOTT, a hamlet in the parish of TrED-
INGTON, upper division of the hundred of OswaLpsLowW,
eomnty of Worcesren, though locally in the Kington
division of the hundred of Kington, county of Warwick,
3¢ miles (N.w.by W.) from Shipston upon Stour,
containing 189 inhabitants,

DARLINGTON, a parochial chapelry in the south-
eastern division of DartingTon ward, county palatine
of Duguan, comprising the market,town of Darlington,
the townships of Archdeacon-Newton, Bl:c}&'eﬂ; and
Cockerton, and containing 6551 inhabitants, -of which
number, 5750 sre in the town of Darlmgtes, 18§
milgs (8.) frop Durhem, and 236} (N. N, W.) from
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London, on the great north road. The name, which #
of Saxon etymology, is conjectural only; by some it is
considered to denote the darling, or favourite town ; ae
cording to others, who assume Dure as the ancient
name of the river Skerne, and ing to signify a meadow,
Dare-ing-tun was its appellation, to signify the town in
the meadows of the Dare. About the end of the ninth
century, Darlington, with its dependencies, wae given to
St. Cuthbert, under license from Ethelred, by Seir, son of
Ulphus ; and in 108¢ it became the asylum of the seculay
clergy, who had bLeen driven from Durham abbey by
Bishop Carilepho. About 1164, a mansion-house was
erected here by Bishop Pudsey, in which several of his
successors resided : the manor-house was subsequently
purchased of one of the bishops of Durham, under an
act for the redemption of the land tax, and has heen
converted into a workhouse.  From this place, in 1291,
Edward I. issued an order to his chief military
tenants in the northern counties, to proceed to the wa
in Scotland. In the reign of Edward IIL a skirmisk
hetween Archibald, Earl Douglas, and & band of English-
men, took place here, and proved fatal to many of the lat-
ter. In 1504, the Princess Marguret, then Dbetrothed tc
James of Scotland, slept at the manor-honse on her
journey northward; and in 1640 the king's troope
rested here, when retreating hefore the Covenanters
after the battle of Stellahaugh, and were well suppliec
with provisions under the direction of the Earl of
Stafford.

The town is situated in a rich grazing district, op
the custern declivity of an eminence, at the base of
which flows the river Skerne, in its course to the Tees,
and is crossed hy a bridge of three arches; it is built
in the form of a square, with streets leading therefrom
in different dircetions; the houses in general are me-
dern: several new streets have heen formed under ax
act of parliament obtained in 1823, pursuant to whick
the town was lighted with oil. From the favourable
nature of the surrounding country for the pasturage of
sheep, of which there was formerly a considerable awm.
ber, the Leicestershire breed having been recently ingro.
duced, Darlington was formerly noted for the manufag-
ture of tammies, camblets, moreens, harrateens, &gy
to this succeeded the manufacture of linen, which alsc
has much declined. There are mills for spinning wagl
and flax, and for grinding optical glasses, also an ex:
tensive worsted-mill, and two iron-foundries ; the primy
cipal employment.&f the labouring class consists.
combing wool, Bnd in. other busiuess connected wild
the mills. The worsted-yarn is used for Brussels apg
other carpets, which are manufactured here, as well gy
for the finest imitation Indian shawls, Within hadf,
mile of the town is the main line of a rail-road,
has been constructed from Wilton Park - coll
Stockton, pursuant to an act of parliament. ol
1821, and is about twenty-five miles in ler
lime, and other minerals, are Lonveyed om it &
of three halfpence per ton, and merchandise ot
peuce per ton, per:mile: the line is.worked :b
fixed locomotive engines, working four ipclined..
half a mile in length. . On this road sosdhes
and are charged at the rate of threepence:per.
Was €a in September, 1625, at the 1
("f ‘125:00& i u{

6

and i»’ the joint
holdars. A mmrket. for- oot



DAR

and one for cattle and sheep on every alternate Mon-
day : there are general and cattle fairs on the first Mon-
day in March, Easter-Monday, Whit-Monday, and a
fortnight after; om the 9th of November for horses, and
10th for horned cattle and sheep ; 18th for hogs, and
23d a hiring and general fair; also on the gecond Monday
after, a fair for cattle, horses, and gheep. The market-
house was erected at the expense of Lady Brown,
The government of the town is vested iu a bailiff ap-
pointed by the Bishop of Durham, but he possesses no
magisterial authority : the town is divided into four
constableries, called the Borough, Bondgate, Prebend-row,
Oxenhall, or Oxon le Field: constables for the borough
are chosen hy house row at the May-day court. The
tolls are held for three lives under the sec of Durham,
by a few respectable inhabitauts, who in 1808 rebuilt
the town-hall, within which are a house of currection,
dispensary, and public library, and uear it the shambles,
which were erected in 16815, Here the county magis-
trates hold a petty session every alternate Monday, The
old Tolbooth was teken down and rebuilt in 1807,

The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Durham, endowed with £1000 private
benefaction, £ 400 royal bounty, and £ 900 parlia-
mentary grant, and in the patronage of the Marquis of
Cleveland. The church was erected about 1160, by
Bishop Pudsey, and dedicated to St. Cuthbert; it was
formerly colleginte, and had four chantries, besides the
free chapel of Badelficlde, or Battlefield, the ecelesinstical
body then consisting of 2 dean, who held a prebend,
and four other prehendaries : this society was dissolved
in 1550, and the property hecame vested in the Crown,
but at present onc part is held by the Marquis of Cleve-
land, subject to a crown rental, and the remainder dis-
tributed amongst other individuals, The church, dedi-
cated to St. Cuthbert, is an elegant cruciform structure
in the early Euglish style, having a square embattled
tower which stands on four arches, ornamented with the
vail-head mouldings, and springing from light fluted
eolamms with richly adorned capitals ; it rises from the
intersection, and is surmounted by a light spire, the
upper part of which, having sustained some injury from
mg on the 17th of July, 1750, was taken down and

ebnilt : on each side of the nave is a range of dissimilar
solumns supporting pointed arches, which separate it
¥from the aisles; a lofty arch leads from the nave to the
dlearicel, and the southern portion of the transept is
ghly ornamented. There are places of worship for
cular Baptists, the Society of Friends, Independents,

§id Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists. A new Rowan-

Mtholic chepel, dedicated to St. Augustine, was opened
#1827, A free grammar school, endowed by charter of

Bath, dated June 15th, 1567, with lands formerly be-
o the ‘chantry established by Robert Marshall,
tor and en usher, is under the superintendence
i thurchwardens of the town, and its unnual
¢ lo upwards of £240. The Blue-coat charity
!'o;ﬁed principally by means of a benefaction
e Mary Calverly, of Erybolme, amounting to
‘e By indeuture dated 19th of April, 1715,
weises funded property to the value of £1392. 9.
‘copaola., which yiclds an sunual income
A British school, for an unlimited number
¢ hnitired , I8 by the So-
indents, and Wesleyan Metho
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dists ; and a National school affords instruction to abeut
one hundred and fifty hoys and one huncred girls.
There is also an infant school, supported by Mr. James
Backhouse, a member of the Society of Friends, in
which the children puy the weekly sum of twopence. In
1631, Francis Fl!ﬁh‘l", of this town, gove, hy indeuture
dated 9th of Marel, (o trustees, two houses in Northgate,
as almshouses for six poor men, or women, natives of this
place; and in 1641 he gave a field, the rent of which was
to be distributed among the poorest persons who had
resided three years in the town. In 1636, a hequest in
land was made by James Bellasis, Esq., of Owton, for
the establishment of a linen and woollen manufuctory,
for the benefit of the poor of the town aud neighbour-
hood, which was placed under the superintendence of
the principal persons in the horough, but this benefaction
has been Jost, and the rent of the langd thus given with-
held from the poor ever since 1810, William Middleton,
of Blackwall, gave a ficld of six acres, now let for £ 15 per
annum, to the churchwardens and overseers in trust for
apprenticing poor boys.  An almshouse was founded by
Mrs. Mary Pease, a member of the Society of Friends,
in 1820, for four poor widows, each to be at least of
the age of fifty, and not belonging to that society;
and Richard Lindley, of Darlington, bequeathed £350,
to beinvested, and the proceeds thereof to be distributed
annually amongst the poor, with a similar restriction,
There are several minor charities, in small sums aud
dounations of bread, for the relief of the necessitous, A
dispensary was established in 1809, and is supported by
voluntary contributions; and a savings' bank in 1817, the
deposits in which, in 1827, amounted to £36,000. A
mechanics’ institute and library were commenced in 1825,
under the patronage of the Earl of Darlington, J. G,
Lambton, Esq., (now Lord Durham,) and the Hon, W.
J. F. V. Powlet: the collection of books consists of three
hundred volumes. A socicty for the relief of poor lying-
in women was established in 1822.

At Oxen-hall are four celebrated circalar pools, called
Hell-Kettles ; the diameter of the three larger ones is
ahout thirty-eight yords each, and their respective depths
nineteen feet and a half, seventeen, and fourteen : the
fourth is twenty-eight feet in diameter, and five feet and
a half deep; they are always brim full, and although
nearly on a level with the Tees, are unaffected by its flood
or fall, excepting the smallest, which is now nearly dry:
the water is quite cold; it is said to be impregnated with
sulphur, and not to mix with milk or sosp. Amidst
various conjectures as fo their formation, the generally
received opinion is that they were originally marl pits.
A sulphureous spring, discovered in 1805, in the vicinity
of the town, is of reputed efficacy in scorbutic disorders,
and much resorted to. Mr. John Kendrew, the inventur
and patentee of machinery for spinning flax, hemp, &c.,
also of a machine for grinding and polishing optical
glasses, formerly resided here ; and the Grange, a neat
brick mansion about a mile southward, was the residence
of Mr. George Allan, a barrister, who collected very ex-
tensive historical and topographical notes, designed to
furnish a history of this county, which are now in the
possession of JohneAllan, Exq,, of Blackwell: he had
also & valuable museum of coins, medals, and paiptings,
with various other natural curiosities, and a printing-
press, whence iesued some of Pennant’s publicatiuns,
which are now extremely rare, and various other warks,
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Darlington confers the title of earl on the Marquis of
Clevelund.

DARLTON, a chapelry in the parish of Dunuawm,
South-clay division of the wapentake of BassuTLAW,
county of NorrincuaM, 34 miles (N.E. by E.) from
Tuxford, containing 158 inhabitants, The chapel is
dedicated to St. Giles,

DARNALL, a bamlet in that part of the parish of
Seerr(ELD which is in the southern division of the wa-
pentake of STrarrorTh and Ticknn, West riding of
the county of Yorxk, ¢} miles (E.) from Sheflield.  The
popalation is returned with the chapelry of Attercliffe.

DARNHALL, a township in the parish of Wiirk-
¢arg, or Ngw Cuurcen, first division of the hundred
Enpispury, county palatine of Cursrer, 6 miles
(wig. w.) from Middlewich, containing 207 inhabitants.

ARRAS-HALL, a township in the parish of Pox-
TRELAND, western division of Casrne ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 7 miles (N.W.) from Newcastle,
conteining 1< inhabitauts.

DARRINGTON, a parish in the npper division of
the wapentake of Osconpeross, West riding of the
county of Yornk, comprising the townships of Darring-
ton and Stapleton, and containing 619 inhabitants, of
which number, 510 are in the towunship of Darrington,
2% miles (S.E. by E£.) from Pontefract. The living is a
discharged viearage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
York, rated in the king's books at £16. 11. 3., and in
the patronage of the Archbishop of York. The church
is dedicated to St. Luke and All Saints,

DARSHABM., a parish in the hundred of Bryrning,
county of StrroLk, 53 miles (N.E, by N.) from Sax-
mundlam, containing 487 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Sutlulk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's hooks at
£4. 10, 10, endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
the patronage of the Earl of Stradbroke. The church
is dedicated to Al Saints. There is a Sunday school,
supportedd by £4 per anvum, arising from cotteges
and land called the Town Istate.

DARTFORD, a market town and parish, in the hun-
dred of Axton, Darrrogp, and WiLminaTon, lathe of
Surron at Hoxg, county of Kewnt, 15 miles (8, E.)
from London, and 22 (N.W.) from Maidstone, ou the
great road from London to Canterbury and Dover, con-
taining 3593 inhabitants, The name is a contraction of
Derent-ford, or the ford on the Darent, on the banks of
which river the town is situated. Dartford is men-
tioned in history as the place where Isabella, sister of
Henry III., was married by proxy in 1235, to the Ger-
man Ewmperor, Frederick 1I. Edward I1I. held a tour-
nament here, on his return from Francein 1331; and in
1355 he founded, and afterwards richly endowed, a
monastery at Dartford, for nuns of the order of St, Au-
tine, the revenue of which, at the dissolution, was
£408. At this town comnenced the insurrection under
Wat Tyler, in the 5th of Richard II.; and on the
neighbouriog heath, called Dartford-Brent, the army of
Richard, Duke of York, encamped in 1451, while hé
waited to-obtain & conference with King Henry V1., who
then lay with his army at Blackheath. Dartford-Bront
also- was. the rendezvous of the parliamentary. forees
tndér General Fairfax, in 1648, The town is plensaatly
situated in & narrow valley, hetween two hills,dn one of
which, towards Crayford, is a number of pite, gunk in
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the chalky strata of which the hill is compeged, from
ten to twenty fathoms in depth, and of considerable
extent, supposed to have been used by the Saxous as
granaries, or storc-rooms.  The principal street is in the
line of the London road, and two smaller streets brunch
off from it at right angles. There is a bridge over the
Darent, built since the commencemeut of the reign of
Edward II1., und repaired and improved at the expense
of the county about fifty ycars ago, at which time 2
new market-house wus erected, and the streets were
newly paved,  The river is navigable up to the town fo
hoats, which =ail regularly to London, The numerous
mills on the Darent contribute greatly to the trading
prosperity of Dartford. Here is an extensive gunpowdex
manufactory, which oceupies the site of the first paper-
mill erected in this country, by Sir John Spielman,
a German, who died in 1607 ; and at a short distance
is a paper-mill, where formerly stood a mill for
rolling and slitting jron, also the first of the kind in
Eugland, constructed hy Godfrey Box, of Liege, in
1500. Here are also mills for grinding corn, and for
extracting oil from seeds ; hesides a very extengive esta-
blishment for the construction of steam-engines, to which
iv attached a foundry, on a scale of considerable magni-
tude, where nearly two hundred workmen are constantly
employed.  The market is on Saturday, which is plenti-
fully snpplied with provisions ; and a fair is held on the
2nd of Augnst.  Here are leld the petty sessions for
the upper division of the lathe of Sutton at Hone ; and
a court of requests, for the recovery of debts not ex-
ceeding £5, is held, under an act of parlimment passed
in the 47th of George I1L, “for the town of Gravesend,
and the several hundreds of Toltingtrough, Dartford,
Wilmingtom, and Axtane, in the county of Kent.”

The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Rochester, rated in the king's books
at £18. 11. 3., endowed with £200 private hencfaction,
and £200 royal bounty,and in the patronage of the Bishop
of Rochester. The chureh, dedicated to the Holy Trinity,
is a spacious structure, consisting of a nave, risles; and
chancel, with an embattled tower at the north-west side:
it containg mauy ancient monuments, among which is
vne in commemoration of the above-mentioped Sir John
Spielman. The ancient burying-ground js ‘sitoaged ou a
high hill, at some distauce from the church ; #rid a vew
one was consecrated a few years since in.a fmore conVenient
situation. There are places of worship for various deno-
minations of disggnters. A free grammar school™yes
founded here i 1576, for the education uf eight buys,
and endowed with property producing £48. 18 ip
annum, which is vested in trustees, by a decres’s
commisgioners of charitable uses, dated July 5th, ¥87a&
There is also a charity school for boys in comnexipt’ %8l
the ghurch, conducted on the National - sysilipa.
supported chiefly by the income arising frots: &
benefactions, the master of which has 2 milary of &
per annum. At Lowfield, in this parish, wre four: e
honses, founded.in 1872, in pursuance of & bageey’h
John Byer, who aleo founded and endowed nimg
%mﬂhm in the parish. Trdces 'of . ‘the R
Watling.street ‘appear on the south. side of the.
road, betwoen Dactiord uad Dastford Boent
Augustine nunnery, r the diesolotién, was m
royal residence by Henry VIIL sad -Rhizkbeth:
ita remaine, consisting of an embattléd ghtews
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some other buildinge of brick, have been converted
into a farm-house, An hospital, dedicated to the
Holy Trinity, was founded in the reign of Henry VI, ;
and an hospital for lepers existed here in the fourtectfth
century. In the latter part of Elizabeth's reign, the
county assizes are said to have been freguently held at
Dartford; and a spot at the entrance to Dartford-
Brent from the town was the place of execution for
walefactors, The Earl of Jersey enjoys the inferior
title of Viscount Villiers, of Dartford,

DARTINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Stan-
noroucH, county of DeEvon, 2 miles (N, by W.) from
Totness, containing 602 inhabitants. The living is a

rectory, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £26. 4. 44, The
trustees of A. Champernowne, Esq., & minor, were pa-
trons in 1700,

The churceh is dedicated to St. Mary,
DARTMOUTH, a ho-
rongh, sea-port, and market
town, having separate juris-
diction, locally in the hun-
dred of Coleridge, county
of Devon, 303 miles (8. by
W.) from Exeter, and 204
‘'W. 8. W.) from London,
contuining 4485 inhahitants,
This place, which derives its
nume from heing sitvated at
d Arms. the mouth of the river Dart,
appears to have been distinguished at a very early
period for the convenience of its hurbour, which, in
1190, was the rendezvous of the fleet destined for the
Holy Land. In the reign of Richard I. the French
effected a landing on this coast, and, after setting fire
to the town, retreated with inconsiderable loss, Tt is
stated by Leland to have received a charter of incorpo-
ration from King John, but no authentic document exists
of a date prior to Edward I1L : if not incorporated, it
enjoyed many privileges, and, in 1226, the inhabitunts
obtained the grant of a weekly market and an anunual
fair. In the reign of Edward 1. the town sent members
to parliament, and had become a cousiderable staple for
wool, wing, snd iron; and in that of Edward I, the
port coutsibuted thirty-one ships, and nearly eight hun-
dred gen, to the uaval armament for the invasion of
Fraope. In this reign the town, together with the ad-
jacent villages of Clifton and Harduess, received a re-
charter of incorporation, and was exempted from
4 By act of parliament in the reign of Richard 1L,
the exportation of tin was exclusively restricted to the
et.-of Dartmouth, but the restriction was socon after
mhed. In 1404, the French pirates having burnt
Plymonth, sailed to this towu, but were galfantly re-
palted By the male and female inhubitants ; De Chastell,
. commander, and several of his men were killed,
md twenty of the crew taken prisoucre. The castle is
apposed to have been eracted in the reign of Henry VIL
Dawing the parliamentary war, Dartmduth was regarded
#4 .8 very important post, and eagerly contended for by
Mh -parties : in 1643, it was taken, after a siege of
r weeks, by Prince Maurice, who garrigoned it for
;. @ud, in 1646, it was taken by storm by
: X who commanded the assault in person.
i T8k town, is_benutifully situated on the western
%gﬁ' '&p'fay formed by the river Dart, near its
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influx with the sca. The houses are built on the
acclivity of an cminence sloping gently from the margin
of the water, and ranged in streets rising above euch
other at different elevations : they are in general an-
cient, and #ome of them are ornamented with grotesque
carvings : the governor s house, which occupies a higher
site, is a modern adaptation of the ancient style of
building which prevails in the town, and forms the
front t.u a naval muscum.  The streets, though in-
conveniently narrow, are partially paved by the com-
missioners, and the inhabitants are .unpp]iwl' with water
brought by pipes from springs in the neighbourhood, at
the expense of the corporation. A subscription reading-
room has heen established, and an wunual regatta 1
celebrated, generally in Joly.  ‘The surrounding scenery
1s strikingly beautiful : the view of the town from the
bay is truly picturesque ; and the rocks, which wre of a
purple-colonred slate, are finely contrasted with the ver-
dant foliage of the trees in which the houses are on-
busomed, extending for nearly a mile along the coast, and
mterspersed with a rich variety of plants and shrobs.
The bay, in several points of view, from which the town
and the sea are excluded by projecting rocks, has the
appearance of an inland lake, noted tor its romantic
beauty.  The harbour is sufficiently capacious for the
reception of five hundred sail of vessels, and is re-
markable for its security, and for the depth und tran-
quillity of its water, the surface of which is undisturhed,
while the sca, at the distance only of a quarter of «
mile, is in a state of strong agitution.  The entranee is
on the south, between the ruins of Kingswear castle
und the fort and chareh of St. Petrock, where a hattery
has been erected for its defence.  The port extends from
the river Teign to the river Erme, inc’uding a range of
coast forty miles in length, and is uncer the superin-
tendence of u governor appointed by tue corporation,
and paid by the crown.  The number of vessels belong-
ing to the port in 15823 was three hundred and forty-
vight, averaging seventy-two tons’ burden. The trade
is principally with Newfoundlaud, the English couast, und
the collieries ;. in the year ending January 5th, 1527,
oue hudred and two British and fourteen foreign vessels
cutered inward from forcign parts; and one hundred and
forty-three British and one foreign vessel cleared out-
ward. Awu artificiul quay has been constructed, projecting
into the harbour; und there is a custom-house, with
requisite offices for the despatch of business.  The
river Dart is navigable to Totness, ten miles distant ;
and the passage is highly interesting from the beautiful
scenery with which its bauks abound thronghout. A
considerable trade is carried on in  ship-building :
there are commadious dock-yards, in which nincteen
vessels were built in the year 1826; but the inhabi-
tants are chiefly engaged in the Newfoundland aud
other fisheries, in which three thousand persons are
employed, of whow u certain number is by luv required
to be landsmen. The market is on Friday: there
are no fairs of any importance. The government, by
charter of Edward 11L, confirmed by succeeding mno-
narchs, and cxtended by James IL, is vested in u
mayor, recorder, and twelve aldermeu, assisted hy o
town clerk, coronel, two bailiffs, a receiver, and other
officers. The mayor, the late mayor, and recorder, are
justices of the peace for the borough, and hold a court
of session quarterly, for the trial of all offenders not ac-
' C
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cused of capital crimes; and a court of record, under a
charter of Edward I11., for the recovery of debts to any
amount, on the Monday in every week, but no writ has
issued from it since 1823. The manorial courts for the
borough, and also for the parish of Townstall, of which
the corporation are lords of the inanor, are also held here.
The borough prison is a small building, containing two
wards, with accommodation for four prisoners. The
borough has continued to return two members to par-
liament sinee its incorporation in the 24th of Edward 111
the right of election is vested in the freemen generally ;
the mayor is the returning officer.

Dartmouth comprises the parishes of St. Petrock,
St. Saviour, and Townstall, all in the archdeaconry
of Totness, and divcese of Excter. The living of St.
Petrock’s is a perpetnal curacy, endowed with £1000
royal hounty, and £1200 parliamentary grant, and in
the patrounage of the Rector of Stoke-Fleming: the
church ix beautifully situated near the entrance to the
harbour. The living of St. Saviour's is a perpetual
curacy annexed to the vicarage of Townstall, endowed
with £200 private hencfaction, and £300 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Mayor and Corpo-
ration : the church, commonly called the mayor's chapel,
is a spacious cruciform structure, possessing little ex-
ternal, but considerable internal,” beauty ; it is prinei-
pally in the decorated style of English architecture :
the pulpit is of stone, richly sculptured and gilt; the
wooden screen is an cluborate and highly enriched spe-
cimen of carving, in the decorated style; and the stalls
of the corporation are of good modern workmauship :
the original ceiling of oak is still preserved. The living
of the parish of Townstall is a discharged vicarage, with
the perpetual curacy of St. Saviour's, rated in the king's
hooks at £12. 15. 44., endowed with £15 per annum
and £200 private henefaction, £200 royal hounty, and
£800 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Mayor and Corporation. The church is dedicuted to
St. Clement. There are places of worship for Baptists,
[ndependents, and Wesleyan Methodists. Sunday schools
in each parish are sapported by subscription ; and there
are gome small charitable bequests for the benefit of the
poor and the instruction of poor children. Newcomen, the
inventor of the steam-engine, was a native of this place.
Dartmouth gives the title of earl to the family of Legge.

DARTON, a parish in the wapentake of Stain-
cross, West riding of the county of Yorx, comprisin
the townships of Barugh, Darton, and Kexborough, ang
containing 2176 inhabitants, of which number, 1340
are in the township of Darton, 3% miles (N. W.) from
Barnesley. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £12. 10., endowed with £250 private benefac-
tion, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
G. W. Wentworth, Esq. The church is dedicated to
All Saints. In 1668, George Beaumont bequeathed £ 500
towards supporting a schoolmaster for the free educa-
tion of the children of the inhabitants; the number is
about sixty, and the income £54 a year: the school-
room was rebuilt in 1800,

DARWEN (LOWER), a townehip in the parish of
Bracksurn, lower division of the hundred of BrAck-
BURN, county palatine of LancasTrn, 24 miles (8.8.E.)
from Blackburn, containing 2238 inhabitants. A chapel
is now being erccted by the commissioners sppointed
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under the act passed in the 58th of George II1., for
building additional churches, and of which the Vicar of
Blpckburn will he patron.

DARWEN (OVER), a chaepelry in the parish of
Brackpurn, lower divisiou of the hundred of Brack-
BURN, county palatine of LANCASTER, 4} miles (S. by E.)
from Blackburn, containing 6711 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Chester, endowed with £620 private bene-
faction, and £600 royal hounty, and in the patronage
of the Viear of Bluckburn, The chapel is dedicated to
St. James, There are different places of worship for dis-
senters, and about one thousand five hundred children
are instructed in Sunday schools.  Print and bleaching-
works are extensively carried on, and coal and slate are
plentiful. Three annual fairs are held here, on the first
Thursday in October, and the first Thursday in May, for
cattle and horses, and on Holy Thursday, which is a
pleasure fair,

DARWENT, a chapclry in the parish of HatHER-
saGE., buwdred of Hicnt Prax, county of Dernpy, 10
miles (N.N.W.) from Stony-Middleton, containing 123
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy with that
of All Saints’, Derby, in the archdeaconry of Derby, and
dincese of Lichfield and Coventry, endowed with £400
private benefuction, and £ 600 royal bounty. The cha-
pel is dedicated to St. James. There is an endowment
of £5 a year, arising from bequests by Rebert Turner,
in 1720, and John Eyre, in 1772, for teaching twelve
poor children.

DASSETT (AVON), a parish in the Burton-Dassett
division of the hundred of Kincrow, county of Wan-
wick, 5% miles (E. by 8.) from Kington, containing 242
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the peculiar
jurisdiction of the Bishop of Lichfield and Coventry,
rated in the king's books at £13. 18, 9. Robert Green,
Esq. was patron in 1803. The church is dedicated to
St. John the Baptist,

NATCHETT, a parish in the hundred of Stoxr,
county of BuckiNcHAM, 2 miles (E.8.E.) from Eton,
containing 839 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bucking-
bham, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books
at £11, endowed with £15 per annum and £3200
private benefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £700
parliamentary grant, and in the of the Dean
and Canons of Windsor. The. church is dedicated to
St. Mary. There is a place of worship for Baptists.
Datchett is scparated from Windsor by the river
Thames, over which here was formerly a bridge, built by
Queen Anne, but it fell down in 1796, and has not. sines:
been rebuilt. ; A

DATCHWORTH, a parish inhe hundred.of Broas-
WATER, county of HerTrorp, 34 miles (N.E. by E.) frem
Welwyn, containityg-494 inhabitants. The isa
rectory, in ¢he archdeaconry of Hunti and' dicodes
of Lincoln, rated in the king'e hooks at € 14 13.4.,'smd
in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Clére
Hall, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to All'Saints.

DAUNTSEY, & parish in the hundred of MaLwws-
BURY, county of WiLTs, 4} miles (8.E.) from Malrasl
bury, containing 467 inhabitants. The Livingis a 2ed;
tory, in the archdeéaconry and diocese of Sa .
in the king's books at £18.6.3. The Earlof .
‘wes patron in 1800. The ¢hureh, dedionted to St.Juna
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eontaine & noble monument of white marble to the
memory of Henry Danvers, Baron Dauntsey, created
Earl of Danby in 1625; he founded here a free school
and an almshouse, and the Botanical Garden at Oxfor@,
There is a chapel of ease at Westend, in this ‘parish,

DAVENIAM, & parish in the hundred of
Norrawich, county palatine of Curester, compri-
sing the townships of Bostock, Davenhamn, Eaton,
Leftwich, Moulton, Newhall, Rudheath, Shipbrook,
Shurlach, Stanthorne, Wharton, and Whatcroft, and
containing 3470 inhsbitants, (exclusively of 97 iu the
township of Rudheath, which are returned with the
parishes of Great Budworth and Sandbach) of which
number, 379 are in the township of Davenham, 2} miles
(s.) from Northwich. The living is & rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, rated in the king's
books at £23. 13. 14., and in the patronage of R. W,
Tomkiuson, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Wiltred.
Davenham derives its name from its situation on the
river Daven, or Dane. A school, founded more than
a century since, is supported by a rent-charpe on
Shipbrook-hill farm, and other, benefactions, amount-
ing together to about £20 per aunum. In the lordship
of Rudheath, in this purish, an action was fought on the
22d of February, 1643, between the King's troops and
the parliamentary forces under Sir William Brereton,

DAVENPORT, a township in that part of the pa-
rish of AsTpury which is in the hundred of Norra-
wicH, county palatine of CuesTeR, 44 miles (NW., by w.)
from Congleton, containing 96 inhabitants,

DAVENTRY, a market
town and parish having sc-
parate jurisdiction, Jocally
in the hundred of Fawsley,
county of Nowruamrros,
124 miles (W. by X)) from
Northampton, and 72 (N.W.)
from Loudon, on the road
to Holyhead, containing, with
the hamlet of Drayton, 3326
inhabitants.  This place de-
rives its name from the Bri-

Corpurate Seal. .
tish Dwy-avon-tre, town of the two Avons, denoting

its situation between two rivers of that name. About
balf a mile to the sowth-east is Borough hill, a Jofty
eminence, on which is an elliptical intrenchment, in-
duding an area of two hundred acres, defended
on the south and west by a double trench and rampart,
and on the north and enst sides by four decp trenches
and: five ramparts, the entrances to which are on the
and south-cast sides. The origin of this camp,

which Mr. Permant considers to have been a post of the
when opposad to Ostorius, and after jts re-
on to have heen «occupied by that general, as the
weiiva of his forces, has been hy some antiquaries
o the Danes, by whom it may pmbmnbly (l!»we
oocupied during their irruption in 1006, and to
m the bnildi:::gof the town has heen ageribed,
#this erroneous supposition, strengthened. by the
ottraction of the name to Dantrey, and’ Daintree,
probably resalted the device of the comamon seal,
zhiiﬂtzd! of nearly three hundred yards below this
is a smaller quadrilateral camp, including
¢, defended by a. single intrenchment ;
1s another, inclading six acres, called Burnt
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W:lﬂls, where J obn of Gaunt is said to have had a palace.
This gtation, which is one of the largest of the kind in
the kmg_dn_m, was the Bennavenna of the Britons, and the
Isanta Faria of Autonine, At the time of the Conquest
Da\-entry' was a place of considerable importance, In
1090 a priory was founded here by Hugh de Leycester, for
mouks of the (»!_umar. order ; it was richly endowed, its
revenue amounting to £236, 7, 6., and it was ope of
those which, by permission of pope Clement VIL, were
d‘isw_]vcll in the 17th of Henry VIII,, and granted to
Lurd;nnl Wolsey, for endowing his intended colleges at
Ipswich and Oxford: the lust remains of the buildiugs
were taken down in 1826, During the parliamentary
war, Daventry was the scene of frequent conflicts,
in one of which, in the heginning of 1645, Sir William
and Sir Charles Compton, brothers of the Earl of
Nurthamptm:, with three hundred horse, routed four
hundred of the parlismentarian cavalry near the town,
Iu the same year, the king baving taken Leicester by
storm, on his march to relieve Oxford, which was closely
hesieged, fixed his head-quarters at this town, where he
remamed for six days, prior to his departure for Market-
Harborough where the vanguard of bis army was sta-
tioned, in the neighbourhood of which place the battle
of Naschy was fought on the following day,

The town is pleasantly sitnated on the acclivity of
a gentle eminence, sheltered by other hills to the south
and south-east, and consists of two principal streets,
intersected by several smaller, lighted und paved by an
act passed in the 46th of George L1, for that purpose,
and also for the rebuilding of the moot-hall. The houses,
though irregularly, are neatly and well, built, and the in-
habitants are supplied with water from a spring on the
Borough hill, at the distance of half a mile to the south-
cast of the town.  The only branch of marufacture is that
of whips : the support of the town arises chicfly from its
situation as a public thoroughfare, and from its numerous
fairs. The Grand Junction canal, at the north angle of the
parish, passes through a tunnel two thousand yards in
length, to the south of which is the reservoir. The market
is on Wednesday : the fairs are on the $rst Mouday
in Junuary, the last Monduy in February, Tuesday in
Easter week, June 6th and 7th, August 3rd, the first
Monday in September, October 2nd and 3rd, October
27th, and the last Wednesday in November. The first
October fuir is on the first day of that month, for cheese ;
and the second for live stock ; the others are generally for
horses and cattle. On the two next Wednesduys after
Michaelmas are statute fairs for hiring servants. St,
Augustine’s fair, now held on the 6th and ?th.uf _June.
is coeval with the grant of the market, _und with it ap-
pended to the manor; and the inbabitants, notwith-
standing several attempts to emancipate themsel ves, are
still compelled to grind their corn at the lord's mill, and
to bake their bread at his oven.  The town is supposed
to have had u guild-merchant at a very early period :
it recewved a charter of incorporation from King John,
which was confirmedby Queen Elizabeth in the eighteenth
year of her reign, and subsequently by James 1. Under
the present charter of the 27th of Charles II. the go-
vernment is vested in a bailiff, a recorder, (who must be
2 barrister, and whése appointment is subject to appro-
val by the crown), and a chamberlain, twelve burgesses,
twenty common council-men, assisted by a town clerk
(who must be & barrister), twa wdens. .;WD serjeants at
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mace, and other officers. The bailiff, who is also clerk
of the market, is clected on Michaelmas-day, by the
common council-men, from two burgesses nomiunated by
the bailiff and two of the burgesses ; the chamberlain and
wardens are chosen at the same time by the commonal-
ty, or, on their declining to elect, by the bailiff and bur-
gesses.  The bailiff, the late bailiff, who acts as coroner
the fullowing year, and the recorder, are justices of the
peace for the borough. The corporation hold a general
court of scesion annually ; and under the charter of
Elizabeth, confirmed and extended by Charles 1L, a
weekly court of record, for the recovery of debts not ex-
ceeding €100, 1. is held, in which the bailitl and recorder
preside, either in person or by deputy: but from this
eourt no writs have been issued since 1823.  The town-
hall having become greatly dilapidated, a large house
has heen purchased and commodiously fitted up for the
borough scssione and courts of record ; and within the
last three yeurs, a new paol and hounse of correction for
the horough has been erceted.

The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
of Northampton, and diocese ol Peterhorough, endowed
with £20 per aunum private benefaction, and in the pa-
tronage of the Dean and Canons of Christ Church,
Oxford. The ancient church, dedicated to the Holy
Cross, formerly the conventual church of the priory,
was token down in 1752, and the present structure
erected on its site, ot the expense of £3486. There are
places of worship for Independents und Wesleyan Me-
thodists. The free grammar school was founded in 1576,
by Mr. William Parker, of London, who endowed it with a
rent-charge of £20 per anpum, of which £ 15 per annum
was to be paid to the master, and £ 5 to an usher, for the
instraction of fifty poor children of the town ; the endow-
ment was farther augmented, in 1729, by Mr. John
Farrer, of Daventry, who bequeathed £400 to five
trustees, for the purchase of lands, now producing
£43 per sunum, as a stipend to the master, who must
be in holy orders, on condition of his reading evening
prayers on Sundays, and morning prayers on Mondays,
Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays, at the parish
church. John Sawbridge, Esq., of Daventry, in 1740,
bequeathed £ 150, to which £ 100 was added by his bro-
ther, Edward Sawhridge, Esq., to purchase or build a
house for the master ; these sums, which are at present
invested in the funds, produce £16 per annum. An
English charity school was founded in 1736, by Dr. Ed-
ward Maynard, who gave £200 to the corporation, in
trust for that purpose ; it is supported partly by sub-
scription, and is also endowed with £6 per annum, the
hequest of Nathaniel, Lord Crewe, Bishop of Durham ;
£4 per annum, the gift of Edward Sawbridge ; £89 per
annum, part of the rental of an estate at Cosford, in
Northamptonshire, purchased with money arising from
several benefactions; and the interest of £700 three
per cent. consols,, bought with money procured from the
sale of timher on the Cosford estate, and occasional
savings of income. The master has £67 per annum,
besides an allowance of £4.16. per annum for providing
books and ;t.a:!ionm-y; twenty-four boys, who are all
'supplied with clothing, and some placed apprentices, are
elducated in this sthool ; the p*.cho(,l is mow
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year 1789, when it was removed. Mr. John Welch gave
the interest of £700, now vested in the South Sea annu:
ities, producing £21 per anmua, of which, £9 per annum
is*paid to the minister of the congregation of Indepen-
dents, and the remaining £12 towards the support of a
charity school for children of hoth sexes. There are
various charitable bequests for distribution among the
poor, among which may be noticed £ 10 per annum by
Mr. Parker, the founder of the grammar school, to be
distributed quarterly to six beadsmen appointed by the
lord of the manor of Ipswich, to which several others
have been subsequently added for the same purpose.
John Smith, a celchrated engraver in mezzotinto, was
born here in 1740, Daventry gives the title of baron to
the Earl of Winchelsea.

DAVIDSTOW, a parish in the hundred of Lgs-
NEWTH, county of CornwarL, 34 miles (N.E.) from
Camclford, containing 363 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, in the archdcaconry of Cornwall, and divcese
of Exeter, rated in the kiug's books at £8, and in the
patronage of the King, as Prince of Wales. The church
is deldicated to St. David.

DAVINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Faven-
sHAM, lathe of Scray, county of KeEnt, 4 a mile (N.W.)
from Faversham, containing 151 inhabitants, The living
is a donative, to which T. Bennett, Esq. presented
in 1821. The church, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene,
is principally of Norman architecture, aud has a beau-
tifully arched door-way. From the numerous remains
found here, this is supposed to have been a Roman
station. A priory for Benedictine nuns was founded
in 1153, probably by Fulk de Newenham, the revenue
of which, in the 17th of Edward III., when the society
petitioned to be exempted from the payment of taxes
on account of poverty, was only £21. 13. 10 ; having
heen entirely deserted, it escheated to the crown in the
27th of Henry VIIL : the remains are considerable, and
form an interesting ruin, part having been converted into
the parish church. Here is a lurge powder manufactory.

DAWDON, a township in the parish of Davrron
le DaLE, northern division of EasiNeron ward, eounty
palatine of DurAAm, 64 miles (8.5.E.) from Swnder-
land, containing 85 inhabitants,

DAWLEY (MAGNA), a parish in the Wellington di-
vigion of the hundred of Braprorp (South), county of
Savror, 4 miles (W. by 8.) from Shiffnall, ¢ ini
with the townships of Little. Dawley and Malins-Lee,
5147 inbabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy,.in
the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, endowed with £400 private benefaction, £ 400
rayal bounty, and £2300 parliamentary grant. J, %
ley, Esq. and another were patrons in 1792. cilivgh
is dedicated to St. Leonard, besides which a chitbel i
now being erected, toward defraying the expease of
which, a grant was made in 1828, by the. isgionen
appointed under the act of the 58th of George 1L for
building additional churches., There are extensive conl,
iron, lime, and tile, works in the parish, with numercus
rail-ways in connexion with them. . o e

DAWLISH, a parish in the hundred of Exminstan,
gonnty of Devon, 2% miles (N.N.R.) from East Teigy
tmouth; containing 2700 inhsbitants, . This ot
time of the Norman survey, in which it is noticed tglee'
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which time the salubrity of its air, the pleasantness of
fts situation, and the beauty of its environs, mmde it
the resort of invalids, for whose accommodation prepa-
rations were progressively made, in proportion to the
increase of the visitors, and it is now a fashionable
watering-place. The town is beautifully situated in a
valley open to the sea on one side, and sheltered on the
other by riging grounds in a rich state of cultivation,
Ranges of modern houses occupy three sides of a
quadrangular area sloping from the shore, tastefully
laid out, and intersected by & stream called Dawlish water,
which rises in Haldon, an extensive waste adjoining,
and after traversing the village, where it is crossed by
three bridges for carriages, falls into the sea. The
streets are roughly paved, and the inhabitants are amply
supplied with water from springs. On the heach are the
baths, neatly built of brick, near which are a library, read-
ing-room, and billiard and assemhly-rooms ; an aunual
regatta is celebrated generally in August. The environs
afford some pleasant walks and rides: the towering
clifft which overbang the sca give an air of grandeur to
the scenery, which is finely contrasted with the rich fer-
tility of the vale, and the luxuriant foliage of the wood-
crowned heights. A great quantity of mackerel is occa-
sionally taken on the coast; potatoes are exteusively
cultivated for exportation to Newfoundland, and cider
is made in abundance from the orchards which are at-
tached to the farms in the parish. Mines of cobalt have
heen discovered in the vicinity. It is in contemplation
to erect a market-house by subscription, for the supply
of the inhabitants : a pleasure fair is held annually on
Easter-Monday.,

The living is a vicarage, with the curacy of East
Teignmouth, rated in the king's books at £25. 5., and
in the peculiar jurisdiction and petronage of the Dean
and Chapter of Exeter. The church, dedicatod to St.
Gregory, was rebuilt in 1824, at an expense of £4000:
it is 8 bandsome and commodious edifice in the later
style of English architecture, with a square embattled
tower crowned with pinnacles, the only part remaining
of the original structure. At Sedwell and Cofton, ham-
lets 4n this parish, are the remains of two sncient cha-
wpels ; the latter has been disused since 1715, and a
grant obtained for rebuilding it, in 1824, has, with the
consent of the vicar, heen transferred to the parish of
Kenton, where a district chapel has been erected. There
are places of worship for Independents and Methodists,
‘A National school is supported by subscription; and
there are mocieties for elothing the poor and affording
Ahem medical relief. An ol house near the church-
o with walls of extraordinary thickness, is said to
in formerly & monastery.

LG {Y (ST.), @ bamlet in the parish of GwenwNap,
‘trandied -of Xerrixr, county of CornwaLL, 24 miles
B By N.) from Redrath. The population is returned
iwwith €he parish. From the mines in the neighbourhood,
ipmil4eags communicate with the English- and Bristol
sebesmels, -

. DAYLESFORD, a parish in the upper division of
st handred of OswaLbnsrow, county of WoRCESTER,
Ssotiphlocally in the upper division of the handred of
Mllmighter, ovounty of Gloucester, 34 miles (E.) from
e - on-the ‘Wald, ‘containing 108 inhabitants. The
Sinlligtis » -veotory, in the archdeaconry of Gloucester,
of Woscester, rated in the king's books at
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£7, and in the patronage of Mrs, Hastings. The church
is dedicated to St. Peter. The Rev. William Langton
begucatheri £14 u year for teaching children, which is
paid to a schoolmistress, The cultare of cingue-foil
was u?truducml here prior to any other place in Lpg-
dallu_l, in 1650. Warren Hastings, Governor General of
Brit.iﬁh India, who was impeached by the parliament on
his return to England in 1786, was born here.

DEAL, a sca-port, market town and parish, and
a member of the town and port of Sanvwicen, in the
hundred of Bewsnoroven, lathe of Sr, AvtusTINg,
county of Kent, on the coast of which it is sitnated,
hetween the north and south Forelands, 18 miles (S.E.}
from Canterbury, and 72 (E. by 8.) from London, con-
taining 6811 inhabitants. The origin of the town is
buried in obseurity : it has been considered the place
where Cwsar landed when he invaded Britain, bhut this
is doubtful. Leland gives the town the Latinized name
of Dela.  Nennius, who probably wrote in the ninth
century, says, “ Cwsar fought at Dola,” which Camden
supposes to mean Deal ; but there are no records of
any town existing here until several centuries after
the Romans quitted Britain. Perkin Warbeck, who
personated the Duke of York as heir to the crown,
made an attempt to land et Deal, July 3d, 1495, but
finding that a party which he landed was attacked
by his enemies, he returned to Flanders, and after-
wards, September 7th, 1497, landed at Whitsun-bay, in
Cornwall. In an ordinance of Henry I11., dated in 1229,
Deal is mentioned as dependent on the port of Sandwich,
the jurisdiction of which (as one of the cinque ports)
over Deal and Walmer was confirmed by letters patent
in the 19th of Henry VI. The town was then governed
by a depyty and assistants appointea by the mayor
and jurate of Sandwich: in the 11th of William IIT,,
notwithstanding the oppoeition of the corporation of
Saadwich, a charter was granted to Deal: but the inha-
bitants are still obliged to serve op juries at Sandwich
as heforc. Hanry VIII1. having issued illegal writs for
the purpose of raising a subsidy, Deal refused to pay
its quota, on which the king annulled its charter, and
re-annexed ft as a member to Sandwich. There is no
harbour ; but the sea between the shore and the Good-
win sands forms a fine roadstead, called the Downs,
which is of great importance to the country, as it is
not only a station for ships of war, but merchant ves-
sels, of which four or five hundred arc frequently
seen here wind-bound, riding in safety, except during
heavy gales from the north and east, when they
eithcr proceed on their respective voyuges, or put
into Ramsgate for shelter. Henry VIII, Bppreamt_ed
the value of this position, and built on the south side
of the town, a strong castle, surrounded by a ditch,
with a draw-bridge : the castle consists of a round
tower, in which are apartments for the captain and
other officers. The batteries and martello towers, con-
structed during the late war, completely command the
coast, and defend the town, which consists principally of
three long streets running parallel with each other along
the shore, and connected by cross streets, in general nar-
row and inconvenlent, The houses are irregularly built,
chiefly of brick ; blt in those which have been recently
erected greater attention has been paid touniformity, par-
ticularly since the year 1790, when an act was passed
for pauing and lighting the streets. Here are a custom-
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house, a naval store-house, and a naval and military
hospital, the latter of which is in the parish of Walmer.
The East India Company has a resident agent here,
to protect the interests of their shipping when detained
in the Downs. The pilots of the cingue-ports are under
the direction of the Lord Warden; the Downs pilots are
those from Gravesend and London, who are under the
direction of the Trinity House, The greater part of the
male inhabitants are employed in maritime occupations,
and in furnishing sapplies for ships lying in the Downs.
Tle pilots of Deal are intrepid and excellent seamen, and
particularly active in affording assistance to vessels in
distress, which they have often rescucd from almost ine-
vitable destruction, and been publicly rewarded for their
heroic conduct. The markets, which are well supplied
with provisions, are on Tuesday and Saturday : the fairs
are, April 5th and October 10th. By charter of the
11th of Williane I11., this was constituted afree town and
borough, with a body corporate, cousisting of a mayor,
recorder, town clerk, twelve jurats, and twenty-four com-
mon council-men. The mayor and recorder, or their depu-
ties, and one or two other jurids, ure authorised to hald
a court of record for the recovery of debts to the amount
of £100; but no writs have heen issucd since 1843, the
charter requiring the recorder or his deputy to be a bar-
. rister of three years' standing, and no person thus quali-
fied being resident within eighteen miles of Deal, aud no
fees allowed for attendance. A court of requests for debts
under 40s. is held wnder an act of parlimment passed
in the 26th of George IIL : its jurisdiction extends over
the town and borough of Deal, and the parishes of
Ripple, Sutton, Northbourne, Great Mongeham, Little
Mongeham, Tilimanstone, Betshanger, Ham, and Shol-
den, in this county.
The living is a rectory, exempt from the Jurisdiction
of the archdeacon, rated in the king's books at £19. 10,
and in the patronage of the Archbishop of Canterbury.
The church, dedicated to St. Leonard, is situated
about a mile from the sea, in that part of the town
called Upper Deal. There is also a chapel of ease in
Lower Deal, dedicated to St. George the Martyr, built
at the expense of £2554. 12. 4%, raised partly by
subscription, and partly by a duty on coal and culm,
levied under an act of parliament obtained in 1712: this
chapel was consecrated in 1716. The Baptists, Inde-
pendents, and Calvinistic and Wesleyan Methodists,
have also their places of worship. There is a National
school for ninety boys .and ninety girls, supported by
voluntary contributions, Mrs. Elizabeth Carter, well
known in the literary world for her classical attainments,
was born here in 1717 ; her ather, the Rev. Nicholas
Carter, having been more than fifty-six years curate of
the chapel at Lower Deal. Here also was born, in 1735,
William Boys, a distinguisbhed naturalist and antiquary.
DEAN, a parish in ALLERDALE ward above Dar-
went, county of CumnERLAND, comprising the townships
of Branthwaite, Dean, and Ullock with Pardsey and Dean-
Scales, and containing 832 inhabitants, of which number,
168 are in the township of Dean, 5 miles (8.W.) from
Cockermouth. The living is & rectory, in the archdeacon-
ryof Richmond, and diocesc of Chester, rated in theking's
Books at £19. 8. 14, and in the pétronage of the Rev.
Henry Sill. The church is dedicated to St. Oswald.
A free grammar school was founded in 1596, by John'
Fox, with an endowment of about £ 10, 17. 6. perennum ;
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the school-room was rebuilt in 1615, at the expense of
his son. Qubrries of red and white free-stone, lime-
stone, and black-stone, termed cat-scalp, and coal pits,
are interspersed throughout the parish.

DEAN, a parish in the hundred of SaLFoRD, county
palatine of LaNcasTER, 1§ mile (8.W. by W.) from Great
Bolton, comprising the chapelries of Farnworth, Little
Hilton, Horwick, and West Houghton, and the townships
of Heaton, Middle Hilton, Over Hilton, Halliwell,
Kearsley, and Rumworth, and containing 18,916 in-
habitants, The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, rated in the King's
books at £4, endowed with £527 private benefaction,
£200 royal bounty, and £600 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of the Crown. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary. There are some dissenting places
of worship and endowed schools at the different town-
ships in this parish.

DEAN, a hamlet in the parish of SrrLssury, hun-
dred of CuaprLinaTon, county of Oxvowrp, 32 miles
(5.1 by 8.) from Chipping-Norton. The population is
returned with the parish,

DEAN, a parish in the hundred of OverToN, Kings-
clere division of the county of SovTnaMpTON, 5} miles
(W. by 8.) from Basingstoke, containing 157 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Winchester, rated in the king's books at £10,8.114,,
and in the patronage of Wither Bramston, Esq. The
church is dedicated to All Saint=,  Thix parish is within
the jurisdiction of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester
every Thursday, for the recovery of debts to any amount.
It formerly contained within its limits the adjointing
parish of Ashe, which was separated and erected into a
distinet parish by act of parliament, about two hundred
years ago.

DEAN (EAST), a chapelry in the parish of Mor-
TisroNT, hundred of TworncaTe, Andover division of
the county of Souvrnamrron, 74 miles (N. W. by w.)
from Rowmsey, containing 160 inhebitants, The living is
a perpetual curacy anpexed to the rectory of Mottisfont,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester. The Salis-

Jbury snd Southampton canal passes through the parish.

DEAN (EAST), a parish in the hundred of Wesr-
BOURN and SinGLETON, rape of CHICHESTER, county
of Sussex, 7 miles (S. by E.) from Midhurst, containing
397 inhabitants, The living is a discharged vicarage
with the rectory of Singleton, in the archdeaconry of
Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's
books at £5. 4. 45.

DEAN (EAST), a parish in the bundred of WiLLing-
pqN, rape of PevENsEy, county of Sussex, 21 miles
(W.8.w.) from East Bourne, contsining 296 inhabi:
tants. The living is a vicarage united to the vicargge
of Friston, in the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of
Chichester, rated in the king's books at £8, and in the
patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Chichester.

DEAN (FOREST of), an extra.payochial Hberty, in
the hundred of St. Br1aviLL's, county of GLovCRETER,
comprising the divikions of Denby walk, ﬁerbe:;t.}m,
Little Dean walk, Speech-House walk, Worcestes walk,
and York walk, and containing 5535 inhabitants : Yhe
centre of the forest is 5 miles (5.W. by W.) from Neg
ham. There are three chapelries in the Forust of Deg
viz,, Christ Church, eadowed with £200. privags b
faction, and £2300 parlismentary .geptit; . the cknpelel
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the Holy Trinity, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £ 2500 purlinmentary grant; and St. Paul's, endowed
with £2200 parliamentary grant; all of which are per-
petual curacies, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Gloucester. This district, extending from north to south
twenty miles, from east to west ten miles, and lying be-
tween the rivers Severn and Wye, was anciently occu-
pied by the Silures, and probably obtained its name
cither from the contraction of the Gacelic word Arden,
a wood, or from the British Denys Coed, the wood
of fallow deer, for which it was famous for many
centuries. Within its original hounds were situated the
very ancient towns of Tudenham and Wollaston ; also
on the margin of the Severn, the flone of Antoninus,
long since reduced to a small village, called Alvington ;
and on the Wye, Bréulais Castle, embosomed in almost
an impenetrable thicket, and now fullen to decay. In
the reign of Henry 1., so dark and intricate were its
tracts or cross ways, that the inhabitants committed
the most daring outrages amd robberies with impu-
nity, until restrained by the discovery of its rich mines
of iron and coal, and the consequent establishment of
forges, by authority of parliament, together with the
ercction of towns and villages for the residence of the
miners and manufacturers ; hefore which, the six Jodges
for the keepers of the several walks were the only
houser in it. All the inhabitants are exempted from
rates and taxes, with free liberty of pasturage and to
cut wood, and the privilege of sinking mines, the sixth
part of the produce of which, called the king's gawl, is due
to the king, and is collected by the gaveller. The forest,
as defined in the 12th of Ienry 1IL, the definition having
heen subsequently confirmed, is stated to comprise
twenty-three thousand and fifteen acres, belonging to the
crown, exclusively of frecholds obtained by grants,
Charles I. conveyed all the coppices and waste soil of
the forest, except the Lea Bailey, with all mines and
quarries, to Sir John Wyntour, for £10,600, and a
fee-farm rent of £1950. 12. 8. for ever, at which time
there. were standing one hundred and five thousand
five hundred and fitty-seven trees, estimated to contain
sixty-one thousand nine hundred and twenty-eight
tons of timber, and one hundred and fifty-three thousand
two hundred and nine cords of wood ; but the civil war
putting an end to the patent, the enclosures were thrown
apen, and the whole re-forested ; however, a renewal of
the grant, excepting the timber fit for naval purposes,
wak made by Charles II. to the eame individual; but,
on g survey made by the parliament in 1667, it was dis-
covered that he had made great encroachments upon the
property of the crown, to repair which one thousand one
hundred acres were then enclosed and planted; from this
plantation the royal dock-yards are chiefly supplied. There
are orchards producihg a peculiar kind of fruit, called
thié Styre apple, the cyder made from which is of 8 supe-
r,i‘urqu;ﬁt_y._md bears a high price. It is affirmed that
thedﬂrl,lﬁ:mdm‘ of the Spadish Armada had directions, if
he fafled in subduing the kingdom, to destroy every tree
iti the Forest of Dean. The government is vested, in a
lord warden, who is constable of St. Briavell's Castle ;

iX depaty wardens, four verdurers, chosen by the free-
a coneervator, seven woodwards, a chief fo-
fee, and bow bearer, which united offices are
the Wyndbam family, i right of inheritance;
sgters in feé, a gaveller, and a steward of the
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swainmote, who arc empowered to hold a court of at-
tachment every forty days ; a court of swainmote thrice
a yeur, and a court called the justice seat, once in three
years. The steward presides at the miners' court, and
is assisted by u jury of miners, who judge upon the par-
ticular laws and cusioms by which they are governed,
to prevent encroachmnents upon each other in the coal
and iron works, These courts are hield at the Speech-
Ilu_usc. in the centre of the forest, the general aspect of
which is picturesque in the extreme, being beautifully
diversified with hill and valley, interspersed with the
rich and varied foliagge of the woods,  Pursuant to an
act passed in the 36th of George I11., new roads have
been opened in various directions through the forest,
which is also intersected by several railways, communi-
cating with the Severn and the Wye.

DEAN (LITTLE), a parish in the hiundred of Sr,
Buriavern's, county of GLoversTer, 13 mile (N.W.hyN.)
from Newnham, containing, with 123 persous resident
in an adjoining extra-parochial district, 807 inhabitants,
The Iiving is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the perpe-
tual curacy of Newnham, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Gloucester, endowed with £400 parliamen-
tary grant, and in the patronage of the Mayor and Cor-
poration of Gloucester.  The church is dedicated to
St. Ethelbert.  The village is situated on the verge of
the Forest of Deau, in the neighbourhuvod of which there
are considerable mines of coal and iren, in which, and
in the manufacture of nails, the inhabitants are princi-
pally employed. It had formerly the privilege of a
market, which is now disused, but the market cross is
still standing, having a low octangular roof spreading
from a central shaft, and surmounted by a pinnacle with
niches and statues.  There are fairs for pedlary on
Whit-Monday and November 26th. Dorothy Pyrke,
in 1760, bequeathed an annuity of £4. 10. for teaching
ten poor children.

DEAN (MITCHELL), a market town and parish
in the hundred of St. BriaverL's, county of Grov-
CESTER, 11 miles (W.) from Gloucester, and 113 (W.)
from London, containing 556 inbabitants. This place,
the origin of which is anterior to the Conquest, dn:r.ives
its name, denoting its sitvation in a deep dell, from
the Saxon Dene, a dell, and its adjunct from Myeel,
great, in contradistinetion to the village of Little Dean,
in the neighbourhood : it was the principal town in
the Forest of Dean, and consists of three streets, di-
verging obliguely from the common centre; and was for-
merly a staple town for the wool trade; at present the
manufacture of leather is carried on to a small extent.
The market is on Monday: the fairs are on Easter-
Monday and October 10th, for horses, cflme, and sheep.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the urchdea-
conry of Hereford, nnd diocesc of Gloucester, rated
in the king's books at £10. 16. 04., endowed with £200
royal bounty. M. Colchester, Esq. was patron in Iifloﬂ.
The church, dedicated to St,Michael, is a spacious
structure, built at different periods, and exhibiting va-
rious styles of English architecture, with a tower, sur-
mounted by an octagonal spire: in the east window of
the north aisle are some remains of the original stained
glass with which the church appears to have been gene-
rally ornamented ; the roof, of ok, is decorated with
flowers and other ormaments, exquisitely carved; the
font appears to have been formed from the inverted
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capital of a column, which, from its embellishments,
has the character of the early English style. A subter-
raneous paseage leads from the church to a wood, about
halt a mile from the town. A charity school was founded
by meung of a hequest of £1000, by Williamn Lane, Esq.,
of Gloucester, in 1789, and one of £300 by his widow,
in 1806 ; thesc sums being vested by the trustees in the
funds, together with: other bencfactions, produce an
annual income of £62, of which the master receives
£15 per annum : there are about thirty boys, who are
supplicd with books : the sum of £5. 5. is paid to the
minister for catechising them, and the overplus is be-
stowed, at the discretion of the trustees, in rewards to
the scholars and their tencher. Mr. Jonathan Parker, in
1718, bequeathed £200, the interest of which is applied
to the clothing and apprenticing of oue poor child;
there are al<o other charitable bequests,

DEAN (NETHER), a parish in the hundred of
StopnEN, conuty of Benrorp, 35 miles (W.by 8.) from
Kimholton, containing, with the humlet of Upper Dean,
479 inhubitunts.  The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Bediord, and diocese of Lincoln,
and in the putronage of the Dean and Chapter of Wor-
cester. The church is dedicated to All Suints.  Joseph
Neale, in 1702, gave laud, now producing £55 a year,
for teaching twenty poor boys.

DEAN (PRIOR'S), a chapelry in the parish of
Coremonk, hundred of Barton-Stacry, Andover divi-
sion, though locally in the hundred of Selborne, Alton
(North)division, of the county of SovTHAMPTON, 43 miles
(N. by w.) from Petersfield, containing 150 inhahitants.

DEAN (UPPER), a hamlet in the parish of NeTHER
Dean, hundred of Stovpewn, county of Beprorp, 31
miles (W.N.W) from Kimbolton. The population is
returned with the parish.

DEAN (WEST), a parish in the hundred of West-
nourN and SiNGLETON, rape of CuiCHESTER, county
of Svssex, 64 miles (8. 8. w.) from Midhurst, contain-
ing 622 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicaragé,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chichester, rated in
the king's books at £6. 12., endowed with £200 private
bencfaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of 8. Harrison, Esq. The church is dedicated to
St, Andrew,

DEAN (WEST), a parish in the hundred of Win-
LiNGpoN, rape of PEvENSEY, county of Sussex, 3 miles
(£.) from Seaford, containing 163 inhabitants. The
living is a dircharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's
books ut £14. 15. 5., and in the patronage of the Dean
and Chapter of Chichester. The church is dedicated to
All Saints.

DEAN (WEST), a parish in the hundred of Aw-
DERBURY, county of Wivts, 7 miles (E. by 5.) from
Salishury, coutaining, with the chapelry of East Grim-
stead, 365 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
ax_'ch!itmnury and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the
king's I_:ouks at £19. 4. 44, Francis Glossop, Esq. was
patrou in 1820. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

DEAN-HILL, a hamlet in that part of the parish
of Sanpsacr which ix iu the h of NaANTWICH,
county pulatine of Cureter, 1§ mile (8.E. by E.) from
Sandbach, with which the population is returned. '

- DEAN-PRIOR, & parish in the hundred of STax-
BOROUGH, county of Devown, 4 miles (8. 8. w.) from
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Ashburton, containing 561 inhabitants. The living is &
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Totuess, and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £21, and in the
petronage of W. Y. Buller, Esq. The church is dedi-
cuted to St. George the Martyr.

DEAN-RAW, a township in the parish of WARDEN,
north-western  division of TinpAve ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 8 miles (W.) from Hexham, con-
taining 585 inhabitants. Near the confluence of the
Allen and Harsingdale bourn, on the south side of the
township, are the remoins of an ancient building,
called Staward le Peel, which Edward, Duke of York.
in 1386, granted to the friars eremites of Hexham, to
be beld by the annual payment of five marks.

DEAN-ROW, a hamlet in the parish of WiLms-
Low, hundred of MaccLrsriELD, county palatine of
Crester, 6§ miles (N.N.W.) from Muacclesfield.  The
populution is returned with the parish.

DEAN-SCALLS, a joint township with Ullock and
Pardsey, in the parish of Dean, ALLERDALE ward above
Darwent, county of Comprrrasp, 84 miles (8. W)
from Cockermouth, contuining 369 inhubitants, There
is a manufacture of linen thread at this place,

DEANHAM, a township in that part of the parish
of Hanrpurx which ix in the north-castern division
of TinparLe ward, county of NorTHCMBERLAND, 123
miles (W. by 8.) fron Morpeth, contaming 53 inha-
bitants.

DEARHAM, a parish in Anpeunave ward helow
Darwent, county of CuMnERLAND, comprising the town-
ships of Dearham, and Ellenborough with Unerigg,
and containing 1136 inhahitants, of which number, 515
are in the township of Dearham, 6} miles (N. W.) from
Cockermouth  The living is a discharged vicarage,
the archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the
king's books at £4. 13. 4., endowed with £200 private
benefaction, £400 royal hounty, and £ 1000 paorlinmen-
tary grant, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Car-
lisle, The church, origiuully of Norman architecture,
was much moderniged by repairs in 1814 ; it has an
ancient and curiously curved font, and in the church-
yard is o sculptured cross, There are extensive col-
lieries, and a munufactory for pottery-ware in the parish ;
a considerable quantity of the coal is shipped at Mary-
port adjoining. Ewan Christian, Esq., in 1715, en-
dowed a school with about £10 per annum. Near
Unerigg-hall is the site of an old castle.

DEARNBROOK, a hamlet in that part of the pa-
rish of AruncrLirre which is in the western division of
the wapentake of Staincrirre and Ewcross, West
riding of the county of Yorxk, 8 miles (N.E.) from Settle,
The population is returned with the parish.

DEBACH, a parish in the hundred of WiLrorp,
county of SurroLk, 4% miles (N.N.W.,) from Woed-
bridge, containing 118 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, annexed to the rectory of Boulge, in
the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diecese of Nerwich
The church is dedicated to All Sgints. A trifling sun;,
out of the rents of the town lands, is paid weekly to the
perish clerk, far.teaching poor children. ; e

DEBDEN, & parish in the bundred of Urrrasrozs;
county of Esszx, 4§ miles (N.W. by W.) from Thaxted,
containing 940 inhabitants. The living is.a Y, i
the archdeacoury of Colchester, and :diocese; af . 3
rated in the king's books at £3¢, R.M. F.
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Esq. was patron in 1796. The church, dedicated to St.
Mary, has at the east end an octangular chapel, contain-
ing several handsome monuments of the Chiswells: the
font, an elegant piece of workmanship, adorned with
statues, was presented by the late Mr. Chiswell.

DEBDON, a township in the parish of RoTHBURY,
western division of Coquerparg ward, county of Nor-

. THUMBERLAND, 24 miles (N.) from Rothbury, contain-
ing 18 inhabitants. There is a chalybeate spring, eflica-
cious in scorbutic complaints : several excavations have
been made, from which oclire is obtained.

DEBENHAM, a small market town and parish, in
the hundred of TurebrLiNG, county of SurroLk, 13
miles (N.) from Ipswich, and 83 (N.E. by N.) from Lon-
don, containing 1535 inhabitants. This town derives
its name from being situated near the river Deben: from
its standing on the declivity of a hill, the strects are dry
and clean, but the roads in the vicinity are usually in
had repair from the miry state of the country. A mar-
ket for corn is held on I'riday, which is but littie
attended ; and there is an annual fair on the 24th of
June. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeacoury
of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £15. 2. 6, and in the patronage of Lord
Henniker. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, containg
some ancient monuments. Here is a free school for
twenty boys, founded in 1643, and endowed by Sir
Robert Hitcham, with £20 per annum,

DEBTLING, a parish in the hundred of Marpsrone,
lathe of AyLesrorp, county of KenTt, 2} miles (N.E.)
from Maidstone, containing 321 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Canterbury, endowed with £400 private henefaction,
and £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Archhishop of Centerbury. The church is dedicated
to St. Martin.

DECUMAN (ST.), a parish in the hundred of Wir-
LitoN and FrReemannNems, comnty of Somerser, 5%
miles (E. by 8.) from Duuster, containing 1865 inhabi-
tants, The living ie a discharged vicarage, rated in the
king's books at £10. 10. 5}., and in the peculiar juris-
diction and patronage of the Prebendury of St. Decu-
man's in the Cathedral Church of Wells. The church,
dedicated to St. Peter, is a handsome structure, with a
lofty tower, There are three places of worship tor Wes-
leyan Methodists, and two belonging to the Baptists,
The parish detives its name from St. Decombes, or De-
cumanus, whe, landing from South Wales, and finding
a perfect wildernesy, fixed upon this spot in order to
seclulle himself from the rest of the world ; and having
been murdered, was dignified by the natives with the
title of Saint. - :

. . DEDDINGTON, a parish (formerly a market town)
in the hamdred of Woorron, county of Oxrorp, con-

twining, with the townships of Clifton aud Hempton,
1847 stshabitants, of which number, 1404 are in the town
of Deddington, 16 miles (¥.by w.) from Oxford, and

89 (N.W.yfrom London. : This place, though formerly
of - som . impostence, having sent members to two
m n the reign of Edward 1, is now an

nogeiderahlé town. - -According to Dr. Plot, a castle

. gletly bullt have, either by the Saxons: or
e but ge vestiges of it con be traced, novis
, datoopi ita having been the retreat -of Piers
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Gavestone, the favourite of Edward IL, a short time
previous to his capture by the Earl of Warw.ck, and
his decapitation ou Blacklow Hill, and subsequently the
possesrion of his successor in that monarch's affections,
Hugh de Spencer, who suffered a similar fate, The
town, which has been noted for its malt liquor, con-
tuins several well-built houses, and is well supplied with
water : a branch of the Oxfurd and London canal passes
through the parish. The market has been discontinued :
but a fair for cattle is still held on the 22nd of No-
vember, A bailiff s annually appointed at the court
leet of the lord of the manor.

The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdea-
conry aml diocese of Oxford, rated in the king's books
at £15. 0. 4., endowed with £600 private hencfaction,
£200 royal bounty, and £1400 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of the Dean and Conons of Wind-
sor. The church is dedicated to St, Peter and St. Paul.
Parochial schools for hoys and girls are supported by
subacription.  Almshouses for four aged men and four
aged women, were founded in 1818, and are endowed
with property arising from various bencfactions vested
in feoffees for the benefit of the poor, producing about
£ 140 per annum. In the neighbourhood are two mineral
springs, now neglected, one of which is said to have
been highly impregnated with sulphur, Lord Chiet Jus-
tice Scroggs, who flourished in the reign of Charles I1.,
was a native of this parish; and Sir Thomas Pope, an
eminent statesman, and founder of Trinity College, Ox-
ford, is said to have heen born here, in 1507.

DEDHAM, a parish in the Colchester division of
the hundred of Lexpewn, county of Essex, 4 miles
(W. by N.) from Manningtree, containing 1651 inhabi-
tants. The living is a vicarage, in the ar-hdeaconry of
Colchester, and diocese of Loundon, rated in the king's
books at £10. 0. 24., endowed with £200 private bhene-
faction, and £300 parliamentary grant, and in the

tronage of the King, as Duke of Lancaster. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a spacions struc-
ture in the later style of Knglish architecture, having
an embattled tower at the west end, and crowned with
octagonal turrets richly pinnacled. Annexed to the
church is a lectureship which, in the beginning of the
eightecnth century, was endowed with the great tithes,
by the Rev. William Birkett, then lecturer, the able and
learned commentator on the New Testament ; the ap-
pointment belongs to the governors of the grammar-
school. Dedbam is situsted in a picturesque valley on the
river Stour, over which it has a good bridge, aftq congiste
chiefly of one strect : it had formerly the privilege of a
market on Tuesday : there is a fair for toys on Easter-
Tuesday. The clothing trade flonrished here so early as
the reign of Richard IL, but has wholly declined, and
the place is now only remarkable for the number of
genteel residences in the vicinity., A free grammar school
was built by Dane Jane Clarke, prior to 1571, when it
was endowed by William Littlebury, with a farm of one
hundred and eighty acres, for teaching twenty boys, in
aid of which, William Cardinal, in 1593, hequeathed
land, now let for £60 per annum, for the maintenance
and education of two of the boys at St. Jobn's College,
Cambridge, born at Déiham or Much Bromley; the go-
vernors. of the school, twenty-four in number, were
in ted by charter of Queen Ilizsbeth, in 1874.
The same William Littlebury, also fouml;)d and endowed
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an English achop}, and some alpshouses. John Marsh,
in. 1642, left an annuity of £86 for teaching two boys in
the school, and one in the English school,
with & housc and land to the English master, in farther
angmentation of whose salary & bequest of £4 per
annum was made by Williamm Burkitt, in 1698, which
the vicar holds in trust.

DEDWORTH, a hamlct in the parish of New WiND-
sor, hundred of RirpLEsMERE, county of Berks, 2
miles (W. by 8.) from New Windsor, with which the po-
pulation js returned.

DEENE, a parish in the hundred of Corgy, county
of NorTHAMPTON, 5} miles (E.byN.) from Rocking-
ham, containing, with the hamlet of Deenthorpe, 458
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough,
rated in the king's books at £24. 3. 64. The Earl of
Cardigan was patron in 1820. The church is dedicated
to, St. Peter. Here was anciently a priory, a cell to
the mbbey of Westminster, which was suppressed soon
after the Conquest, by consent of the abbot and convent,
who accepted an annuity in lieu of its revenues,

DEENTHORPE, a bamlet in the parish of DgENE,
bundred of Corny, county of NorTEAMPTON, 6 miles
(N.W. by w.) from Qundle, containing 224 inhabitants.

DEEP-DALE, & bamlet in that part of the parish
of Arncrirre which is in the eastern division of the
wapentake of Srarncrirre and Ewcross, West riding
of the county of York, 154 miles (N, N.E.) from Settle.
The population is returned with the parish.

DEEPING (MARKET), a market town and pansh
in the wapentake of NEss, parts of KesTeEvVEN, county
of LincoLy, 43 miles (8. 8. E.) from Lincoln, and 86 (N.
by W.) from London, containing, with some extra-paro-
chial places in the fens, 1016 inhabitants. This place
derives its name from its situation among deep or low
meadows, or pastures, formerly the receptacle of many
streams in the lowest part of the fens; and its origip
from Richard de Rulos, chamberlain to William the
Congqueror, who built several houses on the dykes which
be bad constructed to copfine within its channel the
river Welland, which frequently inundated the adjoin-
ing lands. The neighbourhood has been greatly im-
proved by draiming, which has been successfully and
extensively practised; and several tracts of land have
been recovered, and rendered fit for culture. The
bouses are in general old and inconveniently built:
there is an ample supply of water from the river Wel-
land, which is navigable, and affords facility for the con-
Wmeeofoonl,gmwuymduthuamduufm
chandige. The. market is on Weduelday the fairs are
on the second Wednesday in May, O. S., and October
10th for cattle and toys, Thehvmgulredory in the
archdeaconry and diocess of Lincoln, rated in the king's
hooksntﬁlﬁ L8, mdmthepn&magedthmwn
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-DEEPING (ST. JAMES), » parish in the wapen-
take of NEss, parts of KusteveN, county of LincoLs,
# of & mile (E.) from Market-Deeping, containing 1385
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £6. 19. p4., endowed with £400 private bene-
faction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of Sir T. Whichcote, Bart, The church, dedicated to St.
Jumes, is 8 handsome edifice, with a tower surmounted
by a spire at the west end : it was originally a chapel,
erected by the monks of Croyland abbey, and was made
parochial by Richard de Rulos. The Wesleyan Methodists
have & small place of worship. A school on the National
system has been built since 1814, wherein thirty chil-
dren are taught by a master, who receives an annual
stipend out of the income of a discretionary trust estate,
consisting of houses and land, which produces upwards
of £200 a year, left in 1635, by Rabert Tygh. The river
Welland, which is navigable for small craft, has been re-
cently restrained from inundating the land on its banks,
at a great expense. An ancient stone cross, the base of
which is twelve feet square, and its sides divided into com-
partments, ornamented with shields, was in 1819 convert-
ed into a round-house, but the original form is preserved.
At the castern end of the village there is a strong
chalybeate spring, the water of which is impregnated
with iron. A cell to the Dominican abbey at Thorney
was founded in 1139, by Baldwin Wac, or Wake ; it was
dedicated to St. James, and, as parcel of Thorney abbey,
was granted, in the 32nd of Henry VIIL, to Thomas,
Duke of Norfolk.

DEEPING (WEST), a parish in the wapentake of
Ngss, parts of KEsTEVEN, county of LiNcoLn, 14 mile
(W.8. w.) from Market-Deeping, containing 302 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in*the archdeaconry
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£9. 17. 11,, and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church, dedicated to St. Michael, has portions in the
early Euglush with insertions in the decorated and later
styles of English architectve ; the font is & fine speci-
men of the early English style.

DEEPING-FEN, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
wapentake of ErLok, parts of Horranxp, county of
Lixcovrn, 6 miles (8. w.) from Spalding, eonmnmgaga
inhabitants. This ex:a;swe ?Jltﬂct was w
part of the waste lanud formerly belonging to several pm
rishes, and is partly held by adventurers, for draining,
and partly by persons who are free from drainage ex-
peuses by the nature of their tanures; all the land i
exempt from the hndhx,andﬁ'm mhauﬁmlnﬂ
all other assessmente.

DEEPING-GATE, a hamlet in the parish of :
libexty of PxTERBOROUGH, Ceppty of Now
1§ mile (8. B.) from. uukwmmm ﬂ

inbabitants. 0%

DEERHURST, & parish partly in the lowdlvi-h
of the hudmddnmnzfm% and partly ip. tho-dawer




DEL

Trinity, end exhibiting ons in the Norman, the early
Eaogi{sh,and the desorated, styles of architecture, formerly
belonged to a priory established about 715, by the Mercian
duke, Doddo, one of the founders of Tewkesbury abbey :
thia priory having been destroyed by the Danes, was
re-founded in 980, and given by Edward the Confessor
to the Benedictine sbbey of St. Denis, in France, to
which it became a cell; upon the scizure of Alien
priories it was granted to Eton College, but Edward IV,
revoking that grant, made it a cell to the abbey of
Tewkesbury, and so it remained till the dissolution :
the remains of the structure, which have heen con-
verted into a farm-house, are in the later style of Eng-
lish architecture, much enriched with decorated tracery.
The navigable river Severn flows along the western
boundary of the parish. Deerhurst gives the title of
viscount to the noble family of Coventry.

DEFFORD, a chapelry in the parish of St. ANprEW,
PrrsnoRE, upper division of the hundred of Persnone,
county of WoRrcksTER, S miles g. W.) from Pershore,
containing 347 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
caracy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester,
rated in the king's books at £2. 13. 4. The chapel is
dedicated to St. James. )

DEIGHTON, achapeliry in the parish of NorTnav-
LERTON, wapentake of ALLemrToNsuige, North riding
of the county of Yorx, 54 milegs (N. by E.) from Nerth
.Allerton, containing 134 inhabitants.

DEIGHTON, a township in the parish of Escnick,
wapentske of Ovze and Derwenr, East riding of the
county of York, 54 miles (8. by E.) from York, con-
taining 168 inhabitants.

DEIGHTON (KIRK), a parish in the upper divi-
sion of the wa ke of Craro, West riding of the
county of Yous, comprising the townships of Kirk-
Deighton and North Deighton, and containing 512 inha-
bitants, of which number, 871 are in tha township of
Kirk.Deighton, 14 mile (N. by W.) from Wetherby, and
141 in the adjoining township of North Deighton. The
living is & rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocess of
York, rated in the king's hooks at £15. 11. 104., and
in the patronage of the Rev. Dr. Goldart. The church
is dedicated to All Saints. The river Nidd forms part
‘o the boundary, and the Warf, a beautiful stream, winds
| the southern side of the parish. A vast quantity of
Eme-stone is burnt for agricultural purposes. A Sunday
sthool was endowed by the late Sir Hugh Palliser with
%30 g your, for teaching and clothing poor children.

DELAMERE, e parish in the first division of the
gmdred of Epnisnury, county palatine of CHESTER,
Awprisiag the townships of Delamere, Eddisbury, and
Wasiber, 968 ‘ave in the township of Delamere, 53 miles
«)Mhﬂw&mm - The living is & r;}ctory not
‘i (Bange; in the archdeacoury and diocese of Chester,
i th -

424 inhubitents, of which

of the Crown. The church was
aditbcreted 4% 1817. This parish, which inchudes the
ncieist-und reyel forest of Delamere, was almost wholly

, before 1812, when
eclidnd ‘avd esectdd fato a parish by ect of
g - aflottpeptll - hatving been marwdm

g

™
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Royal, whose sumptaous abbey, completed in 1330 b
Edward I, cost £32,000 : itb;yu dedicated to our L-urt’i
Jesus Christ, the Virgin Mary, St.Nicholas, and St.
Nichasius, and in the 26th of Henry VIIL had e reve-
nue of £540. 6. 2. The sessions for!the division are
annn_ally held, on the 22nd of March, also monthly
meetinge of the county magistrates, at a new imm, called
the Abbey Arms, in the centre of the forest. At the
time of the meeting in March there are races, termed
the Tanfield bunt, at which two cups are given to be
run for by the county, and one by the trainers, Dela-
mere Forest, which once contained a great number of
red ond fallow deer, exhibits a pleasing variety of
well-wooded  hills, rich vallies for pasturage, meres
affording plenty of fish and aquatic fowl, and mosses
producing an abundance of turf and peat for fuel. Upon
the highest hill stood the Saxon fortress of Finbor-
row, and near it a city, both of which dre said to have
been founded by Ethelfieda, daughter of Alfred the Great;
the latter, called Eadesbury (the happy town), gave name
to the hundred, but the ancient residence of the chief
forester is all that now remains; this house is termed the
Chamher in the Forest, and at convenient distances
around it are neat lodges for the keepers of the several
walks, About half of the forest has been planted,
and still helongs to the crown, the remainder baving
been either sold, or allotted to different individuals.
DELAPREE, a hamlet in the parish of Harprxe-
s7ONE, hundred of WymERsLEY, county of Norrtn-
AMPTON, 1} mile (S. by E.) from Northampton, con-
taining, with the hamlets of Far-Cotton and Paper-Mills,
356 inhabitants. An abbey for nuns of the Cluniac
order was founded in the reign of Stephen, by Simon
Seiuliz, Earl of Northampton, and dedicated to St. Mary:
at the dissolution it contained ten religioms, whose re-
venue was valued at £119. 9. 74. per annum.
DEMBLEBY, a parish in the wapentake of Ave-
LAND, parts of KEsTEVEN, county of LincoLw, 6 miles
(N.W. by W.) from Folkingham, containing 58 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £6. 11. 8, and endowed with £200 royal
bounty. The Misses Buckworth were patronesses in
1805. The church is dedicated to St. Lucia.
DENBURY, a parish in the hundred of Hayror,
county of Devon, 24 miles (8.W. by 8.) from Newton-
Abbots, containing 412 inbabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £12.7. 6. The
Duke of Bedford was patron in 1798. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary. Denbury, said to have been
anciently a borough, helonged, with the manor, to the
abbey of Tavistock, the superior of which, in 1285, ob-
tained for it a weekly market and a fair ; the market
is disused, but there is a cattle fair on the 11th of Sep-
tember. A school-room has been built by subscription,
on a plot of ground given by Mr, Bartlett, of Newton-
Abbots, the National Society having contributed £25
towards defraying the expense : it is endowed, cHiefly
from the parish lands, with ahout £30 per annum, and
is conducted upon Dr. Bell's system. T
DENBY, a parish in‘the hundred of MorrzsTok
and LercavecH, county ‘of Dersy; 8 miles (NINE.)
from Derby, containing 1078 inhebitents. The liv::i
is 8 perpetusl curicy, i the ar¢hdeaconry b 7 of Derby,
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divcese of Lichfield and Coventry, endowed with £200
private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £1200
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Earl of
Chesterfield. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. Jane
Massie, in 1728, bequeathed an estate towards erecting
and endowing & free school; the ineume is £47. 10,
with a house and garden for the master, who teaches
tweaty-five children. Jobn Flamsteed, u celebrated
mathematician, and Astronomer Royal, was born here in
1646 ; hc died at Greenwich in 1719.

DENBY, a chapelry in the parish of PENisTONE,
wapentake of StaiNcross, West riding of the county
of Yonk, 7% miles (W. by N.) from Barnesley, con-
taining 1412 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curgcy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of York,
endowed with £200 private henefaction, £200 royal
hounty, and £1200 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Vicar of Penistone.  Francis Burdett,
in 1781, begucathed £ 100, the interest ti)whi(:h, amount-
ing to £6. 3. per annum, is applied towards teaching
six children.

DENCHWORTII, aparish in the hundred of WanT-
AGE, county of Brrks, 24 miles (N.W. by N.) from Want-
age, containing 254 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of
Salishury, rated in the king's books at £7. 10. 10., en-
dowed with £600 private benefaction, £200 royal
bounty, and £600 parliamentary grant, and m the
patronage of the Provost and Fellows of Worcester
College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. James,
Richard Gilgrasse, in 1729, bequeathed £50 for the
instruction of children, which, with a donation of £50
from another henefactor, produces £8. 16. per annum,
applied in aid of a Natioual school.

DENDRON, a chapelry in the parish of ALpinG-
iiaM, hundred of LoNspaLg, north of the sands, county
pelatine of Lancastenr, 2% miles (8.8.E.) from Dalton,
The population is returned with the parish. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond,
and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £ 600 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Rector of Aldingham. The chapel, erected by
Robert Dickenson, in 1642, was rebuilt about fifty years
ago, at the expense of Thomas Green, Esq., of Gray's Inn,
London. Robert Dickenson, in 1644, also founded a
school, with an endowment of £200, in augmentation
of which, John Simpson, in 1770, bequeathed £ 10, and
‘Thomas Troughton, in 1774, left the interest of £100:
Simpson's endowment has been lost, but the dividends
arising from the other bequests urc paid to the curate,
who keeps the rehool,

DENERDISTAN, otherwise DENSTON, a parish
in the hundred of RisBrIDGE, county of gun‘uz.x, 53
miles (N ) from Clare, contammg 327 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Sudbury, and diogese of Norwich, endowed with £400
royal bouuty, and £%00 parliamentary grant, and in
the patronage of General Robi The church is
dedicated to St. Nicholas.

DENFORD, a parishin the hundred of Huxrok,
mn of NorTaamrron, 1§ mile (8.) from Thrapston,

ing 310 inhabitants. The living is & discharged

wﬁﬁimmmd in the archdeaconry of North-

diocese of Peterborough, rated in the 8
48, 10, endowed w:tﬁm pwmm

20

DEN

faction, and £200 royal bounty. Thomas Burton, Esq.
was patron in 1822, The chureh, dedicated to the Holy
Trinity, is principally in the early style of English
architecture, with a tower and spire.

DENGE-MARSH, a member of the town and
cinque-port of Nxw RoMNEY, in the parish of Lybb,
liberty of RomNEY-Manrsa, though locally in the hun-
dred of Langport, lathe of Snepway, county of KenT,
14 mile (S. by E.) from Lydd. It is bounded by the
English chunnel on the south, where stunds Dengeness
light-house, for the guidance of mariners, which was pro-
jected by a Mr. Allen, of Rye, in the reign of James 1.

DENGIE, a parish in the hundred of Deneig,
county of Essex, 4 miles (8. by W.) from Bradwell,
containing 234 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
the archdeacoury of Essex, and diocese of London,
rated in the king's books at £13. The Rev. J. H. Ste-
phenson was patron in 1825, There is also a sinecure,
called Bacon's portion, rated at £4. The church is
dedicated to St, Jame

DENHAM, a parish in the hundred of Stoker,
county of Buckincuam, 2% miles (N.N.W.) from Ux-
bridge, containing 1189 inhabitauts, The living is u
rectory, in the archdeacoury of Buckingham, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's hooks at £19. 9. 4.
Benjamin Way, Esq. was putr(m in 1797. The church,
dedicated to St. Mary, contdins some interesting mouu-
ments.  There is a place of worship for Wesleynn
Methodists, The river Colne and the Grand Junction
conal pass through the parish. Sir William Bowyer,
in 1721, gave £30 per annum, with a house for o master
and a mistress, for instructing fifteen boys and fifteen
girls. A school-room has been erected in that part of
the village called Cheapside, and was opened in 1820 ;
the children are taught on the British#ystem.

DENHAM, a parish in the hundred of Hoxwy,
county of SurroLk, 2 miles (E.) from Eye, containing
259 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, to
which the vicarage of Hoxne is annexed, in the arch-
deaconry of Suffulk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in
the king’s hooks at £5. 0. 10. T. Maynard, Esq. was
patron in 1794. The church is dedicated to St.John
the Baptist.

DENHAM., a parish in the hundred of Rissriber,
county of SUFFOLK, 7% miles (W.-by &) from Bury-
St. Edmund's, containing 166, inhabitants. The living.
is a perpetunl curacy, in the archdeamw of Sudbury,,
and diocese of Norwich. James ; hsq was
patron in 1813. 2% ;

DENMEAD, ling in the
of I—Lumuuon, down division of ¢hs - county .of
SOUTHAMPTON, 73 miles (B.E. by E.) from Bi-hep‘
Waltham. The population is returned with the :

DENNABY, a township in the parish of Mx
BOROUGH, southera division of the wapentake of STRAZ
of the gbunty v

rorTR and Ticeuins, West ridi £
Yonx,ﬂ*mxlea(N.E by N.) from h&m,oqnm
ing 141 inhabitants.

DENNEY, a in themhru{ mea.
hundred of Non#msTow; emnt.y of Oammm;, ﬂ
miles (N.N.E.) from Themaan

turned with the pavish. ctmn,abhq

wm
. of Ely, with-a.church dedioaged to- 8t, Jemes apd. St
Leonard,

was founded here iu the-twelfth centwry.:iang:
in the next was; occupied: bxmm'rmm:vm
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the 15th of Edward III., Mary, Dowager Countess of
Pembroke, converted it into an abbey for nuns mi-
noresses, to the honour of the Blessed Virgin and St,
Clare, to which the monastery at Waterbeach was united :
at the dissolution, there were in Denney abbey twenty-
five nuns, whose revenue was valued at £218. 0, 1.

DENNINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Hoxng,
county of SurroLk, 2% miiles (N.) from Framlingham,
conteining 438 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £ 36. 3. 4. 8. Long, Esq.
was patron in 1808. The church is dedicated to St.
Mary. Nathan Wright, Esq., in 1657, bequeathed land,
now producing €10 per annum, for apprenticing pour
children. The Earl of Stradbroke enjoys the title of
Baron Rous, of Dennington, which was conferred in
1796,

DENNIS (ST.), a parish in the eastern division of
thie hundred of Pownir, county of CorNwaLL, 5 miles
(8.L. by 8.) from St. Columb Majgr, containing 592 in-
hebitants, The living is a perpetual curacy annexed to
the rectory of St. Michael Carhaise, in the archdeaconry
of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter.

DENSHANGER, a hamlet in the parish of Passexn-
uaM, hundred of Cienky, connty of NorTHAMPTON,
14 mile (8.W.) from Stony-Stratfurd. The populution is
returned with the parish. .

DENSTON, a township in the parish of AuvETON,
southern division of the hundred of TormoxsLow,
county of Svavrorp, 54 miles (N.) from Uttoxeter,
containing 230 inhabitants.

DENT, a chapelry in the parish of SkpnErGH, west-
ern division of the wapentake of StTaincrrrre and
Ewcross, West riding of the countyof York, 6 miles
(5. E. by 8.) frof Sedbergh, containing 1782 inhahi-
tants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdea-
canry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester, endowed
with £ 400 private henefaction, £200 royal bounty, and
£300 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Vicar of Sedbergh. The chapel is dedicated to St. An-
drew, There is a place of worship for Independents.
A free grammar school was founded for the maintenance
of a master and an usher, by charter of James L., who
ordained that it should be placed under the direction of
fifteén governors, who are a body corporate : it is not
Jkaown by whoni*it was'endowed, but the income is about
% 28 ayear, and there are from twenty to thirty pupils,
some of who taught the classics. :

DENTONS ~chapelry in that -pare of the parish of
JGAINFORD" A 18 in the j rm division of
» _ , county palatine @BurHAM, 53 miles
) ‘#rom Darlington, containing 125 inhabitauts,
chepel;’ deflicated to &t. Mary, was rebuilt about
0. - Denton; now-& small village, was anciently a con-
prablé town, vestiges-of which are still discernible ; it
f:to Have been burnt by Maleolm, King of Scotland,
his'wdvance to Clevéland, - ;

DENFN, a parish in the hundred of Norman-
“ewons; iy of Hosrmneoon, 14 mile (8. W.) from

90 inhabitants, The living ina dis-
n'the archdeacpnty of Huntingdon, and
vatsd inthe king s books at £5. 13, 64,
aftia Bxacutore of the late Cap-

. M}
abeout 1665, by Sir John Cotton, Sir
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Robert Pfruce Cotton, Bart., a celebrated antiquary, whose
menuscripts, called the Cottonian Manuscripts, are now
in the British Museum, was horn here in 1570,

DENTON, a parish partly in the hundred of King-
HAMFORD, and partly in that of Eastry, lathe of St
AvuGusTINE, county of Kent, 9 miles (R.8.E) from
Canterbury, containing 196 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Can-
terbury, rated iu the king's books at £5. 19. 44., and
in the patronage of Sir Egerton Brydges, Bart. The
chureh, dedicated to St. Mary Magdulene, is o small
edifice mostly in the early style of English architecture,
with an east window in the decorated style.

DENTON, a parish in the hundroed of Suamweny,
lathe of Avresrorp, county of KEnt. The population
ig returned with the parish of Chalk. The church, which
was dedicated to St, Mary, has been long desecrated, and
the cemetery converted into a farm-yard.”

DENTON, a ghapelry in the parish of Mancugsre 2,
hundred of Satrornp, county palatine of Lancasten,
33 miles (N, E. by N.) from Stockport, containing 201
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in th
archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with
£400 private benefaction, £800 royal hounty, and £ 464
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Earl
of Wilton. The church, dedicated to St. James, was
erected about 1530, and has portions in the early and
decorated styles of English architecture, with somc
fragments of stained glass in the windows. The Wes-
leyan Methodists have a place of worship here, A free
school has been erected and is supported by subscription,
affording the means of instruction to ahout three hun-
dred children of Denton and Haughton. The village
probably derived its name from Dane-town, an etymology
countenanced hy the appellations Dane-headbenk and
Daneditch-bourne, places in the neighbourhood. The
manufacture of hats, both for home trade and exporta-
tion, is earried on wpon a very large scale; and coal is
obtained at several places within the township.

DENTON, a parish in the soke of GRANTHAM, parts
of KesTEVEN, county of LincoLn, 4 miles (S.W. by W.)
from Grantham, containing 577 iuhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoh,
rated in the king's books at £18. 8, 4., and in the pa-
tronage of the Prebendary of North Grantham in the
Cathedral Church of Salisbury. The church is dedicuted
to St. Andrew. About 1727, a mosaic pavement, and
several large pieces of Roman bricks, composing part of
some ancient foundations, were discovered in Denton
fields.

DENTON, a parish in the hundred of Earsuam,
county of NorvroLk, 4} miles (N.E.) from Harleston,
containing 601 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £24, and in the patronug.
of the Archbishop of Canterbury, who appoints a fellov:,
or one who has heen o fellow, of Merton College, Oxford.
The church, dedicated to St. Mary, stands on a high bill,
at the foot of which is the church-yard and village.

DENTON, = parish in the hundred of WymeRsLEY,
county of NorTHAMPTON, 6} miles (E.B.E) from
Northampton, contaifling 475 inhabitants.  The living,
which: may be considered a joint rectory, is divided be-
tween the rectors of Whiston and Yardley-Hastings, who
perform single duty every alternate yeer; it is'in the
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archdeaconry of Northampton and diocese of Peter-
borough. There are two farms in the parish, one of
which, containing about one hundred. and forty acres
was given to the rector of Whiston, and the other,
comprising ahout sixty-four acres, was given to the
rector of Yardley-Hastings. The church, dedicated to St.
Margaret, has received an addition of one hundred and
sixty sittings, of which one hundred and fifty-two are
free, the Incorporated Soeiety for the cnlargement of
churches and chapele having granted £100 toward de-
fraying the expense. Children of this parish are ad-
mitted into the free school at Yurdley-Hastings.

DENTON, a chapelry in the parish of CubnxspEN,
hundred of BuLrincros, county of Oxrorp, 64 miles
(W. by N,) from Tetsworth, containing 134 inhabitants,

DENTON, a parish in the hundred of BisnorsTone,
rape of Pevensey, county of Sussex, 14 mile (N.E.)
from Newhaven, containing 133 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Lewes,
and divcese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at
£14. 19. 6., endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Crown. The church, dedicated to St. Leonard, is partly
in the carly English style, and partly in the decorated
style of architecture, Denton is within the liberty of
the duchy of Lancaster.

DENTON, a chapelry in that part of the parish of
O1Ley which s in the lower division of the wapentake
of Craro, West riding of the county of Yorxk, 5§ miles
(N.W. by w.) from Otley, containing 192 inhabitants.
The living is a donative, in the patronage of Sir C. C. Ib-
hetson, Bart. Edward Fairfux, the translator of Tasso,
and his descendants, Ferdinando and Thomas, succes-
sively Lords Fairfax, and commanders in the parliamens
tary army, were born here; the last, in addition to his
high military fame, was noted for his attachment to an-
tiquarian pursuits, and was once owner of the Dods-
worth MSS. now preserved in the Bodleian library at
Oxford.

DENTON (EAST), a township in the parish of Nxw-
AURN, western division of CasrLe ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 3 miles (W.N.W.) from Newcastle
upon Tyne, containing 548 inhabitants, The remains of
a chapel and cemetery were discovered here about fifty
years ago. A Denton Burn are vestiges of the old
Roman wall, faced with stone, in the vicinity of which
many remarkable coins and medals have heen found.

DENTON (NETHER), a parish in EsgparLe ward,
county of CuMBERLAND, 64 miles (E.N.E.) from Bramp-
ton, containing 278 inhabitants, The living is & dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Carlisle, rated in the king's books at £4. 5. 2,, endowed
with £400 private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Carlisle, The
church is dedicated to St. Cuthbert. The parish is
bounded on the north by the river Irthing, and abounds
with free stone and lime-stone, besides a considersble
quantity of shell.marl. Denton hall was formerly the
seat of the Dentons, the old tower of which has been
converted into a farm-house, . :

DENTON (UPPER), a parish in EsgkpiLe ward,
county of puunnmnn. 6} miles §8. N.B.). from. Bramp-
ton, containing 100 inhabitants. The living. is &.pexpé-
tual curacy, in the archdeaconry and dioosse af Gacliale,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and.£800 roysl
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bounty, and in the patronage of the Earl of Carlisle
The parish is bounded on the north and weat by the
river Irthing. _

DENTON (WEST), s township in the parish of
Newsurw, western division of CasTLE ward, county of
NORTEUMBERLAND, 8 miles (W. by N.) from Newcastle
upon Tyne, containing 404 inhabitants.

DENVER, a parish in the hundred of CLAackcLoSE,
county of NorFOLK, 1§ mile (8.) from Market-Downham,
containing 770 inhabitants, The living is a rectory in
medieties, viz., St, Peter's Easthall, and St. Michael's
Westhall, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £ 10, 13.4.,
and in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Caius
College, Cambridge. The church, dedicated to St. Mary,
is built of rough stone, with a square embattled tower.

DENWICK, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
ALxwick which i8 in the southern divieion of Bam-
BroucH ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 14
mile (E. by N.) from Alnwick, with which the popu-
lation is returned. There is a handsome arch, erected
by the Duke of Northumberland, over which a private
road passes imto a field, called White Cross Howl, from
a cross which formerly stood there, and where persons
dying of the plague, which once infected this place,
were buried,

DEOPHAM, a parish in the hundred of Forenos,
county of NorvroLxk, 3§ miles (W. by 8,) from Wymond-
ham, containing 471 inbhabitants. The living i& a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£5. 7. 11, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Dean
and Chapter of Cauterbury. The church is dedicated
to St. Andrew. There was formerly a petrifying spring
at the foot of a remarkable linden tree in the parish.

DEPDEN, a parish in the hundred of Risuriper,
county of SurroLk, 74 miles (8.W.) from Bury-St. Ed-
mund's, containing 319 inhabitants. The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £10. 11. 5§., and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary. '

DEPTFORD, a town partly in the castern division
of the hundred of BrixTuN, county of Surrey, but
principally in the hundred of Bracxuears, lathe of
Surton at Honk, county of KENT, 4 miles (E.) from
London, contsining 20,818 inhabitants. This place,
according to m‘:.ﬁ was at the time of the Norman
survey, called Moreton, or town .in the marsh;,j

Grechwich, and Depeford Stronde, from 3 deeph

the river Ravensbonrne, of which the faouth forms the
emall mstuary now salled Deptford cveek. . Edwaxd IIL
frequently resided here, in a place called the Stone-

; but the thwn was of little importance till the

]
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wereafterwards made hy Queen Elizabeth and Charles II.,
which were confirmed by James II,, in 1685. In 1671,
an inundation took place here, by which a prodigious
quantity of cattle was destroyed in the marshes; the
cables of ships at anchor were hroken, and the water
of the Thames rose to the height of ten feet. The
houscs in the upper part of the town are in general
nent and well built; the streets are paved, und lighted
with ges, and the inhahitants are amply supplied with
water by the Kent Water Works Company. The main
support and consequence of Deptford arises from its ex-
cellent docks. The royal dock-yard includes a space of
about thirty-one acres of land : here the ships of the royal
navy were formerly built and repaired, and here the royal
yachts are still generelly laid up. The old Store-house,
which consisted only of the building on the north side of
the present quadrangle, was erccted in the year 1513. A
spacious store-house, parallel with thig, and of the same
length, weae completed about the year 1796; and a long
range of smaller store-houses was built in 1780, under the
direction of Sir Charles Middleton. This yard contains
three elips for building second and third-rate ships, a
double and a single wet dock, a basin, and two mast-
ponds. lere are also a large smithy for muking anchors,
&c., mast-houses, sheds for timber, a mould-loft, various
workshops, and houses for the officers. The establish-
ment consists of a master-shipwright, master-attendant,
store-kecper, clerk of the checque, clerk of the survey,
surgeon, &e., the whole being under the inspeetion of the
Navy Board. In the reigns of James I. and Charles I,
the treasurer of the navy resided bere. A short distance
north of the king's yard, by the side of the river, and in
the parish of St. Paul, stands the victualling-office, built in
1745, on the north side of the ancient range of store-
houses, called the Red House, and new store-houses have
since been added. Besides which it has an extensive
cooperage and brewhouse, slaughtering-houses, houses for
curing beef, pork, &c., bake-houses, and other buildings.
Near the victualling office is Deadman's dock-yard, be-
lomging to the Evelyn family, in which ships of seventy-
four gums have, at differen$ times, been built; and
there are two other private docks in the parish of St. Ni-
cholas. The only branch of manufacture carried on to
amy great extent is that of earthenware, known by the
name of Deptford-ware. There are works for the refining
of and silver, and a laboratory for the making of
sulphuric, nitric, and oxalic acids, and other chemical
productions, by a process which, shough it has heen
practined for some years in France, was only introduced
giand ip 1827, by the present proprietors of these
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ot the expense of the county. Another bridge has re-
cently been erected over Deptford creck, near its Jjune-
tion with _t.he Thlmeﬂ,hy a company called the Deptﬁll'd
Creek Bridge Company, thus forming a direct commu-
m.cn;‘tmn between the lower part of Deptford and Green-
wich.

The town is within thce jurisdiction of the county
magistrates, who sit daily, and hold a petty session for
the division weekly on Saturday; and within that
of the court of requests for the recovery of debts not
exceeding 40s., held at Greenwich, of which twelve com-
missioners are appointed from each parish: the banks
of the Ravensbourne are under the superintendence of
commissioners of sewers, whose juricdiction extends
from its source to Lambard's wall, ncar Greenwich. Ian
1730, the town was divided into the two parishes of St.
Nicholas and St. Paul, the former of whigh, including
the old town, is small, the latter esltends into the
county of Surrey: they are in the archdeaconry end
diocese of Rochester, and the livings are loth in
the patronage of Mrs. Mary Droke and Mrs. Ann
Drake Tyrwhit Drake. The living of St. Nicholas' is
a vicarage, rated in the king's books at £12. 17, 34.:
the church, with the exception of the tower, was re
built upon a larger scale in 1697. The living of St.
Paul’s is & rectory, not in charge: by act of parlinment
in 1730, £3500, arising from the duty on coul, was al-
lotted to be invested in the purchase of land for the main-
tenance of the rector; it was also enacted that the
churchwardens, in whom are vested four acres of glebe
taken out of the old parish, should pay the rector £70
per annum, in lien of fees for vaults and burials, except
when the corpse is carried into the charch. The church,
erccted in the reign of Queen Anne, under ar act of
parliament for building fifty new churches in and near
London, is a fine structure in the Grecian style of archi-
tecture, with a tower surmounted by a spire; the roof
of the nave is supported by a haudsome range of pillars,
and the east window is ornamented with modern painted
glass. There are places of worship for Baptists, the
Society of Friends, Independents,and Wesleyan Me-
thodists. Dr. Robert Breton, in 1672, left £500 for the
endowment of a grammar school for the education of
thirty children, but e considerable part of the benefac-
tion was lost; the remainder, producing £6. 16. per
annum, is paid to a master, who teaches six childrem of
each parish, and who aleo receives £5 per annum, and
£ 2. 17. for stationery, for teaching five boys of the pa-
rish of St. Nicholas, from a bequest by Mr. Thomas
Fellows, who in 1758 left £1000 threc per eents, m
trust to the minister and churchwardens, from which a
schoolmistress also receives £5 per snnum for teaching
five girls ; these children are clotbed and provided with
books. A charity school was founded in 1722, by
Desn Stanhope, then vicar of Deptford; a school-house
was built on a plot of land given by Mr. Robert Grands-
den ; it was subsequently endowed with wvarious bene-
factions for the instruction and clothing of sixty-five
boys and thirty girls. Dean Stanhope also bequeathed
to this charity £6 per annum, for apprenticing and

ing the children, which was augmented, in 1790, by a
beguest of £150, from Dr. Wilson, vicar of St. Nicholes';
the sanual income arising from the property belongin
to the achool is £218, which sum is greatly oy
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There are two almshouses belunging to the Corpo-
ration of the Trinity House, for decayed pilots and
masters of ships, or their widows; one, which adjoins
the church-yard, was built in the reign of Henry VIIL.,
and conmsists of twenty-five apartments; the other
which is situated in Church-street, was huilt about
the close of the seventeenth century, and contains
fifty-six apartments : it forms a spacious guadrangle,
in the centre of which is a statue of Captain Maples,
who, in 1680, contributed £1300 towards the building,
Here the brethren of the Trinity House hold their an-
nual meeting on Trinity-Monday, when they attend di-
viue service at St. Nicholag' church. The parish of St.
Paul has the right of presenting one pensioner to cer-
tain almshouses at St. Clements near Oxford, founded
by Edmund Boulter, Ezq. A dispensary, open to poor
invalids belonging to the town and the neighhouring
parishes, and a savings-bank, have been established :
here is also a mechanics’ institution,  The Gun Tavern,
lately pulled down, is said to have been the residence of
the Earl of Nottingham, who was Lord High Admiral in
the reign of Elizabeth. Sayes court, the ancient mansion-
house of the manor of West Greenwich, go culled from
its having been possessed in the thirteenth and fourteenth
centuries hy the family of Say, became (in consequence
of hiz marriage with the daughter of Sir Richard Browne,
who then held it under the crown,) the residence of John
Evelyn, Esq., the celebrated author of the “Sylva,” who,
after the Restoration, obtained a lease of Sayes court
and the demesne lands, for ninety-nine years. The poct
Cowley resided here while composing his gix Latin
hooks on plants, in which work the fine gardens be-
longing to Mr. Evelyn are supposed to have afforded
him great assistance. Mr. Evelyn also lent the use
of this residence to the Czar Peter, while pursuing
the study of naval architecture, in 1608, in the neigh-
bouring dock-yard : the mansion was pulled down in
1748, and the work-house crected on its site,

I)EPTF()R_D, a tything in the parish of Wivry, hun-
dred of Brance and Dove, county of Wirts, 8 miles
(N.W.) from Wilton. The population is returned with
the parigh.

DERBY, a horough and
market town, possessing se-
parate jurisdiction, lecally
in the hundred of MoRryvxs-
{. Toxand Litcnuncy, county
(%8 of Dersy, of which it is the
capital, 15 miles (W.) from
Nottingham, 29 miles (N.W.)
from Leicester, and 126
(N.W) from London, on the
river Derwent, and on the
high road to Manchester,
t'Ulltlllllng 17,423 inhabitants, and, including parts of
certain parishes which extend beyond the limits of the
borough, 19,648, but the population since the censue
of 1821 has greatly imcreased. The origin of this
town is mot known: by the Saxons it was called

Noethworthig, end by the Danes Derwentby, but more

cogmaoenly Deoraby, of which Dm'py is -a vorruption,
probably referring to its situation on the Derwent,

King ¥gbert constituted the tpwa .. royal . burgh,

and--a mint- was established i it.. Tt wan possessed
by the Danes and Saxong alternately durisgheis con-.
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tests. In 874 it was occupied by Halfolen, a Danish
chief, whose head-quarters were at Rippandune, now
Repton.  Alfred baving defeated the Danes, planted
a colony here in 880, and constituted this ‘the chief
town in the county. The Danes, after a sécond de-
feat by the same monarch, regained possession of the
place, and retained it till 918, when being taken by
surprise, they were completely defeated by the heroie
Ethelfleda, Countess of Mercia, and daughter of King
Alfred, “hn, obtaining possession of the town, held 5t
till her death. The Danes, however, retook it soon ufter
her decease, bnt were again dispossessed by King Ed-
mund L. in 942. In 1040, during the reign of Edward
the Confessor, it contained two hundred und forty-three
hurgesses, at which time two-thirds of the profits from
tolls, &c. helonged to the king, and the remaining third
to the Earl of Mercia. In 1066, the king of Norway,
at the instigation of Tostig, Harold’® brother, invaded
the northern parts of Englund, on which many of the
inhahitants of Derby, who were then vassals of Edwin,
Earl of Mercia, quittéd their homes, and joined the forces
of Morcar, Earl of Northumberland, to oppose the
mvader : but they were defeated with great slaughter,
only four days before the latter and his army were
destroyed by Harold. On the victor’s return to en-
counter William, Duke of Normandy, he recraited his
army at Derby, to which is to be ascribed the dimivution
of the number of burgesses; for at the time of the Nor-
man survey, they amounted to only one hundred, and
of these forty-three were minors. The town was given
by the Conqueror to his illegitimate son, William Peverel,
and an augmentation of its privileges ensued, which
was followed by a revival of industry, aud an increase
of its population. In the rebellion of 1745, Derby
was occupied by Charles James Stuart, son of the Pre-
tender ; but, on the approach of the royal army, com-
manded by the l)uqt\ of Cumberland, he retreated,
after levying a contribution of two or three thousand
poymnds on the inkabitants dunnwshort stay of two
days. ¢

Derby is pleagantly situated jn a valley which is open
to the south, the mmntry in tiy ection being flat and
low: a small b h it under nine stone
bridges. The well built; for, not-
withstanding 15e3 sye rity in their appear-
ance, many . of or houses are spacious
and handsome : it 3uedi; ht.ed with gas ; the streets are
regularly paved, ar cqns:d@nhh : ement has re-
cently taken place. An elegupt & brldge of three
elliptical arches, over the river Derim
some entrance to the town from
roads in ‘the neighbourhggd have recently
proved under the superintendence of Mr. M'Adam, and
are in @ very good state. Water is abunidantly supplied
from the Derwem, s of pipes and machinery. .

The Derby P! 1 Society; whfchhu for, its
object the pmmatirp.tf scientific e, by acom-
sional meetings el tonversation, a8
circulatien of - bo ‘wag fpunded bym‘-
1788 it haw:a o gable number of

are in possession  extensive ._und'.v_ﬂm"iﬁg
under the title of WRe'Dephy Literary
Society, the objeots.of whieh sre the
and scientifio enquizise, by:the, progds
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sion of papers or essays, which may be written on any
subjéct connested with literature or science, excluding
only the practical departments of medicine and surgery,
politics and religion ; but this institution has been al-
most wholly discontinued. There are eight or ten other
institutions in the town, one of which is devoted exclu-
sively to the cultivation of French literature. An agri-
cultoral society was established many years ago, which
holds two meetings annually : there are also a mecha-
nics' institution, with a library attached to it; a perma-
nent subscription library; & theological book society, &c.
The races, which are of considerable repute, are held on a
fine course, called the Siddals, and are much frequented.
The walks in the vicinity of the town present a variety
of scenery, and are very pleasant.

Derby enjoyed, under a license from King John, the
exclusive privilege of dyeing cloth, but this has wholly de-
clined : it is neverthcless a place of considerable trade.
Until of late years, silk was the principal article of
manufacture ; bhut to that it has added those of cotton
and porcelain, which are carried on to'a great extent. The
first silk-mill erected in England was built here, ahout
1718, by Mr. John Lombe, who procured in Italy (by
means of bribing two workmen, who accompanied him to
England,) drawings and models of the silk machinery
then in use in that conntry, for which he took out a pn-
tent: its operations are to wind, double, and twist the silk,
so as to render it fit for weaving. After the death of
Mr. Lombe, about four years afterwards, caused as it
is stated by means of poison, administered to him by an
Italian female, sent over for that purpose, his cousin
Sir Thomas Lombe, relinquished the patent, in consider-
ation of the sum of £ 14,000, whereby the manufacture
was thrown open, and the trade rapidly incrensed.
The factory stands upon an island in the Derwent,
and is built on large piles, over which are turncd
thirteen arches of stone: the original machinery has

been replaced by other less cumbrous, and far more
gimple in its co ion: it i& mow worked by a
water-wheel, twenty- feet in diameter; and such

has been the progressive increase of this branch of ma-
nufacture, that there Mow nine sitk-mills, worked
either by water or steam. The weavij of silk was also
introduced here in 188k The i@ manufacture
was established in 1798, and has

perfection ; it gives employment
beautifal

jon of this establishment.

“white biscuit
The

mach for c polishing,'and turning the Der-
byshire marble ‘worked by steam; and a variety
nr ; which will bear comparison witk

> fign artists; is produced here. In
1756, Mr. Jededizh. invented and introduced “ The
od o frame,” for which he obtained

 patent ; aud silk, ‘votton, and i worsted stockings,

The first fire-pdof mill for spinniug
in*17p3, anll there is a con-
on in cotton-yara for making
: ne, ferrets, and tapes, in
: id bar iron, shot,
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The navigation of the Derwent was closed on the
completion of the Derby canal; the latter communica-
ting by branches, each about eight miles in length, with
the Trent and Erwash canal, thus rendering the former
unnecessary. The company entrusted with the manage-
ment of the canal were erapowered by act of parliament
toraise the sum of £90,006, and are required, when the
dividend exceeds cight per cent., to reduce the tolls :
then; is a large und convenient wharf for the purpose of
loading and unloading the bouts. The market days are
Wedunesday and Friday; and on ev cry alternate Tuesday
there is one for fat cattle. The fairs are Leld on the
Monday after January 6th, January 25th, March 21st
and the two following days, Friday in Easter-week, Fri-
day after May lst, Friday in Whitsun-week, July 25th,

September 27th, and the two following days, a e
Friday before October 4th ; those in Mnrn}lr‘ﬂ'?ﬁ%mwr
are great cheese fairs; the others are principully for cattle,

Henry L granted the town of Derby to Ralph, Earl
of Chester, nnd gave the inhabitants a charter of in-
corporation ; this charter was materially altered, and
their privileges were subsequently enlarged by Henry 11.,
Richard 1., and John. Jumes 1. gave the corporation
authority to hold courts of record, made them inde-
pendent of any foreign jurisdiction, and empowered them
to hold “ sessions quarterly, two courts leet, und six
fairs yearly.,” In 1638, mention js first made of a
mayor; the corporation, antecedently to that period,
having heen styled “the Bailiffis and Burgesses of the
town of Derby.” In 1680, the charter was surren-
dered to Charles I1., and a new one, now in force, was
obtained in 1688, by which the government of the ho-
rough is vested in a mayor, nine aldermen, fourteen
brethren, and fourteen capital burgesses, who together
constitute the common conncil ; and these appoiny a re-
corder, town-clerk (who is also coroner), chamberlain,
four serjeants at mace (one of whom is keeper of the
gaol), six constables, and other inferior officers, elected
annually on the first Monday after St. Luke’'s day. The
mayor is chosen from among the aldermen, by the alder-
men and brethren, and the aldermen from among the
brethren, these last being appointed from the capital
burgesses. The mayor, the late mayvor (who i always
deputy mayor, with equal powers), and the four senior
aldermen, are justices of the peace: the mayor, alder-
men, and burgesses, must reside within the borongh,
otherwise they can neither locally vote, nor exercise
any official function. The freedom of the borough is
inherited by all the sons of a freeman born within the
borough, or acquired by serving apprenticeship to a re-
sident freeman, or by gift from the corporation. Ses-
sions for the horough are held by the mayor quarterly,
on days appointed by himself. A court of record is
heid every second Tuesday, before the mayor, his deputy,
the recorder, and the town-clerk, in which pleas to any
smwount arc cognizable ; and a court of requests, for the
recovery of debts under 40s., was established by act of
parliament in the 6th of George 111, which is held every
third Tuesday. Derby has sent two members to par-
liament ever since 1204 : the right of election is vested
in the free burgesses, of whom there are about two thou-

sand ; the mayor is the returning officer. The Duke
of Devonshire’s influence predominates in parliamentary
elections. The old town-hall, erected on the site of the

ancient guildhall, shout the year 1730, ﬂi:nugh in itselfl &
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good building, was found, from its isolated situation in
the market-place, to be a great obstruction to business,
and has therefore heeu taken down : a new vine, nearly
in a line with the south side of the market-place, has
been erected : it presents a handsome appearance, aud,
heing built on arches, is connected with a new market-
Liouse huilt by the corporation. The assizes and general
quarter sessions were formerly held in the county-hall,
a spacions handsome building of freestoue, built in 1660 ;
new courts of u more comenient construction having
been subsequently erccted,  Adjoining the hall, on the
right, is a handsome brick building, erected in 1811, for
the accommodation of the judges ; and on the left an botel.
The town gaol, which until lutely was the county prison,
is & plain, solid, brick building, erected about 1756; but
notedmifting of the arrangements required by a late act
of parliamely - new county gaol and house of correction,
affording ample menns of classification, has been erected
upon the radinting principle, at an expense of £63,000 :
it comprises one hundred and sixty-four cells,and twenty-
one courts, a chapel and a honse for the governor.
Derby is divided into five parishes, viz., All Suints',
St. Werbureh's, St. Alkmund's, St. Peter's, and St. Mi-
chael's, of which the last three extend into the hun-
dred of Morleston and Litchurch ; they are all in the
archdeaconry of Derby, and dincese of Lichfield amd
Coventry. The living of All Saints’ is a perpetunal cur-
acy, in the patronage of the Mayor and Corparation.
The church, which, prior to the dissolution, was colle-
giate, is considered the principal architectural ornament
of the town : the body, erected in 1725, from a design
hy Gibbs, at an expense of £4000, ix in the Roman’
Doric style, and the interior particularly light, elegant,
and spacious: the tower, one hundred and eighty feet
high, erected in the reign of Henry V1L, is in the later
English style, the upper purt being richly ornament-
ed with huttresses, pinnacles, battlements, and tracery.
Rich open sereen-work of iron, said to have cost £500,
separates the east end of the church from the place al-
lotted for divine worship, in the centre of which is
an elegant chaneel. Over an altar-piece of Derhyshire
marble is a fine painting by Rawlinson; and on the
southern side of the chancel a monument to the memory
of William, Earl of Devonshire, who died in 1628, and
his countess, whose figures stand under a dome, nearly
twelve feet in height: there is also a splendid mural
monument to the memory of the celebrated Countess
of Shrewshury, executed under her own inspection. The
living of St. Alkmund's is a vicarage, not in charge, in
the patronage of the Mayor and Corporation. The
church is supposed to have been originally founded early
in the ninth century,in honour of Alkmund, son of Alured,
the deposed King of Northumberland, who being slain
in battle, while endeavouring to reinstate his father, was
first interred at Lilleshall, in Shropshire, but removed
thence and deposited in this church. Many pilgrimages
were formerly made to his tomb, which, in point of mi-
racles, was exceeded in renown only by that of Thomas
A Becket, at Canterbury, The chapelries of Little Eaton
and Darley are in this parish, though without the limits
of the borough. The living of St.Peter's is & .
vicarage, rated in the king's books at £8,and in-the
of the Rev. T. Wright's family, of Marluét-
Bosworth. The church is ancient, but of uncertaifl date.
The living of St.“:e_l'bnwh_s is a discharged#icarage,
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rated in the king's books at £5. 12. 8., and in the pa
tronage of the Crown. The original churgh of St. Wer
burgh is supposed to have been built prior to the Con.
quest. From being situated near Markeaton-brook, its
foundation was injured by occasional floods; so ths
in 1601 the tower fell, and within a century afterwards
the church having become ruinous, the present edifice
was crected. A chapel of ease, dedicated to St. John
capable of accommodating one thousand four bundrec
persons, has recently been erected in the later Englis)
style, at an expense of ubout £8000, one half of whick
was defrayed by the parliamentury commissioners, anc
the other by subscription among the inhabitants,  The
living of St. Michael's is a discharged vicurage, ratec
in the king's books at £4. 15., endowed with £20(
private benefaction, £ 400 royal bounty, and £200C
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Crown
The church is very ancient, and of uncertain date. *Ax
episcopal chapel, dedicuted to St. George, has recently
been erected in this parish, eapable of seating one thou-
sand persons.  There are places of worship for General
and Particular Buptists, the Society of Iriends, Inde
pendents, Weslevan  Methodists (New and Old con-
nexion), Swedenborgiuns, and Unitarians, and a Roman
Catholie chapel.

The free grammar school is said to have been founded
in the reign of IHenry 11, soon after the removal of the
canons of the priory of St. Helen's, at Derby, to Darley.
Walter Durdant, Bishop of Lichfield, in his charter,
makes mention of the school of Derby, as the gift of him-
self and Willimon de Barba Aprilis. Queen Mary, in the
first year of her reign, granted a charter to the corpo-
ration, in which provision is made for the support of this
school, by the pauyment of £13. 6. 8. per annum : e
gueen’s grant was also accompanied by the patrong
of two of the churches. The sum of £25 is annuall _
to the master, by the Mnaster and Fellows of Emmuauel
College, Cambridge, under the will of Mr. Ash,who also
founded ten exhibivions at the same college, for boys
educated ut this school and at that of Ashby de la Zouch.
Mrs. Jane Wulton, who died in 1603, also bequeathed the
sum of £40 for the benefit of the 1naster and usher, and
£100 to ghe master of St. John's College, Cambridge,
tow ¢ maintenance of such of the y 1nen
educetéf@icre s should be ndmitted into that college.
Flam , the celebrated astronomer, reccived the ele-
mentagg part of his education at this institution. In
1612, National schools were established in the parish of
St. Werbnegh, in which about  ninety boys and one
hustired girls are instructed; and in 1829, schools upon
the same system were opened in the parish of St. Peter,

‘which afford instruction to one hundred boys ‘and

seventy girls. There is also a school ypon the Lancas-
terian plan, in which about one hugdreéd and forty boys
are taught ; also several infant schools. . < fjie
The Devonshire: - almshouse was founded by the
Countess of Shrewsbuty, imthe reign of Queen Eliza-
beth, and eadowed #vith & bequest of £100 a year... In
1777, it was rebuilt iv a handsome style, at the expense
of the then Duke.of Devonshire, who, bafare his death,
added a farther endowment of £50 & year: eighi®men
aud four women are now supported in it, - M 174 ‘
Edward Large, Eaq. endowed an almshonse near the 1
of Friargate, for fivé widows of clergymen, eachof why
receives about £36 per angum. B0
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of Chaddesden, by will dated September 18t, 1629, found-
ed and endowed ten nlmshouses, for gix men and four
women, to be supported by his heirs in perpetuity ;
these were rebuilt by Sir Robert Wilmot, in 1814, A mu-
nificent bequest wes ‘also made by Richard Crawshaw,
Esq., who died in 1631, of upwards of £4000, for the
benefit of the poor of Derby, including the mainte-
nance of lectures, and other landable purposes: addi-
tional bequests have lately been made to this charity,
which has now a revenue of £750 per annum. There is
an asylum for discharged female prisoners, the object
of which is, by the inculeation of moral principles, to
restore them to rociety and to useful employment.
Robert Lyversege, dyer, of the parish of St. Peter's, be-
queathed various lands and tenements “ for good and
godly purposes,” the present rental of which, abont
£700, is from the renewal of leases, continually increas-
ing: the pour have also the henefit of numerous small be-
quests. 'The general infirmary is sitnated near the London
road, on a healthful, airy, and dry plot of ground : the
building is constructed of hard white stome, of a hand-
rome, yet simple elevation of three stories, containing a
light central hall, with a double staircase: there are two
light and spacious rooms, one for each sex, called day or
convalescent rooms : u statue of Asculapiug, indicating
its useful design, is pluced upon the centre of the dome,
which is of iron. The building is calculated to accom-
modate more than one hundred patients: three phy-
sicians, four surgeons, and a house apothecary, are ap-
pointed to the institution. It is surrounded by four-
teen acres of land, purchased to prevent the near ap-
proach of buildings, and cost nearly £18,000. The ord-
nance depdt, situated mear the infirmary, erected ac-
#ipding to a design by Mr. Wyatt, in 1805, has been pur-

lsed of government; and converted into a silk-riil,
MPAbout half a century age there were vestiges of an
iRted icastle, but the site’ is now completely covered
with ‘bedldhigs. Remains of St. Mary's chapel, sup-
posed to have been the church of St. Mary given by
William the Conqueror to the abhey of Burton, still
exist: the chapel, in the time of Charles II., was used
by the Preshyterians, but was subsequently converted
into small tenements. Of several religious heyges which
once bad existence here there are no trace#?
the eminent natives of Derby may he ment
Thomas Linacre, the founder of the College of Pg
in London, of which he was president till his death, in
1524; Samuel Richardson, the novelist, in "1689;
Willinte Hutton, m 1723; and Joseph Wright, the cele-
beated painter, in 1734 this distinguished artist resided
héere during the greater part of his life, and “died in
1797:; his view of Ulawater, which is considered to be
one of the finest offirta of- British genius, in landscape,
was parchased by Riobard Arkwright, for £315, and
is Wow at Willerdley caatle, in this county. Thomas
Parloer, Bl of Macclesfield, and Lapd High Chancellor,
resided here during the early part of his life; and while

: ng in-this town ‘as an attomney, laid the found-
wioh of hik futare fame. John Whitehurst, an ingenious
:ﬂﬂ it il pher, also resided here about the

oy mw \ tnid D, Braatnus Darwin hest
) ﬂm!mw nty Yeavs ‘of his life, and died in 18082.
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the south by that of Leicester, on the west by the
countics of Stafford and Chester, and on the north by
the county of York; it extends from 52° 38’ to 53°
27’ (N. Lat.), and from 1° 13’ to 2¢ 3’ 30” (W. Lon.),
and containg one thousand and twenty-six square miles,
or six hundred and fifiy-«ix thousand six hundred and
forty statute acres.  The population, in 1821, amounted
to 213.333. The tract of country now forming the
county of Derby, was, in the time of the Britons, part
of the territory occupied by the Coritani, and, under
the government of the Romans, was included in Bri-
tannia Prima, During the Heptarchy it formed part
of the kingdom of Mercia ; and the inhabitants of Der-
byshire and Nottinghamshire were calicd North Mer.
cians, those two counties lying for the most part north
of the river Trent. The carliest historical event re-
corded in connexion with Derbyshire is the dwrision hy
the Danes, in 874, when they expelled Burrhed, King of
Mercia, and fixed their head-quarters at his royal resi-
dence of Repandune, now Repton, in this county, where
they remained until the following year.  Derbyshire was
recovered from their possession in 918, by Ethelfieda,
the celebrated Countess of Mercia. Derby, however,
was not long afterwards again in the power of the
Danes, and was retaken from them by King Edmund,
in 942. In the rebellion of Prince Henry against his
father Henry I1., the castle of Dufficld was held ugainst
the king by Robert, Barl Ferrars ; and in the reign of
John, Willium, Earl Ferrars captured Bolsover and Peak
castles from the barons.  In 1264, Henry IIL. seut his
son, Prince Edward, into Derbyshire, to take vengeunce
upon Robert, Earl of Derby, then one of the niost active
of the barons in rebellion against him, with ordes to lay
waste his manors with fire and sword : the car. made
his peace by the promise of a large sum of money, and
by taking a fresh oath of allegiance ; notwithstanding
which, he again appearved in arms, in 1266, with other
barons, and knights, and having assembled a numerouns
force at Duflicld Frith, marched thence to Chesterfield,
where being surprised by the king's nephew, Henry,
the greater part of them was put to the sword,
the earl himself was muade prisoner, and such of his
adherents as mwade their escape withdrew into the
Forest of the Peak, where they remained leading a pre-
datory life for two years. The earl's life was spared,
but his earldom was taken from him, and its extensive
possessions being given to Edmund, Earl of Lancaster,
eventually furnished a considerable part of the revenuce
of the duchy of Lancaster. The most remarkable his-
torical circumstance connected with Derbyshire, from
this period until the reign of Charles L, is the captivity
of Mary, Queen of Scots, who, while in the custody of
the Earl of ‘Shrewsbury, resided much in this county,
at the seats of that nobleman. Charles 1., after having
erected his standard at Nottingham, marched to Derby,
at which period the inhabitauts of the whole county
declared for him, so at least Sir John Gell states, in hix
own Memoirs, in which he also claims the merit of
having been the first who appeared in arms in this
county for the parliament. Repairing to Hull, in Oc-
tober, 1842, he obta.itze'd the command of a regiment of
foot, consisting of -ame_hundred and forty men, with
which he advanced inte Derbyshire; reaching Chester-
field ofw.ghe seventeenth, he there- gajged two hundred
men, -a2nds marched to Derby,«mhﬁg'he collected a
g B2
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“time, Lord Clarendon observes, there was in Derbyshire ~the

- mo visible party for the kmg, the whole county being
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under the power of Sir John Gell, who maintained this
ascendancy throughout the war; the transactions of
which within the county, though carried on with spirit,
consisted chi the attack and defence of small gar-
risons. It may, however, be particularized, ‘that in
the year 1643, &r, Thomas Fairfax came to Derby, and
staid there three days, for the purpose of procuring
a supply of men from the Derbyshire garrisons, and

that, after the battle of Naseby,”theking, with. three d

thonsand horse, passed from Bewdley into Derbyshire,.
about the middle of August; 1645, and having defeat-
ed Sir Joun Gell in some shrmishes at Sudbury and
Ashbourn, marched through the Peak to Doneutar ‘In
I’i‘ﬁ;’f,‘@!.:::!es Ed:wqd Stuart, commonly called t
Pretender, ha¥ing pehcmtpd into.the heart, of the & ing-
dom, entered - with

his advanced.

red the passage of the Trent

at Swarkston bridge, but on the evening of the 1 he
held a couneil of war, at which r a warm debate, it
was determxn;d. in consequ _the Tittle encourage-
ment he had ;met with ind and “the near ap-
proach of the Duke of- d with a superior
force, immedﬁgelyto com retreat northward ;

“Zch ngly carried into effect
the next ‘mo On the 9th-of June, 1817, a
number of nnserably deluded people of the lowest order
brokeout into openinsurrection at South Winfield, in this
county, and proceeded towards Nottingliam, within a
few miles of which they were met by a party of the
military, and speedily dispersed: the well known termi-
nation of this affair was the trial at Derby, in October
of same year, by special commission, of a number
of tl
victed of high treason, of whom three were e
Derby, on the 7th of%ox:mber foBowinz, and wst_
were transported for. 1& 5 :
Derbyshirg is in the dig
and province of Cante

for the borough of Dabwae '
elected at This ‘

midland ci Da'byshireand,
ed but one shnevdm until the

acti tes. A great f the county. i
thhmthcjumdlctmnof the Lancaster court,
vheuut'l'ntbnry fortherecov Mmﬂ:ﬂebu

trespasses, , &e. Munyofﬂ:e

' concerns of Derbyshire, and determining
with his army on December 4th:

el Tib wanufacturdif it
insurgents, when twenty-two of them were con- .

(ind77
. 16 ests

meofthueounw and several pape
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mrmd‘-mmw. eld at Derby, a
& and homntn“gmchmhumﬁy
by, the expense of ‘the purch:

the site, treo,d-mil!.&c was
pletlon, in 1827, pmoners M
to it from the houses of
terfield, Tideswell and W

armhes in the hundreds of High Peak, Scarsdale, and
Virksworth, are within the jurisdiction of the Peverel
court; of the same nature, held at Lenton in Nottingham-
shire, The barmote courts, for’ regulating the mineral
disputes re-
lative to the working of the mines, are held at Monynh
in the Peak, and at Wirksworth. The rates raised in the
county for the yearendmg March 25th, 1827, amounted
to £07/532; the ex iture to £99,518. 5., of which
sum £76,568. 138 was apphed to the relief of the poor.
byshire, as a manufacturing county, ranks next
anmhxre, Sta.ﬂ'ordsmre, and Warwickshire, Cot-

ton spinning is extensxve(} carried on at Belper, Cromford,

- Calver, Hayfield, New Mills, &c. The woollen manufac-

ture is chiefly in the pmsh of Glossop, on the Yorkshire
border ; worsted-spinning at Derby, Melbourne, Tides-
well, &, The silk-mill was introduced at the beginning
of the last century, the manufacture bemg chi
Derby. The manufacture of stockings. is p

at Derby, Belper, and Chesterfield, and in t
on the eastern side of the County: f
manufacture is carried on for f most

used in m-klaz stockings, was ﬁrst

this county by Sir Richard Arkwright in 177
hard, in conjunction with two other

de, at Derby, the first successful

A€ el
. s

ed and twelve, of which one

‘ ~of Glossop ; several others in
it Matlock,, Pleaseley, Wilne,

‘same year, there were fortythm

*,nvmg, fifteen bleaching-g

factories for m

%mﬂg t for muslin, and two

‘.ull

for the cotton-factories, stockin
made at Derby, Alfreton, Glossop,
og, Matlock, Butterley, &e. Thelincn
jacture is not of great extent ; flax is spun at Darl
, and there are linen-yarn mills in the pamh;
huver and Glossop; linen-weaving is carried
those of Belper, Turnditch, &c., and lace-weavi

y and Meclbourne. Therearemnnyua- ‘
tedw:thdnemtndemvmm 4
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Derby and Chesterfield, and in the villages
There are six chain-manufactories,
principally in the northern part of the county, and nail-
is carried on to a considerable extent, chiefly
in. and its mneighbourhood. Whet-stones and
hones are made in quantities within a few miles
north-east of Derby, and sent to the southern counties,
There is a large manufactory for spar or fluor orna-
ments at Derby; and there are saw-mills, for marble
and stone, at Bonsall, Lea-Bridge, and Wirksworth. There
is a long established porcelain manufactory at Derby,
and one of later establishment at Pinxton : there are
also potteries at and near Chesterfield, Alfreton, Belper,
Ilkeston, Gresley, Hartshorn, Tickenhall, &c. A great
quantity of hats is made for exportation at Lea-Bridge,
Chesterfield, &c.; and shoes are made for the wholesale
trade at Chesterfield and other places.

The surface of the southern part of Derbyshire is
for the most part tolerably level, containing nothing re-
markable in its hills, and little that is picturesque in its
scenery ; but in that part which lies north of Derby the
hills begin gradually to rise; and in the north-western
part of the county some of them attain a considerable ele-
vation, forming the commencement of that mountainous
ridge which from this place divides the northern part
of the island: the four highest points in Derbyshire
are Kinderscout, Holme-Moss, near the north-western
extremity of the county; Ax-edge, about three miles
south-west of Buxton; and Lord's Seat, near Castleton;
titudes of which, according to observations made

igonemetrical survey, are, of the first,

me hundred and fifty feet, of the second

‘hundred and fifty-nine, and of the
usand seven hundred and fifty-one,
valleys in this tract are very beautiful, par-
‘those of Castleton, Monsall-dale, and ‘Glossop ;

the most que and remarkable scenery is com-
poeed of the great number and variety of smaller valleys
or dales with which the limestone district abounds, the
characteristics of which are precipitous rocks of

and striking forms, with mountain streams and

rivalets winding through the lower parts, which are fre-
quently well-wooded. The most celebrated of these are,

. Matlock-dale, on the river Derwent; Monsall-dale, on
~ the Wye; Middleton-dale, Eyam-dale, and Dove-dale,
the latter on the river Dove. Except in these valleys,
however, the scenery is by no means beautiful or agree-
able; it consists chiefly of uncultivated moors, on some

some of them in very grotesque forma,
* The southern and middle portions of the county are

8 r"f"

 for the most part in cultivation. Extending northward _

from Ashover and Darley, through the parish of Bake-
well and its , almost to the northern limit of
the county, is the East Moor, a considerable part
f which lies waste. And in the northern part of the
enk, bordering on Yorkshirg, in the parishes of Hope
d Glossop, are most extensive sheep-walks, called the
without any sort of fences ti:epmtethe
rent manors, parishes, or counties. great quan-
of excellent wheat and barley is cultivated in the
 and eastern parts of the county. The arable
Peak is chiefly tilled for oats, of which there

e

29

o, the principal specics of bread eaten
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by the poorer class. On an average, more corn is produe-
ed, of every sort, than is consumed in the county. The
principal dairy district is the neighbourhood of Ashbourn :
about two thousand tons of cheese are said to be an-
nually sent from the wharfs at Derby, Shardlow, &e.
The grass lands in the parishes of Beighton, Eckington,
and Norton, chiefly supply the town of Sheffield with
milk, which is carried thither in barrels slung on horses
or asses. A considerable quantity of camomile is cul-
tivated, for medicinal purposes, in the parishes of Ash-
over, Morton, Shirland, and North and South Winfield ;
this plant having been introduced into the county about
the year 1740 : about eighty acres are now planted, the
cultivation and gathering of which afford employment
to a great number of women and children. Neat cattle,
chiefly for the purposes of the dairy, form a principe!
feature in the economy of the Derbyshire farms, al-
though the county possesses no original nor distinct
breed, notwithstanding that some of the breeders call
their stock the New Derbyshire Long-horned breed.
The practice of making cheese from the new milk, and
butter afterwards from the whey, is either entirely
unknown, or very little practised in the greater part
of England, though here well established and approved.
The breeds of sheep now most prevalent are, the
Woodland sheep, in the northern tract still called the
Woodlands (though now nearly bare of wood), and the
New Leicester, in the southern and eastern parts of the
county.  Derbyshire has long been celebrated, and
ranks next to Leicestershire of all the English counties,
for its stout, clean-legged breed of work horses, princi-
pally black. The number of asses kept in the county is
considerable; they are chiefly employed in carrying coal
from the pits in the vicinity of the towns, for the supply
of the poor, and in hawking pottery. This being so consi-
derable a dairy county, a great number of hogs is kept in
it, though there is no particular or characteristic breed.
The =oil consists chiefly of clay, loam, sand, and
peat, very irregularly intermixed: the southern part,
which has been distinguished by the name of the fer-
tile district, consists principally of a red loam on various
under soils. Peat mosses abound in the northern part
of the county, denominated the High Peak. The sub-
strata of the southern part, comprised within a line drawn
east and west from Sandiacre to Ashbourn, consist of
gravel, intermixed with large portions of red marl, of very
irregular forms; in several parts of which are beds of
of considerable extent ; the gravel occupies a tract

parts of which large masses and groups of rock are seen of nearly seventy-seven thousand acres, and the red marl
' - = dighty-one thousand. The sub-strata of the other parts

Derbyshire are, limestoné of various kinds, with

{m<*~atone; grit-stone, with shale ; and coal, with indu-

rated clay ; all of which appear in the surface in certain
parts, owing to their dipping in various directions. The
lowermost of these is a stratum of limestone, the thick-
ness of which has not been ascertained ; it occupies a.
narrow on the western side of the county, extend-
ing southerly from the mountain called Mam Tor, to
Hopton and Parwich, and nearly to Thorp, and contains
forty-thousand five hundred acres : it abounds in caverns,
of which severdm extent, many are lined with
incrastations of , and loll: have subterraneous
streams running through them. Immediately above this
stratum of limestone are three others of lime , and
three of toad-stone, in alternate layers, nearly

W
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fifty-one thousand five hundred acres of the surface,
and extending from Castleton, ti onj;
and from Muﬂack Youlgrave, Mwoﬂ, *-.nd Stony-
Middleton, on the eastern “side, to Wormhill, and Chel-
morwn,onthewm The limestone is the true me-
talliferous rock of Derbyshire, and exclusively occuplel
the attention of &M ‘there are few situations in
the Peak where this rock does mot contain numerous
veins of lead-ore, or calamine. The several strata are
also very Mlm in corallines, shells, and various
otgamc remains, In different parts the limestone is of
“a quality as to be used as marble, particu:
hﬂy‘"Mford where it is black, and at Monyash,
where it is of a mottled grey colour. The respective

nesses of the six alternate strata of limestone and

tpad-stone, in a section between Grange
por, are stated by Mr, Whitehurst, in his “Inquiry into
the Original State and Formation of the Earth,” to be,
“Of the first or uppermost limestone, fifty yards ; the
- first toad-stone, sixteen yards; the second hmestone, fifty
* yards ; the second toad-stone, forty-six yards; the third
lmeﬁ& yards; and the third toad-stone, twenty-
two yards :” %he_re ‘are detached portions of these al-
ternate strata in several parts of the county, but of no
great extent. = The strata which come next in succession
above those of limestone and toad-stone, are millstone-
‘and shale ; the former being, according to Farey's
iew, from one hundred and fifty to one hundred and
i semtyy-rds thick, and resting on the latter, which is
‘ 1t the same tlneknean This district is surrounded
grit-stone district, as it is called, though in several
f.he grit-stone is wanting, only the shale appearing,
~are many detached patches of the grit rock, under
, on all sides, the shale is couaplcma,both in
the g and in the limestone district. Within this
' ermutm of shale are several masses of dark
bhp. or black limestone, one of which, immediately
h of Fenny-Bentley, and ‘another mnorth-west of
udumhweetefhhford are of considerable
ion of the county in which the g:i

i, 5T
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Mill and Darley

commerce, are lead, iron, calamine; fiy ot
marble, and various sorts of stone. '*Itv i
factorily ascertained ﬂmm B&WM m
were worked by the Romans, and probably by the Bri-

tons, They are chiefly in the hundreds of Wirksworth,
and High Peak, so far north as Castleton: there are
lead mines also in the parishes of Ashover and Crich.
The whole number enumerated by Mr. Farey, in his
View of the Minerals of this county, amounts to about
two hundred and fifty, of which twenty-two are stated
to produce an abundant supply of ore ; the latter are
situated in the parishes or ¢ of Ashover, m
lock, Cromford, Wirksworth, Bonsall, Youlgrave, Elton,
Wmster, Hope, Eyam, Great Longstone, and Mdnryu

" The annual qumutyofladmsedmnerbyshlre,ubwt

1789, as stated by Pilkington, was between five and six
thousand tons ; but of late years, not above half that
quantity has been raised, many mines having ceased
working on account of the reduced price of lead. - The
most productive mine, of late years, has heen the
mine, in the liberty of Cromford. The lead was
nally smelted by wood fires, on hills in the open air ; but
this inconvenient mode was suceeeded by hearth furnaces
the last of which was pulled down about theyear‘lm,
the improved cupola fnmee,nowinune,ha ¢ been
introduced from Wales. - The smelting 0
late heen on the decline, and there a
cupolas at work in thcooum:y ‘
of lead is sent from Cromford
in making white lead,
shot the remainder is
tert 10 to coa

ll.l
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m«mwm erected at Morley-Park.
Of the eleven furnaces which were in full work in 1806,

some have not, of late, been worked, on ac-
count of the low price of British iron. There are eight
forges in the county, in which bar iron is made from the
pigs. The lead mines in the Peak, and in the hundred
of Wirksworth, belonged at an early period to the crown,
The dukes of Devonshire have long been lessees of those
in the hundred of High Peak; and the lease of those in
the hundred of Wirksworth having been sold under
a decree of Chancery, is now vested in Richard Ark-
wright, Esq. The mineés and miners of this county are
governed by certain ancient customs and regulations,
which were ascertained by a jury under a commission
granted in the year 1287, but which vary in different
manors.  The mining concerns are under the superin-
tendence of an officer, called a bar-master, who holds
courts twice a year, at which all questions are decided re-
specting the duties payable to the crown or the lessee ;
all disputes are settled relative to working the mines, and
punishments are inflicted for all aggressions upon mineral
property. Debts incurred in working the mines are also
cognizable in the bar-mote courts, which are held for
the High Peak at Monyash,and for the hundred of Wirks-
worth at Wirksworth. One of the most remarkable of the
ancient mining customs is that by which any adventurer
who shall discover a vein of lead unoccupied, in the king’s
field, has a right to work it on the land of any person, with-
king any compensation to the proprietor : this

in force, but it is understood that gardens,

; it is the office of
ied to for that purpose, to put
0 of such veins by them dis-
payable to the crown, and

of great antiquity, and

The
regu-

AN
AS

is paid for lead-
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and sixty-three kilns, in which it is burned for sale, and.
from which great quantities are sold, chiefly for agricul-
tural purposes, for the use of this and some of the neigh-
bouring counties ; the largest quarries are at Ashover,
Buxton, Crich, and Calver, near Baslow: a considerable
quantity of lime is sent from Calver into Yorkshire, and
from the neighbourhood of Buxton into Cheshire and
Staffordshire. A species of the Derbyshire limestone is
in request as marble, for chimney-pieces, slabs, &c. : the
quarries from which this sort of limestone, commonly
called Derbyshire marble, is procured, are nineteen in
number, and are situated in the parishes of Bakewell and
Matlock, The number of stone quarries is one hundred
and thirty-eight, some of which produce stone of a good
and durable quality for building, which has been much
usged in the principal private and public edifices in the
county, and is exported in large quantities, especially
from the quarries in the parish of Wingerworth. Grind-
stones, of the millstone-grit, are obtained from nine-
teen quarries ; they are in great request, and are exten-
sively shipped by the canals to the south-eastern parts
of England. - Stones for whetting scythes are procur-
ed from thirteen quarries; finer whet-stones from seven
others ; and the finest, called hones, from quarries at
Codnor Park and Woodthorp, near Wingerworth. Seve-
ral of the mines produce ochres, and a few of them
small quantities of china-clay, which has of late years
been sent to the potteries in Staffordshire. Few counties
exhibit a greater number or variety of extraneous fos-
sils than this; the several strata of limestone, and some
of those of grit-stone, containing an abundance of or-
gaunic remains, both animal and vegetable.

The principal rivers are, the Trent, the Derwent, the
Wye, the Dove, the Erwash, and the Rother, The
Trent first becomes a boundary between Derbyshire
and Staffordshire in the parish of Croxall, and so con-
tinues to Newton-Solney, a little beyond which village
it enters the county, crossing it, from west to east, in a
course of about twenty-four miles, and quitting at its
junction with the Erwash, near Nottingham. Pursuant
to an act of parliament procured hy the Earl of Uxbridge,

81

. in 1699, the Trent was made navigable to Burton bridge ;

" but, in the year 1805, the navigation from that bridge
down to Shardlow was given up, by agreement with the

it proprietors of the Trent and Mersey canal, which runs by

ide, and,as connected with Derbyshire, it is now navi-
‘only from Shardlow to the mouth of the Erwash.
> Derwent rises onthemoor:,ﬁattﬁewthmmme:‘:
tremity of the county ; it flows by ersage, thr
1 <k park, Dnyrley-dnlc, Matlock, Croraford, Bel-
‘and Derby, and falls into the Trent about a mile
) Little Wilne, after a course of about forty-six
this river was formerly navigable from Wilne tr;
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and near Ilkeston and Sandiacre, and falling into the
Trent about a mile and a half east from Long Eaton.
The Rother, rising near Padley, runs by Chesterfield,
and enters Yorkshire, between Killamarsh and Beighton.

It having been found of great importance to procure
the convenience of water-carriage for the produce of the
numerous mines and quarries, and the goods of its ma-
nufactories, many canals have in consequence been pro-
jected, and several of them completed, some entirely
within the county, and others commencing or termi-
nating in it, The great undertaking of the Trent and
Mersey, or Grand Trunk canal, which forms part of the
grand communication between Liverpool, Hull, Bristol,
and London, was begun in 1766, by the celebrated Mr.
Brindley, and completed in 1777, under his successors,
Mz, Smeaton and Mr. Rennie : it passes through Der-
byfl)ure, from Burton to its termination at Shardlow,
following the course of the Trent: its chief utility, as
relates to the produce of Derbyshire, is for the convey-
ance of cheese, malt, and gypsum, The Chesterfield
canal was begun in 1771, by Mr. Brindley, and finished
in 1776, by his brother-in-law, Mr. Henshall : it enters
Derbyshire at Killamarsh, and terminates at Chesterfield .
its objects, as connected with this county, are the expor-
tation of coal, lead, cast iron, limestone, freestone, pot-
tery-ware, &c. ; and the importation of grain, deals, bar
iron, &c. The Erwash canal, begun about 1777, has
its line chiefly through Derbyshire, in the vale of the
Erwash : it commences in the Trent navigation, and
terminates at Langley Mill, where it joins the Cromford
canal : it is chiefly serviceable in the exportation of
coal, limestone, iron, lead, millstones, grind-stones,
marble, freestone &c.; and the importation of corn,
malt, deals, &c. The Cromford canal was begun about
1789, and completed about 1798: its line is wholly
in Derbyshire, commencing at Langley Mill, and termi-
ating at Cromford : its chief use is the same as that
of the Erwash canal. At Butterley is a tunnel, about
fifty-seven yards below the Derwent ridge, two thousand
nine hundred and seventy-eight yards long, and nine
feet wide; at Lea-Bridge near Cromford, the canal is
carried over the river Derwent by an aqueduct, two hun-

dred yards long, and thirty feet lugh built in 1792 ; and

the Amber, at Bull bri
ﬁ?ume length fifty feet high.

, is another ueduct of
The line of the Derby

canal, which is forty-four feet wide, is wholly in the {

county ; commencing in the Trent and Mersey canal,

north of Swarkston, passing by Derby, with branches to

Little Eaton, whence is a railway to the m;lzem
at Horsley, Denby, &c. : its chief use is for suppl;

D@rbywzth coal, building-stone, gypsum, &c. ; nm

coal, mumfuctured goods, cheese, &c. The

Nutb canal, constructed about 1793, for the .

tation ofeod. andthemorutionoflime-m
terminates
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coal, and the importation of deals, and pig iron ; and,
at its south end, coal. The grutmdﬁmemdn&
Manchester enters Derbyshire at Cavendish bridge, and,
passing through Derby and Ashbourn, enters Stafford-
shire at Hanger bridge, about a mile and three quarters
beyond the latter town. Another turnpike road to Man-
chester goes from Ashbourn, by way of Buxton, about
six miles beyond which town, at Whaley bridge, it enters
Cheshire. And a third road to Manchester passes from
Derby through Matlock, Bakewell, and Chapel en le
Frith, joining the last-mentioned rou,l at Whaley bridge.

Derbyshire exhibits few British remains, except the
numerous artificial formations of earth and stones,
called cairns, which have been raised upon the moors,
several of which, on being opened, have been found
to contain human bones, and urns, with beads, rings,
and other relics. The only Roman remains worthy of
particular mention are, the altar preserved at Haddon
hall, the inscribed blocks or pigs of lead found in dif-
ferent situations, and the silver plate found in Risley
park : Roman coins have frequently been found in
various parts of the county. One of the principal
British roads, the Iknield-street, ran through the whole
extent of the county, from south-west to north-east,
from the borders of Staffordshire to those of Yorkshire.
Derbyshire was also traversed in various directions by
Roman roads ; those most distinctly visible being that
called the Bathom-gate leading from Brough to Buxton;
a second, leading from Buxton towards Little Chester ;
and a third, supposed to have come from Chesterton,
near Newcastle, in Stalfordshnre, to Little Chester, The
undoubted Roman stations in the county are, Li 2
ter, Brough, Melandra Castle, in the parish
and Buxton. Many of the churches pre;
able remains of early Norman nrchitechwe,
markable specimens appearing in those
Melbourne, and the desecrated church o
parish of Whitwell. Prior to the F
thirteen religious houses, includ
of the nghts Hospitallers, and
St. Lazarus ; there were two co

“hospitals, Of the m¢

‘of inconsiderable

m;hbay Beauchief ab
uc
stYeveley,dun,
ufﬂaofwhlchtheremupy
thooenfthePeak,Codnor,H
maxhblgo mansio

is in ruins. The custom

ﬁi t‘hemmhem M of the
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- 'DERBY HILLS, an extra-parochial liberty, in’ the
hundred of Rerron and Gresiey, county of Dermy,
9 miles (8.) from Derby, containing 76 inhabitants;

- DERBY (WEST), a chapelry in the parish of

Warron on the Hrn, hundred of West DERBY, county

palatine ‘of LANCASTER, 4% miles (W.)' from" Prescot,
containing 6804 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester
endowed with €800 ‘private benefaction, £200
bounty, and £8000 parliamentary grant, and in  the
patronage of the Rector of Walton. The chapel is ‘de-
dicated to St. Mary.. West Derby is'a very ancient
place, having given name to the hundred.. At the- pe:
riod of the Norman survey here was aydecayed castle,
which had belonged to Edward the Confessor.
DEREHAM (EAST), ‘a market town and parish
in the hundred of Mirrorp, county of NorroLx, 17
miles (W.N.W.) from Norwich, and 161 (N.E. by N.)
from London, containing 3244 inhabitantg, and, including
the hamlet of Dillington, in the hundred of Launditch,
8278, This" place, anciently called Deerham, from
the number of deer by which it was frequented, and
distinguished by its adjunct from a village of the same
name, is of very remote antiquity. During the Hep-
tarchy, Withburga, youngest dauglter of -Anna, King
of the East Angles, founded a monastery here, of which
she became' prioress, and dying in 743, was buried. in
the church-yard; her remains, in 798, were removed
into the conventual church, and after the destruetion of
'monastery by the Danes, were; in 974, translated
where they were enshrined with those of her
| the eathedral ¢hurch of that city. A spring;
ulous cures were attributed, is said to
in that part of the church-yard ‘where
erred, which is now a public bath;
with which it was covered is still
n 1581, the town suffered severely

veduced to ashes.. It is pleasantly
the, centre of the county, and
‘has been'so materially improved
elling the streets, as to render it
t market towns in Norfolk : it is’
pearance, and the inhabitants
ith excellent water : in the centre
! obeligk,

royal

he greater part of it was by.
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Norwich,rated in the’ king's books at £17. 3. 4}., and
in‘ the patronage of' the:Crown : there is also a rectory,
rated’ at- £41. 3.- 14 The' church, dedicated to St.
Nicholag, formerly. the conventual chureh of the monas:
tery of St. Withburga, and made parochial in 798, is a
spacious cruciform structure, partly in the Norman and
partly in‘the early style of English ‘architecture, with a
tower rising from the interseetion, and open for a con-
siderable lieight to the interior of the church : conmected
with the transepts were the chapels of the Holy Cross;
over which was’the treasury of St. Withburga, St. Mary,
and St. Edmund ; in the chancel is an ancient eagle on
a, pedestal of brass, supported on three small lions. The
roof on the north side is supported by clustered, and-on
the south by rourd massive, columns; the font is beau-
tifully sculptured - with representations of the four
Evangelists; eight- of the Apostles, the Crucifixion, and
the" Seven Sacraments of the Romish church: in the
south trausept is an antique chest of oak, richly carved,
taken from Buckingham castle, in which are deposited
the recordd of the church and parish. Among the
monuments is ‘a white marble tablet to the memory of
Cowper  the poet, who resided in this place for the' last
nine yeats of his ' life; and was interréd in the church.
The bells, which: were supposed-to endanger the tower,
have been removed into- a detached building called the
New Clocher, erected for that purpose in the church-yard.
There are places of ‘worship ‘for Baptists, Independents,
and Wesleyan Methodists, A National school, for chil-
dren’ of both:sexes, is supported by subscription. Mr.
Aaron Williamson, in' 1710, left by will some houses
and land for apprentieing two poor boys of the parish ;
and there are several charitable bequests for distribution
among the poor.. Bishop Bonner was rector of- this
parish from 1534 to the year 1540.

-DEREHAM- (WEST),-a parish in the hundred of
CrackcrLose, county of NorroLk, 34 miles (W.byN.)
from  Stoke-Ferry, containing 520 inhabitants. ~ The
living’ is a- perpetual ‘curacy, in' the archdeaconry of
Norfolk,- and diocese of Norwich, endowed with £33
per annum private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and
£500 parliamentary grant, and- in the patronage of the
Rev. C. L. Jenyns. - The church, dedicated to St. Andrew
has at the west end a large round tower, built of rag-
stone, upon which andther of brick has been erected,
of an octagonal form, embattled and coped.. Another

© church, which' was dedicated to St. Peter, formerly stood

here, but no traces of- it are discernible; An abbey
for ‘Premonstratensian canons was founded in 1188,

o to the honour of the Blessed Virgin Mary, by Hubert,

Dean of York, and afterwards Archbishop of Canter~
bury ; it was valued, in the 26th of Henry VIIL,, at
£%5%. 12..11:  There' are considerable remains of this
m icularly the gate-house, a-lofty
‘pile of brick, embattled, from each angle

of whidhi rises an' octagonal tower;: groined with free-

‘ the arched entrance is a shield, bearing the

rma of the abbey. 1 oL ’;
NB a m ! r'y; \ 1 vwm ' of a m ( ;
e i . : "m‘:ﬂf.j |] ,;‘ I;;‘ax\aly,. e o |ﬁ 3
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miles (N.N.E.) from Castle-Rising, containing 534 in- hqohltl‘.l&.ﬂ Indintheputmnlpofﬂdwd
habitants. The living is a v , in the I!chdea- hohm o .
conry and diocese of Norwich, rate "I the king's books  DEV /GBRIDGE), a mh ol the
of D. Hoste, E-q ~the hun of Damermawm,

at £5. 6. 8., and im

The church, dedica St. Nicholas, is a h:f pile,
composed of boulder and flint, and covered

it has, at the west end, a strong q

crowned with a lantern and a small shaft. At the -outh
east side ‘of the church-yard there is an ancient chapel
in ruips.

DERTHORPE, a chapelry in the parish of Weer,
‘Wold division of the hundred of CaLcEWORTH, parts of
Linpsey, county of LincoLn, The population is re-
turned with the parish.

"DESBOROUGH, a parish in the hundred of Rorn-
WELL, county of NorTHAMPTON,1$ mile (N.N.W,) from
Rothwell, containing 908 inbabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of North-
ampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the
king's books at £8, endowed with £10 per annum pri-
vate benefaction, and £200 royal bounty. R.S. Cotton,
Esq. was patron in 1800.  The church is dedicated to
St. Giles. ' Ferdinando Poulton, an eminent lawyer, who
compiled the statutes at large, from Charta to
the 16th of James 1., was born here; he died in 1617,
and lies buried in the chancel, under & .plain slab, with
a latin inscription.

DESFORD, a parish in the hundred of Srhnx—
ENHOE, county of LEICESTER, 5 miles (E.) from Market-
Bosworth, coutalm'i‘xg, with the hamlet of Barrons-Park,
872 inhabitants he living is a discharged reu:dry in
the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £8. 9. 7.y and inrﬁepa-
tronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St.
Martin.

DETCHANT, a township in that part of the
of Berrorp which is in the northern division of Bn(-
srovGH ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 2 miles
(N.W. by N.) from Belford, containing 128 inhabitants,

D CK-LEA, a chapelry in that part of the
parish of AsHovER which is in the hundred of WiRKs-
worTH, county of Dersy, 2 miles (S.E byE.) from
Miﬂoék containing, with the hamlet of Holloway, 492
inhabitants. The living is a
rectory of Ashover, in the archd of Derhy,

- of Lichfield and Coventry, endowed wm;

. benefaction, and £1000 royal
uhq;&.tmﬂlemﬂcewithabmdcome'
ww!lﬁi!t’hll&sobyMrBtb ‘

‘honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, wi

ofnmﬁofplmm Tutbury eve

perpetual curacy with thc,

’W o
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in ﬁw hundred of Heytesbury, county of

an, q leu (8.) from Warminster, containing 1349
ts. The living is a vicarage, with the curacy

of Monoktnn-Dcmhm in the archdeaconry and diocese
of , rated in the king's books at £12, The
Marquis ofBl&hwupatron in 1805.  The church ig
dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul. Deverhill derives
its name from the rivalet Dever, which here has a sub-

terranean course.

DEVERHILL MONCKTON), a pannh in the south-
ern division of the hundred of DAMERHAM, though locally
in the hundred of Mere, county of WivLrs, 4} miles
(N. E. by N.) from Mere, containing 181 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy annexed to the vicarage

I.onggrridge -Deverhill, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Salis

DEVILS HOUSE, in the parish of WoorLwicH,
hundred of Brackuearn, lathe of Surrox at Hone,
county of Kewnt, though locally in the hundred of
Becontree, county of Essex, 4 a mile (N. by E.) from
Woolwich, to and from which there is a regular ferry
across the Thames. -~ A chapel of ease formerly stood
here, together with several houses, the foundations of
which are still discernible; there is now only au inn,
called the Devil's House, thh about five hundred acres
of marsh land attached. :

DEVIZES, a borough and
market town, having separate ¢J.
jurisdiction, locally in  the
hundred of Potterne and Can-

,conntyofWun,ze A e
milel (N.W, byNgfromSnﬂn- o/
bury, 19 (E. by 8.) from Bath G
and 89 (W. by 8.) from Lon- (& O\
don,onthemdﬁqmbondm —
to Bada@on taining 4208 in-
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amounting to the value of forty w "iﬁ,@k_ arks, fell facture, once the principal branch of business, is now
into the hands of Stephen, About three ' af 2 this  extinct: the mn\ffactuxl-’ed of silk has been are:’en:ly in-
event, the castle was seized by Robert Fitz-Hubert, - troduced, and affords employment to upwards of four
tence of holding it for Matilda; on her arrival, W&;’,’ h'ﬂnhred persons, principally children ; there are three
he refused to give up possession, and was in consequence manufactories in the town, and one about half a mile
treated as a rebel by both the contending parties, and distant, for silk-throwing: the weayving of crape and
eventually hanged as a traitor, In 1esa,ﬁqm sarsenet is ‘on the increase. The malting business is
de Burgh, formerly prime minister to Hmi‘y"lﬂ., ‘was uﬁ‘leﬂ on extensively ; and a large snuff manufactory
imprisoned within the castle, but on the appointment of has been established for many years, The Kennet and
Peter de Rupibus, his avowed enemy, to the governmeént Avon canal intersects the parish, which abounds with
of it, he prevailed on two of hi:"gim-ﬂi ‘to contrive his coal and Bath stone, The market is on Thursday, and
escape, and took sanctuary behind the high altar of the is the largest in the West of England for corn, of which
parish church, whence he was d . the crucifix a great quantity is pitched in the market-place, be-
in his hand, and carried back to prison. 'This violation sides what is sold by sample, There are fairs an-
of ecclesiastical privileges produced a remonstrance to nually, on February 14th, for horses; Holy Thursday
the king from several prelates, on which the prisoner and April 20th, for cattle ; and June 13th, July 5th, and
was re-conveyed to the church, and the sheriff received October 2nd and 20th, for cattle, hops, cloth, &c. : those
orders from that monarch to blockade it, and compel on the 20th of April and the 20th of October are held on
Hubert, by famine, to surrender himself ; but notwith- the green, beyond the boundaries of the borough. A
standing that precaution, he once more effected his market-cross, erected in 1815, at the sole expense of
escape, and fled intoWales. About the end of the reign Lord Sidmouth, many years recorder, and also a repre-
of Edward III., the castle was dismantled, and part of sentative in parliament for this borough, is said to have
its materials were subsequently used to érect a mansion cost nearly £2000.
at Bromeham, about three miles distant. In the reign VET
of Henry VIIL, the town, then called by Leland The Vies, o L AN
(an appellation still retained by the Wiltshire peasantry,)
was * celebrated for its market, and chiefly inhabited
by clothiers. During the parliamentary war, a battle
was fought here between the parligmentarian and the
royalist forces, under the Marquis of Hertford and
Prince Maurice, who were pursued hither by Sir William
Wal!er;nqtheir retreat towards Oxford,after the battleof
Lansdown; the town was intrenched, and the approaches burgesses upon an equality
to it barricadoed by Lord Ralph Hopton, and the Earl of v with the citizens of Winches-
Marlborough, and Sir William, having invested the town Corporate Seal. ter. Several immunities were
closely, constructed a battery upon a neighbouring added ‘during subsequent reigns, until the time of
height, fired upon the place, and' made several unsuc- Charles I, under whose charter the government is
sful attempts to penetrate into the interior; he like- vested in a mayor, recorder, and thirty-four common
! cepted the approach’ of the Earl of Crawford council-men ; twelve of whom, including the recorder
th & supply of powder for the royalists, and having and justice, are styled capital burgesses, from among
red the whale convoy, summoned the besieged to  whom the mayor is annually chosen by the common
F ‘survender. A treaty for capitulation Wwas begun, but at  council, who also fill up vacancies in their own body, and
this {Emcture Sir William was obliged to withdraw his have the power of electing an unlimited number of free
troops from before the town, in order to oppose Lord burgesses. The mayor, recorder, and justice, (who is
~ Wilmot, who had béen despatched by the king from chosen by the corporation),are justicesof the peace within
Oxford, with one thousand five hundred horse, and  the borough, and have power to hold a court of re
s of artillery, to protect the infantry in their for the recovery of sums not exceeding £ 40, every Friday,
) my. The parliame ian general at which either the mayor, recorder, or his deputy,
away must preside, assisted by any number of the capital

is bﬂgﬁug in all not less than four. The petty sessions
ch for the Devizes division of the hundred of Potterne and
, the . Cannings are held here, as are also the quarter sessions
 for the county, in rotation with Salisbury, Warminster,
Marlborough. This borough returned members to

| the pasligments of Edward I., to those of the 1st,
gt Edward IL, and 4th of Edward L,

““ h it@fgeturns have been constant. 'ﬂ!e righ

The first charter of incor-
By poration, granted by the Em-
" press Matilda, was suspended
during the reign of Stephen,
renewed by Henry II, and
Sconfirmed, together with the
grant of additional privileges,
by John, Henry IIL, and Ed-
ward IIL, which placed the
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on the ground floor .a, cheese ot is held. A

gaol, constrndedqund& ne, W ,_;Wmiﬁl@,

about a.mxlenprth om the town: it con-

zste :{\d the govemqt&h, By _jﬁﬁch ii;ﬂpgilxirygowbom
rm, and occupies ," , having an above

xt,‘andfmmtﬁ a hmpmspeet towards

Bath and Glonoqu;er,; .the cells, which in this part of
the building are also polygonal, are separated from the
boundary wall by a considerable space of ground, laid
out in M’ ‘the front of the house and the whole
bonndarx wall are very substantially built of hewn
stone.

comprlses the parishes of St. John and St.
lhry* Virgm, the hvmgs of which form a united
, not in (.harge, in the archdeaconry and diocese
oy ury, and in the patronage of the Crown. St.
's church is a spacious structure, partly in -the
Norman style and partly in ‘the later style of English
_;rchxtecture, with a square embattled tower,.and con-
sists of a nave and two aisles, transept, chancel, and
two chantry chapels; the oldest portion, which com-
: the chancel, transept, aud tower, is supposed to
have been built by Bishop Roger, about the same pe-
riod as the custle : the chancel is arched with bold ribs
springing from clustered capitals, and the tower is.sup-
ported by two circular and two pointed: ‘arches, enriched
with foliage and zigzag mouldings of different periods :
it contains several marble monuments of the families
of Heathcote and Sutton. St. 's
castern part of the town, has evidently been erected at
different periods : the chancel is the oldest portion, being
in the early Norman style, and built probably soon
after the Conquest; the south porch hnvmg pinted
arch, with zigzag mouldings, is a fine specimen of
theptvnllmgstylemtheregnsofﬂ II. and
Richard I. ; the rest of the edifice was rebuilt by Wil
liam Smyth, who died in 1436 : the tower and body of
 the church are embattled and crowned with pinnacles :
the nave and aisles are spaclous af:;l lofty, and the
arches which separate them spring from octagonal ‘co-
lumns : the architecture of the chancel resembles that

»hmmof theboro isSt J,

. At the eastern extremityof the town, t

don. The population is returned w

the reign of William Ill,;uutmulmwm
‘here under chenmwammwm

tothis,evmt the town is indebted for its importance

and t magnitude : in 1824, the appellation -of
Deve was conferred upon it by royal permhﬂoq
It was first fortified in the reign of  George 11, but
the works have been much improved under an act of
parliament passed in the 21st of IIL. dn:the
early part of the American war, Colonel Dixon, then’
commanding engineer at Plymouth, applied, on behalf
of the troops in garrison at Dock, to the corporation of
Plymouth, for supplies of water from a leat, a stream
which had been conveyed to that horough by Sir Francis
Drake; the application was refused for the alleged rea-
son that this stream was insufficient to' supply both
places : various other plans were devised and proposed
without success, till 1792, when Mr. Bryer, Messrs.
Jones and Grey, and others, submitted a plan to the
government, and also to the inhabitants, for supplying
the latter with water on the same terms as those of
Plymouth, and the government departments at a sti-
pulated price ; which plan, under an act of parliament
obtained in the same year, though not without strenuous
opposition, was carried into effect by means of a stream
brought from Dartmoor, in a circuitous line of thirty
miles, to a reservoir on the north side of the town.
Devonport is situated on an eminence, bounded on
the south and west by the mouth of the Tamar, chh
expanding into an irregular wstuary, forms the capacious
harbour at Hamoaze, and on the east by Stonchouse
creek. The town is of an oblong figure, uxltw:
which are regular and well built, nearly iuters
other at right angles, are paved and lighted ¢
paths, ww washed by a shower, ha
beantiful appearance, being paved wi

onthe ‘manor, whle‘hmea
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«commands a fine view of Mount Edgecumbe, and forms month from the pay of each .of the officers and ;
a healthy and pleasant promenade, There is a small belonging to ships laid up in ordinary. . to this
¢ in the southern ~of the town: the public edifice are the military guard, and navy pay offices. To
ﬂ!‘ I‘" ‘l“:?“ library is ornamented with an Egyptian the south-west is a row of excellent houses. by
fagade; and there is an elegant assembly-room at the royal  the commissioner and other officers of the e
hotel.  Southward from the town are hot, cold, shower, and fronted by a double row of lime trees, from which

vapour, and swimming-baths, with six convenient lodg-
ing-houses handsomely furnished. The commerce will
be noticed ‘in the account of Plymouth, of which port

; is ‘a branch. The principal quays are at
Mutton Cove, North Corner, and Morice Town. On the
south is a ferry to Mount Edgecumbe, and .another on
the north-west, to Torpoint. The market days are Tues-
day, Thursday, and Saturday, but the market is not
chartered : the market-place is of recent erection, and,
for extent and mmodation, is inferior to none in the
western part of England; it is well supplied with all
kinds of provision, particularly with fish, but it 1s not a
corn market, . ‘

. The government of the town is vested in commis-
sioners; among whom are the lord of the manor, who
holds courts leet and baron at Michaelmas, the stewards
of the manor, the rector of the parish, the commissioner
of his majesty's dock-yard, the port admiral, the mayor,
aldermen, and recorder of the boroughs of Plymouth
and- Saltash, the manorial lords of East Stonehouse,and
of East and West Anthony, with the stewards of those
manors : ‘the affairs of the poor, the lighting, watching,
and cleansing of the town, and the granting of licenses
to porters and watermen, are all under their superinten-
dence, The county magistrates hold petty sessions
every Wednesday at the town-hall, for the despatch of
business ‘connected with the town and parish. The
town-hall includes, in addition to its principal room,
<. which is seventy-five feet by forty, a watch-house;tem-
‘porary prison, engine-house, &c.; the front is decorated
with a noble Athénian-Doric portico, finished with a

¢ i and tablet, instead .of the
op! ; mear this edifice is a column
 .commemprate the naming of the town anew;

is a descent bya number of steps to two handsome
buildings, one of which, the “?:iner‘s ‘shcp,"zh'l\ﬁ-
mounted by a cupola. Facing these are the basin
and dock, constructed in the reign of William ITI; the
latter is sufficiently. capacious for a seventy-four gu
ship, being in length one hundred and ninety-seven
three inches, in width sixty-five feet ten inches, and in
depth twenty-three feet one inch: the basin is bounded on
cach side by jetty heads; that on the south is named
“the Master Attendant's stairs,” Adjoining to this jetty
is a handsome edifice of lime-stone, with the quoins and
cornices of Portland-stone, four hundred and eighty feet
in length, and three stories high, forming one side of a
quadrangle, and called the “ Rigging House:" over it is
the sail Joft ; and different store-houses complete the
quadrangle, the area of whiclris the “Combustible Store-
house,” entirely composed of iron and stone, the geome-
trical staircase of which is greatly admired. To the
southward is a slip for cleaning the bottoms of vessels,
and beyond ‘it the Camber, a canal seventy feet wide,
terminating ina basin, which is hounded on the north
by the boat-house : this was the boundary of the yard
previously to 1768; all beyond, in.a southerly direction,
is .called ‘the New Ground. Here are the “ Black-
smith’s Shop," a ‘building about two hundred and ten
feet square, containing forty-eight forges, the fires of
which annually consume one thousand three hundred
chaldrons of coal, the anchor-wharf (the largest anchors
made here weigh five tons), a boiling-house, mast-house,
and pond, of which the last is enclosed from the sea by
a strong wall ten feet thick, and three hundred and
cighty long: it is supplied with water through two
openings, of about forty feet wide, crossed by light
wooden bridges. :
"~ Near the mast-house, in a southerly direction, is
a small mount, called Bunker's hill, surmounted by
a_ battery of five -cannon (nine pounders), ope of
which is a beautiful brass piece, made at Paris: from
this elevation the prospect is very fine and extensive.
In the:dock-yard are two lime-stone buildings, parallel
to each other, two stories high, and one thousand two
hundred feet long, called rope houses ; the largest cables
made here are twenty-five inches in circumference, and
one hundred fathoms long, wei 116cwt. 1gr. 16lb.,
worth £404. 9. 3.; a cable of thil’,wmm
dings, in addition to dwellings and store-houses,
“or Model ‘loft. On tl wqﬁﬁﬂfm‘
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piles of ordnance in the yard, each marked with the
" name of the ship in Hamoaze bay to which it belongs, are

notice. The barracks are calculated
to accommodate three thousand . The harbour of
milabontfwrmlhshng,a::idmmihl?‘;oad
its greatest depth, at high water, is een eighteen
and twenty fathoms, at low water, about fifteen :
iln repository for ships of war of all classes.
aretwoepmeopalchapehofeue St. Aubyn's,
lmtedxﬁoemthnpomoo spire at the
west end, mcudbymhmptbnin 1771; and St. John's
‘chapel, also erected by ,in 1799 : the inha-
hitants have also free access to the dock-yard chapel.
There are places of worship for Baptists, Indapendenu,
esleynn Methodists, and Moravians ; the chapel be
thlqﬁnuhnnfrontintheﬂmdoostyle
A | subscription school was erected by subscrip-
tion, and opened in 1821: about one hundred scholars
are educated in it. The public school for boys adjoins
St. John's chapel, and was erected, also by subscription,
in 1809 ; over it is a school-room for girls, of whom

worthy of especial

‘ and con
mainder within the north-western part
territory.  Devonshire under the Romans formed
important part of Britannia Prima, and in th
period of the Saxon era it became part of the kingdom
of the West Saxons, or Wessex., The numerous remains
of fortresses indicate that it was, at a very remote
period, the scene of frequent warfare; and it is pro-
bable that many of them were constructed by the abo-
riginal Britons, as means of defence against the Belge
and other invaders: but the earliest military transaction
authentxcnl}y recorded, is the battle at Beamdune, now
Bampton, in which Cynegils, King of the West Saxons,
vanquished the Britons with great slaughter, about the
year 614. According to Matthew of Westminster.
Brien, the nephew of Cadwallo, the last British king,
wubemegedexeter-byPendn.ngofMema, in 633;
but Cadwallo himself imvmg collected an army, repaired
to the assistance of his nephew, and defeated the Saxon
king. The Danes, at the commencement of their ra-
vages in the south of England, wintered in Exeter in
876 and 877, and in the latter year were besieged there
by King Alfred, who compelled them to enter into a truce.
In the ensuing year, the Danish chief, Hubba, having
landed on the northern coast, was defeated, with the loss
of his famous standard of the raven. In 594, the Danes
again landed in Devonshire, and besieged Exeter, bntn-
treated to their ships on the approach of Alfred’s army.’
About the year 926, Athelstan is supposed to htvgmc
quished Howell, King of Cornwall, near Excter, aud
have expelled the Bntonl (w) mhﬂmﬁi t w\vn
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e i between the houses of York
and Lancaster, Devonshire was much divided : althoufh

recorded to have heen t within its

limits, hed sometimes occurred the par-
izans of the two houses; and in 1472, the Lancas-
trian forces from Cornwall and Devon, under Sir John
Arundell and Sir th Courtenay, mustered at Exeter,
whence they r to the field of Tewkesbury. In
1497, the Cor rebels before Exeter, but
were repulsed by the citizens, and marched forward
into Somersetshire. In the same year Exeter was be-
sieged by Perkin Warbeck, when the siege was raised
by Bdward Courtenay, Earl of Devon, attended by
several Devonshire knights, with the posse comitatus ;
upon which Warbeck and his followers proceeded
towards Taunton. In 1549, some serious commotions
took place in the county, occasioned by the change of
religion, which broke out at Sampford-Courtenay on
‘Whit-Monday, the day after the act for reforming the
church service had been carried into execution. The
disturbance was at first confined to some riotous pro-
ceedings among the lower orders, but assumed, by
degrees, a more serious aspect; and the disaffected,
amongst whom were several of the gentry, assembled
all over this county and that of Cornwall.  On the 2nd
of July they laid siege to Exeter, having previously
transmitted to the king certain articles, to which they
demanded his assent. The council, on the Sth of July,
drew up an answer, refusing to comply with their
demands, bunt discussing the alleged grievances at
length, dnd exh them to return to

this they sent to the rebels, but it
the desired effect. Lord Russell
ywn to suppress the rebellion : he
ire with a considerable force, by
nd'sfger defeating the insurgents in
@oinpelled them to raise the siege
pen reduced to the greatest dis-
fon the 6th of, August, to the
ants : most of the ringleaders

executed,

of the protracted contest be-
e whole of Devon-

DEV

into i
ment of horse, to take the command of the st
troops, to recruit their numbers, and adopt measures
for bl Exeter, which was in consequence closely

invested. About the same time, ‘the parliament, which
had a fort at Appledore, garrisoned Barnstaple
and Bideford : its power being thus in
the north of the county, Colonel John Digby was sent
thither by the , with a regiment horse, and
soon procured reinforcements from Cornwall : having
defeated a considerable detachment from these garri-
sons, Appledore fort, Barnstaple, and Bideford, suc-
cessively surrendered to him in the i

4th of October. Plymouth was then the only impor-
tant post in the county that remained in the posses-
sion of the parliament, and the siege, or blockade, of it
was prosecuted for many months, with varied success,
In July, 1644, the Earl of Essex arrived with his army,
and fixed his quarters at Tiverton, upon which Barn-
staple was once more secured for the t: and
about the end of the same month the earl marched into
Cornwall, the king's forces at the same timeretiring from
before Plymouth. The king having i
low Essex, entered the county by way of Honiten,
the 25th of July, came to Exeter on the 26th, and
Crediton on the 27th; on




d mtp thq northern part
Having held urgnduvaus of his army
¢ morning of the 16th of. February,
ton the same night in his quarters
| tota y defeated his army : a thanks-
W for this victory, which appears to
ave MM—MOW to the power of the royalists

in th wll!;.v Exmouth fort was surrendered on the 15th
of M Exgter which had been blockaded from the
9th of F , was surrendered upon articles by its

VErnor Su' ‘John Berkeley, on the 9th of .A.pnl and
on the U.t.h Barnstaple surrendered. to Fairfax. in per-
~son, mearly the same terms as Exeter ; which city he

_with his victorious army on the 14th, and

mygd there four days. The last garrison in the county
held out for the king was Charles-fort, at Salecombe
ms, wmu d:ffended by Sir Edmund Fortescue
wuntil the June, when it was surrendered on
_honourable terms. In 1688, this county became memo-
rthe as having witnessed the first scene of . the-Revolu-
The Prince of Orange landed at Torbay on the

5th of Noyember, made a- public entry into Exeter on
the 8th, and remmnad there until the 21st, on which
day hc,qpntt.ed ity by. several gentlemen.of
‘Somerset and Devon, and proceeded to Axminster, where
he remained four days. In 1690, Teignmouth was
. burned by the French, and in 17 19, in_consequence of
.ﬂwir preparations for the invasion of England,
nmmmsoﬁhorse and foot were sent into De-
vnmhm ‘and there was an encampment on Clist heath.
In 1779, the combined fieets having appeared off Ply-
caused great alarm, especially on account of the

hpt@d.ﬂ;ﬂnn port ; the prisoner removed to th
nty bridewell at Exeter, sw?l;eexpecmﬂono‘}
ch invasion, in 1778, menl regiments ¢ s.valun-
m;:;g ﬁ'e mtl‘:e
m
was formed

ck-yard, and the numerons prisoners of war then col--

division, the hundreds of sington. B
W 01 n “‘ u’ o ‘ e 8 e 7
. “Shebbear, Sherwill, Soath @h :
the East d“ﬂ!{"m ﬂlm of Axmmsw.

yock, Ottery»St Mary. and Tlvmom an ‘fn the S
division, those of Cnedxtom ‘mington,
minster, Hﬂ}’fm', Llft’onv b’mptqpl : ugh, o
borough, Tavistock, Temgbndge West. ‘Buw cigh
Wonford, It contains the city of Exeter, the boro
and market towns of Ashburton, Bamstqple,,l') xrtmou
Honiton, Oakhampton, Plymouth, Plympton, Tnvistog.k
Tiverton, and Totness ; the horough of ‘Beer-Alston,
which has no market, and the market towns of Ax-
minster, Bampton, Bxdeford South Brent, Brixham,
Chagford, Chudleigh, Chulmleigh, Cullompton, Coly-
ton, Crediton, Deyonport, Hatherleigh, Holsworthy,
Ilfracombe, Kingsbridge, Modbury, South Molton,
Moreton-llampstead Newton-Abbot, Sidmouth, Stene-
house, East Teignmouth, Topsham, Torrington, and Ut
culme, Of the ahove, eight are sea-ports, Diz.i: %r; )
staple, Bideford, Brixhamn, Dartmouth, Exeter,
combe, ngsbndge, and Plymouth ; "besides which;-
there are the ports of Axmouth, Comb- Martln, Hartland,-
Salcombe, Teignmouth (wnhm the port, of Exeter‘),'
and Torquay. Lundy island is also within the limits
of this county. Twenty-six members are returned to
parhament viz., two knights for the shire, two -
sentatives for the city of Exeter, and two for e«:g”
the boroughs : the connty members are elected at Exem ‘
Devonshire is included in the western circuit ; the assxm
and quarter sessions for the county are hcld at
there are one hundred and sixty-seven acting maps—
trates.  The stannary laws, which hay _ been in
force from an early period in the mini
the south-western part of the cour
:lx:ly peculiarity i nlxjx the civil )un
e stan aments
i 8 "‘%"“ di
air, on an :
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ages of Buckfastleigh, Bichop's Morchard, and North
‘Taw m’!‘&; ‘ s;ate.of the woollen trade, asco:g;
“pared period of its greatest pro ty, may
" ascertained from the entrie%r:t the cmyhm at
Exeter, from which city by far the greater part of the
‘woollen goods manufactured in the county is exported.
The years 1768 and 1787 are considered to have heen
‘the periods of the greatest prosperity of the trade; in
‘the er, three hundred and thirty thousand four
‘hundred and fourteen pieces of cloth were exported from
‘Exeter; in the latter, two hundred and ninety-five
‘thousand three hundred and eleven pieces: in 1820,
‘the number was’ one hundred and twenty-seven thou-
«gand four hundred and fifty-nine. The principal foreign
markets now are those of Spain and Portugal : and
hesides the trade with the East India Company, long
«lls are purchased for the private trade of India, and
have been introduced into China by American and
other foreign vessels. At some of the towns in which
the clothing trade has been discontinued, the operative
manufacturers are employed in preparing materials for
the masters in other towns. The manufacture of hone-
lace, at Honiton and Bradninch, introduced probably in
the reign of Elizabeth, is now much on the decline.
Large quantities of shoes, made at Ashburton, Kings-
bridge, and Dartmouth, are sent to Newfoundland.
The principal exports are woollen goods, fish, corn,
malt, cider, timber and bark, silver, copper, tin and
lead ores, antimony (from Cornwall), manganese, marble,
granite, lime, pipe and potters’ clay. The principal
imports are coal, culm, dried fish from Newfoundland,
hemp, tallow, deals, iron, wine, and grocery.
This county is more uniformly hilly than any other
of the same or nearly the same extent in England, the
. proportion of level ground in it being extremely small.
- The Forest of Dartmoor is the highest ground in Devon-
shire, its mean height being estimated at one thousand
seven hundred and eighty-two feet, and its extreme
height at two thousand and ninety : the highest point of
Exmoor, on the border of ersetshire, is one thousand
dguhmmd and ninety feet; and Sholsbury Castle, in
. parish of High Bray, is one thousand five hundred
~ feet high. The general charactér of agreat proportion of
e county “a; a continued succe: ills of the same

ofty banks and
“are shut in,
o the traveller.

1 t the my remarkably
i ; Vs, P filar o coast, and in
* b , es-
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distinguished for their fertility, appear to owe it to their

‘contiguity to lime-stone or d%::al-ltone rocks, which
rict

occur frequently in the slate , More esj in
the South Hams. The red colour which :'Pedhancta'imdly
‘the best soils, both in the South Hams and in the eastern
division of the county, and which seems to be so closely
connected with the principle of fertility, proceeds from
an abundant mixture of iron in a highly oxydised state.
This soil prevails in that part of the South Hams which
is bounded by the rivers Dart and Erme : the hills and
slopes are excellent corn and sheep lands; the valleys
are remarkably rich, and consist chiefly of orchards
and irrigated meadows ; the former being noted for
cider, the latter producing the finest hay, and the earliest
grass. The soil of that part of the South Hams which
lies between the river Dart and Torbay, is still more red
and fertile, generally on a sub-stratum of marble-rock,
and produces excellent pasturage for cattle. The other
part of the South Hams, situated north-west of the
river Erme, is nearly similar to those already described.
There is also an abundance of rich meadow land in the
vales of the Exe and the Otter. A considerable part of
the county north of Hatherleigh and Holsworthy, and ex-
tending eastward to Chulmleigh, Bradninch, &ec.,is prin-
cipally on clay. A large district, extending from Dart-
moor, westward, to the Tamar, northward, to Hather-
leigh and Holsworthy, and eastward, towards Newton-
Bushell, is sandy or gravelly. North-east of the Taw
the soil is light, on a sub-stratum of grey wacke, or, as
it is called in Devonshire, dunstone. Towards Hartland
Point there is much clay and moorland. The soil
about Black-down and Holden is flinty. The rich red
soil, which is of great depth, is sometimes used as a
manure for the poorer lands. The principal manures
are sea-sand, brought in great quantities from Bude, on
the northern coast of Cornwall (for the conveyance of
which a canal has been constructed), and lime. It has
been estimated that the waste lands in the county
amount to three hundred and twenty thousand acres,
being a fifth of the whole surface. Of these, Dartmoor
is computed to contain fifty-three thousand six hundred
and forty-four, exclusively of the numerous and extensive
commons which adjoin it. 'There are also very exten-
sive commons adjoiming Exmoor, as also near Bride-
stowe, besides Roborough-down, Black-down near Ply-
mouth, Black-down on the borders of Somersetshire,
Haldon, &c. Of the land in c‘;xlti\i:ﬁ(:h 's“““’;"’ﬁ‘ the
ter on is pasture land; the South Hams,
E:wuemmmble predominates, in the proportion of at
least three to one; and in the northern parts df'Devoﬁ_
the grazing land prevails in about the same proportion.
An abundance of corn Erowu in the neighbonrﬁood_
of Hartland, Bideford, an Hﬁmm,l?&a;g;mmx
le qu of it is . ;
SIS LT e
s, i 3 B I
' of potatoes is produced in the South Hams :
, ninety thousand four hundred and ninety-
its populous neighbourhood are en

cfrom e
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vast quantity made for home ¢ ) wsumption. In the year same time extremely fer‘.il;. yii h
1520, eleven thousand two hundred and sixty-five Devon-  cipally of the red marl. It a i
mhmwﬂiﬂm&m)mnm dotus, &c., that the
of Exeter (the former sively the Greeks and the T

including T , and the latter Salcombe), besides
what was shipped by the gmwrs and therefore not
liable to duty. There are orchards in almost every part
of the county ; but the cider of the South Hams is pre-
ferred ; and it is there only, and in the neighbourhood
of Euter that it is made for exportation : it is sent
to Londm ‘Newecastle upon Tyne, Sunderland, Leith,
Swamu, Liverpool, and from that place by the canals
into Yorkshire. A considerable quantity of butter is
Semmn the meighbourhood of Honiton, Axminster,
&e, to London. The number of cattle bred in the
is considerable : the breed most esteemed is the
Devon, which is most prevalent in that district,
in general request throughout the county, on
of its great aupermnty for the purposes of
The Devonshire cattle are for the
most part sent in droves from various parts of the
county, to the graziers in. Somersetshire, Essex, &c.,
who fatten them for the London market, The native
hreeds of sheep are the Exmoor, the Dartmoor, and
the Old Devonshire dim-faced nott sheep ; the two for-
mer arve the most prevalent, but the latter has heen
much improved by a cross with the New Leicester : the
Dorsetshire breed prevails in that part of Devonshire
which borders upon that county. The wool is the chief
object of attention with the owners of the forest or
moorland flocks, which are large and numerous. It is
a remarkable circumstance, that the rot has never yet
been known to have originated with sheep constantly
depasturing upon either of the forests of Dartmoor or
. A small breed of horses, between the pack-
horse and the larger cnrt-horse, is much in use in
different parts of the county ; but in the less hilly por-
tions, where one and two horse carts are more commonly
in use, a larger breed is preferred. In the southern and
wqm parts of ;he county mule; ln;i wp::ies&::
yed in carrying packs o
sea-si tothedxstmeeofaevmlmﬂesinl:':i The
‘Mqvm!meh grows to a large size, and is long
n& , »Mdimemions has been much improved by
\ Leicester breed, and a further cross
whsch hnvg éons:dm.’bly reduc!d itn
, county my Mmi
district of g d

the inhabitants of south-western
believed to have conf.in to
even in the middle ages.
Richard 1., it constituted one offhe sources
oft’herevenueofihted x offcqm\y 5‘_ in
1250, Henry IIIL a charter o 2 e
tinners of rl%evon gm'I‘Inmx'e haye been old tin %’g@
most of the parishes bordering on Dartmoor, and stream.
works on most of the rivers in lt:ai] Wbtg;:%ﬂg »
average quantity of tin raised annually wi county,
for six yemtyendmg at Michaelmas, 1620 ﬁ ‘
thousand one hundred and seventy-ome bloc igh
ing 586 cwt. 9lb., and yielding a duty of £45, 2.8
The tin was formerly smelted and coined in the county,
but, on account of the great diminution in the produce

of the mines, it is now taken to Cornwall to be mekpd.
Some copper mines were in operation carly in the last cens
tury, but it was not till the commencement of the present
that they were worked to much extent : the augmented
price of the metal then stimulated the miners togremr ex-
ertions, and, from about the year 1800, the quantity of ore
dug greatly increased. The average annual quantity of
fine copper obtained from the Devonshire mines, which
lie chiefly within a few miles of the town of Tavistock,
for ten successive years, ending in 1820, was about ,fom
hundred tons : four hundred and sixty-three tons were
raised in that year, which brought about £39.590,

The lead mines of this county, and of Corn
contain a greawrf proportion of s'lll_;"er than -
any other part of the kingdom, ¢ mines
kable for

they

Alston and Beer-Ferrers are remar
of time for which at different periods,
worked, and for the q‘ugnmy of sil
them, bexnf in the proportion of fr
hundred and twenty ounces f
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article of commerce. A rail-road has lately been con-
structed to convey it from Dartmoor to Plymouth ; and
another rail-road conveys it from the quarries at Hey-
tor to the Stover canal, which communicates with the
‘wstuary of the Teigu near Newton-Abbots ; the Heytor
miuhhidtobe‘equﬂ in quality to that of Aberdeen.

are quarries of good building-stone and slate.

* The soft sand-stone on the side of Blackdown is work-

ed, while wet, into whetstones, which are sent to Bris-
tol, Gloucester, Worcester, &c.

Salmon are caught
the fishery has of late years declined : lampreys are
found in the Exe and the Mole. The herring fishery on
the northern coast has been, of late years, much less

ive than it was formerly. The pilchard fishery,
on the southern coast, is carried on chiefly in Bighury

7, at Dartmouth, and at Brixham. InTorbay is the
principal fishery for turbot, soles, whiting, mackarel,
and other fish ; the Bath and Exeter markets are sup-

d from it, and a great quantity is sent by sea to
Portsmouth, whence the fish is conveyed by land-car-
rh? to London. At Star-Cross are oyster beds, to
which the oysters are brought from the Teign, from
Weymouth, Pool, Saltash, &c., and having been fed for
a while in these beds, are sent to the Exeter market.
Young oysters from the Teign are also sent to be fed in
the Thames for the London markets.

. The rivers are very numerous; the principal are,
the Axe, the Otter, the Exe, the Teign, the Dart, the
Aven, the Erme, the Yealm, the Plym, the Tamar, the

» Tavy, the Torridge, and the Taw. The Exe from Tops-
ham to'Exmouth is on an average more than a mile

ad, and is navigable for vessels ; from the
m barges reach Exeter by means of a canal.

is navigable up to Totness. The Yealme is na-
or sloops anzp small briggs up to Kitley quay,
for barges and small boats a mile higher. The
n is navigable for vessels of war up to Catwater,

s of about fifty tons up to Crabtree. The
dge is navigable for vesscls burden up to
rd, and for boats up to Wear-Gifford. The Taw
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in all the principal rivers ; but’
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from Bridport, and passes through Axminster, Honiton,
Exeter, Ashburton, South Brent, and Plympton, to
Plymouth ; its course through the county being about
seventy-seven miles, Auother road from Exeter to Ply-
mouth branches off at Alphington, and passes t
Totness, its course being about forty-six miles.
great road from London to Falmouth and the Land's
End branches off at Exeter, passes through Oakhampton,
and quits the county at Polston bridge, forty miles from
Exeter. Another road from Exeter to the Land's End
passes over Dartmoor, and through Tavistock, entering
Cornwall at New-bridge, thirty-five miles from Exeter.,
Among British antiquities may be classed the re-
markable circular enclosure formed by loose stones,
called Grimspound, in the parish of Manaton ; and the
smaller ones found on many parts of Dartmoor, gnd in
other similar situations ; the large cromlech at Drewe's
Teignton, and the several tumuli or barrows which oc-
cur on the downs in various parts of the county, espe-
cially in the north, Of the numerous ancient encamp-
ments, many are believed to be British ; and it has been
the opinion of some antiquaries, that the chain of strong
posts on the eastern side of Devonshire was constructed
by the Damnonii, to defend their frontier against the
Morini : that several of these camps, however, were oc-
cupied, if not constructed, by the Romans, appears from
the Roman coins that have been found in them. The
following are the principal ancient roads still to be traced
in parts of their course through the county; the Ik-
nield-way, which crosses the county from Dorsetshire
into Cornwall, passing through Exeter ; the Fosse-way,
which fell into, or crossed the former near the eastern
border of the county; and the Port-way, which led from
the centre of Somersetshire towards Exeter, in the line
of the present turnpike-road from Taunton. Of the
many Roman stations, the only one, the situation of
which has been fixed with certainty, is Isca Damnoniorum,
near Exeter. Before the Reformation there were thirty-
three religious houses, including a preceptory of the
Knights Templars ; but the relics of monastic buildings,
except those of Tavistock abbey, are inconsiderable :
there were also twelve collegiate churches, and one col-
iate chapel, of which societies only that of the church
St, Peter, at Exeter, remains ; the number of ancient
hospitals was sixteen, of which seven are still in exist-
ence. In the ruins of ancient castles and castellated
mansions there is little th.tbi%lmel; those of
Berry-Pomeroy castle are pro "
In most p{rts of the cider district the custom sti
prevails of what was anciently called wassailing the ap-
ple-trees, the ceremony being performed, in some places,
on Christmas in others on Twelfth-day eve, by
ing a health to one of the apple-trees in cider, with
for its fruitful bearing. The yule, or Christmas
still burned on Christmas-eve, in some of
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DEWCHURCH (LITTLE), a parish in the upper

division of the hundred of Wormrrow, county of carpe

Hererorp, 6 miles (8. by E.) from Hereford, containing
330 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, an-
nexed to the vi e of L ine, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Hereford. The chapel is dedi-
cated to St. David. ;

DEWCHURCH (MUCH), a parish in the upper di-
vision of the hundred of WormeLOW, county of Here-
¥orp, 6§ miles (8. W, by 8.) from Hereford, containing
585 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, rated in the
king's books at £9. 13. 4., and in the patronage of T. H.
Symons, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. David.

DEWLISH, a parish and liberty in the Blandford
(North) division of the county of Dorser, 95 miles
(8, W.) from Blandford-Forum, containing 386 inhabi-
tants. The living is a vicarage, annexed to the vicarage
of Milbourn St. Andrew, in the archdeaconry of Dorset,
and diocese of Bristol, rated together at £13. 6. 8. The
church is dedicated to All Saints.

DEWSALL, a parish in the upper division of the
hundred of WormELow, county of HEerEeromrn, 5%
miles (S.W. by 8.) from Hereford, containing 33 inhabit-
ants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the pecu-
liar jurisdiction of the Dean of Hereford, rated in the
king’s books at £4, endowed with £200 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Governors of Guy's Hos-
pital, London. The church is dedicated to St. Michael.

DEWSBURY, a parish comprising the market
town of Dewsbury, the chapelry of Ossett, and the
townships of Soothill, in the lower division of the wa-
pentake of AcsriGe, and the chapelry of Clifton,
and the township of Hartshead, in the wapentake of
Morsey, West riding of the county of York, and
‘containing 16,261 inhabitants, of which number, 6380
are in the town of Dewsbury, 34 miles (5. W.) from
York, and 188 (N. N. W.) from London, This place
is supposed to have derived its mame from Dui, the
tutelar deity of the Brigantes, to whom a votive altar,
dedicated by Aurelianus, is still preserved at Brad-
ley, said to have been called Duis burgh, or Duisbo-
rough, from which its present appellation is derived.
It was a place of importance during the infancy of the
Christian Church in Britain, and was the mother church
in this part of the county. Edwine, King of Northum-
bria, had a royal mansion here, in which his que
was attended by Paulinus, first Archbishop of York,
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rising into importance for its manufacture of -
ﬁcto:i."(nd e e e e —
es (one of which is the largest in the kingdom), giv-
ing employment to more than five thousand pers "9;
the town and : ' ]
peculiarly favourable for the fulling of woollen goods.
Abundance of coal of very superior quality is found in
the neighbourhood. The river Calder and the :
afford a direct communication between the eastern and *
western seas, and with Liverpool, Manchester, Rochdale,
Halifax, and Wakefield, to the Humber. The market is

el 4
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.

“on Wednesday : the fairs are on the Wednesdays before

Old May-day, and New Michaelmas-day, and October 6th,
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch

and diocese of York, rated in the king's books at
#£22. 18. 9., endowed with £200 private benefaction, &nd
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church, dedicated to All Saints, a very e
structure, having given way in 1767, was rebuilt, with a
due regard to the preservation of its ancient ¢
during the progress of the work, part of a Saxon
was found and removed to the parsonage-house. [The
church, at Dewsbury Moor, dedicated to St.John, and
containing six hundred sittings, of which two hundred
and forty-eight are free, was erected in 1827, at an ex-
pense of £5502. 16. 8., by grant from the parli
commissioners, who have built similar churches at Earl’s-
Heaton and Hanging-Heaton. There are places of wor-
ship for the Society of Friends, Independents, and Wes-
leyan and other Methodists. The charity school has an
endowment of £108 per annum, arising from an,.
purchased with donations of Mrs. Bedfogdy M¥. Thomas
Bedford, and Mr. William Walker : a Sepfra#ly h

for the master, with a large school-room, was, bu
1810, at an expense of £1300, defrayed from
of coal on the estate ; there are one hundred boy
structed in this school by a master, whose salary i
per annum. A schiool-house has been recently built I

a decree of Chancery, relating to the Wheelwright charity,
at an of £600, in which one hundred A
instructed on the n

girls are
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g is, . discharged vicarage, with which the
s, a. . - » w
7 of Pinnock is consolidated, in the
- and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at
£7. 9. 10, endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
r of C. Hanbury Tracy, Esq. The church,
to St. George, appears from an inscription
been built about 1470 ; it is in the later style
of English architecture, with an embattled tower and

. DIDDINGTON, a parigh in the hundred of Toze-
1AND, county of HunTinGDON, 3% miles (N.) from St.
Neot's, containing 157 inhabitants, . The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon,
and diocese of Lincoly, rated in the king's books at
£7,4. 74, and in the patronage of the Warden and
Fellows of Merton College, Oxford. The church is de-
dicated to St. Lawrence. The river Ouse runs through

.~ DIDDLEBURY, a parish in the hundred of Muns-
w, county of Sarop, comprising the townships of Did-
, Middlehope, Peaton, and Sutton, and contain-
ing 987 inhabitants, of which number, 434 are in the
township of Diddlebury, 6% miles (N.) from Ludlow. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Salop, and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's books
at £12. 1. 3, and in the patronage of the Dean and
Chapter of Hereford. The church is dedicated to St.
Peter. Here was formerly an Alien priory, which, with
the patronage of the ¢hurch, belonged to the abbot and
convent.of i or Seez, in Normandy, and was af-

ards appropriated to the abbey of Shrewsbury.
LING, a parish in the hundred of Dumrrorp,
of CaicnesTER, county of Sussex, 4 miles (S.W.
: V.) from Midhurst, containing 81 inhabitants. The
wmy with Trayford, in the archdeaconry
\ e of Chichester. The church is in the early

style of English architecture

N, a tything in the parish of Crar-
1 of BApsury, Shaston (East) division of
of Dorset, 1 mile (N.w.) from Chalbury,
the i returned. Here was an-
remains of which are still visible,
ed into a farm-house : foundations of
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DIDSBURY, a chapelry in the parish of Max-
cHESTER, hundred of SAl:yroin, OOI;’::‘] of
Laxcaster, 3 miles (W.) from Stockport, contain-
ing 933 inhabitants. The living is a perpetnal curacy,
in the archdeacoury and diocese of Chester, en-
dowed with £400 private benefaction, and £ 600 royal
bounty. The chapel is dedicated to St.John. There
are fairs for cattle, held April 30th and October 22d.
Sir Edward Moseley, in 1685, conveyed certain lands,
which, with subsequent donations, produce £46 a
year, for the maintenance of a schoolmaster, who
teaches forty children in a school-room built by sub-
scription.

DIGBY, a parish in the wapentake of FraxweLy,
parts of KesTEvEN, county of LincoLn, 6 miles (N.
by E.) from Sleaford, containing 277 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, united, in 1717, to the
rectory of Bloxham, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £5. 2. I1. The
church is dedicated to St. Thomas 2 Becket.

DIGSWELL, a parish in the hundred of Broan-
WATER, county of HErTFORD, 14 mile (S.E: by 8.) from
Welwyn, containing 204 inhabitants. - The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and dio
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £7. 4. 2.
The Rev. J. J. Watson, D.D. was patron in 1811. The
church, dedicated to St. John the Evangelist, has a
chapel on the north side, and a square embattled tower
at the west end; it contains many ancient effigies in
brass, with various other sepulchral emblems. The
parish is bounded on the north by the river Mimeram,
and on the south by the Lea.

DILHAM, a parish in the hundred of TussTEAD,
county of NorroLk, 4§ miles (S.E.) from Norta Wal-
sham, containing 420 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage with the vicarage of Honing united.
in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Nor--
wich, rated in the king's books at £5.7. 11., and in
the patronage of the Bishop of Ely. The church is de-
dicated to St. Nicholas.

DILHORNE, a parish in the northern division of
the hundred of TormonsLow, county of Starrorp, 24
miles (W.) from Cheadle, containing, with the township
of Forsbrook, 1409 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Stafford, and
diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's
books at £8. 13., and in the patronage of the Dean and
Chapter of Lichfield and Coventry. The church, dedi-
cated to All Saints, is a spacious structure; the body is
modern, but the chancel and tower are very ancient, the
latter being of an octagonal form, large, and unadorned,
#ud esteemed the most specimen of the Norman
found in England. Adjoining the church-
grammar school, said to have been
earl of Huntingdon, in the reign of

<4
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MORLAND, 8§ miles (N.E. by E.) from ‘Kendal, contain-
ing 89 inhabitants. It is bo\mdeddn the east by the
river Lune.

DILLINGTON, a hamlet in tlmt part of the parish
of East Derenam which is in the hundred of Laun-
nircH, county of Norrork, 24 miles (N.N.W.) from
East Dercham, containing 29 inhabitants.

DILSTON, a township in the parish of CorRBRIDGE,
eastern division of TiNpare ward, county of NorTHUM-
BERLAND, 3 miles (E. by 8.) from Hexham, containing
162 inhabitants. Its name, a corruption of Devilstone,
is derived from its situation on a rivulet called Devil
water, which, after flowing through a deep and gloomy
dell, falls into the Tyne on the northern boundary of
the . There is a tower remaining of the ancient
baronial residence of the Devilstones, also a chapel for-
merly bhelonging to the mansion of the Ratcliffes, earls
of Derwentwater, and which shared the fate of their
other estates, on the attainder of the last earl, who was
beheaded for high treason in 1716.  Though the chapel
is not used for divine service, it is kept in repair as a

- mark of respect for the unfortunate family, many of
‘whom lie buried in a vault in it. Bede says that Oswald,
¢ armed with faith in Christ, killed Ceadwall, the British

tyrant, at this place, which he calls Devilesbourne.

DILTON, a chapelry in the parish and hundred of
Westsury, county of Wints, 23 miles (S.8.W.) from
Westbury, containing 2006 inhabitants, The chapel is
dedicated to St. Mary. There is a fair for cattle, horses,
and cheese, on the 24th of September.,

DILWORTH, a township in that part of the parish
of RipcuesTer which is in the lower division of the
hundred of BnAckBurN, county palatine of LANCASTER,
7 miles (N.E.) from Preston, containing 969 inhabit-
ants,

DILWYN, a parish in the hundred of StrETFORD,
county of Herevorn, 24 miles (N.E. by N.) from Weob-
ley, containing 1026 inhabitants. The living is a vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, rated
in the king’s books at £6. 2. 6., and in thepamnngeof
the Bishop of Hereford, The ‘church is dedicated to
St. Mary. A chapel formerly stood at Little 'Dllwyn
A school is endowed with a house, orchard and

by»’.l.'mn Lambe, Esq., and with nine acres of

by Thomas Phillips, Esq., which, with annual do-
mﬁiﬁ.s.mh from the vicar and Samuel
reploesﬁ:ymm the master's salary. There are
alsoa and a working school supported by volun-
tn-y dnmﬁonamd collections, Here is thought to have
‘a monastic utubﬁahment to whiuh were
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ford, contaning 901 inbabitaits. The |
tory, with the of MW“»

books at £8. 9. 7., and in the ' the
and Fellows of Wm-ceuwrﬂnll@ Oﬁoul. mw
is dedicated to St. Andrew. RS

DINGESTOW, a parish in the lomdwxsibbd the
hundred of Racranp, county of MonmouvrsH,
(W.8.W.) from Monmouth, containing, with the extra-
pu-oc]hial liberty of Grace-Dien park, 174 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, with the
of ng., in the archdeaconry and dimm
daff, rated in the king's books at £4. 10., and in the
patronage of the Archdeacon and Chapter of Llandaff.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. The river Trothey
runs throngh the parish, and sometimes overflows the
adjacent grounds.

DINGLEY, a parish in the hundred of Com,
county of Norrmameron, 24 miles (E. by N.) from
Market-Harborough, containing 150 inhabitants.  The
living is a rectory, in the nrrhdeaconry of North
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books
at £9. 9. 4., and in the patronage of H, H. Hun
Esq. The church is dedicated to All Saints. is
a Sunday school with a trifiing endowment, The parish
is bounded on the north-west by the river Welland, and
is beautifully diversified with hill and dale. On the site of
Dingley hall there was formerly a preceptory of the
knights of St. John of Jerusalem ; it was founded in the
reign of Stephen, and at the dissolution possessed a re-
venue valued at £108. 138. 5. per annum : near the
spot an ancient bead and a coin of Cunobeline have been
found. :

DINHAM, a hamlet in the parish of Laxvatr-Dis-
corp, upper division of the hundred of Ca 7
county of MoNmourTH, 5 miles (W. by 8.) from Chep-
stow, containing 30 inhabitants. Here was M
chapel, but it has been demolished. =

DINKLEY, a township in the parish and lmﬁ»
vision of the hundred of BrLacksurN, county
of LAncAsTER, 6 miles (N.) from ' Bh&bnn, w
ing 238 inhabitants. Wikas

DINMORE,; ‘an' extra-parochial Tiberty; u: m un-
dred of GrimswonrT, county of HErEroRD, 9 =
by W.) from Hereford, containing 14 w
Dinmore hill stood a eomma.ndery of the knights :
Johnd Jmﬂen,&mnded by -m cf ﬂﬂ-
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~containing 189 inhabitants. The living is a

W rectory, in the arche

(ork, rated in the Akingfshooks at £4, endowed with
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicatéd to St. Nicholas. ; "

"~ DINSDALE (LOW), a parish in the south-western
division of STrockToN ward, county palatine of Durbam,
6 miles (8, E. by B.) from Darlington, containing 111
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Durham, rated in the king's
hooks at £4. 11. 53., endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
the Dean and Chapter of Durham. The church is dedi-
cated to St. John. There is a trifling endowment for a
schiool, left by Thomas Wivill, in 1675. A sulphureous
well was discovered in 1789, at the depth of seventy-
two feet from the surface; it has received the mame
of Dinsdale Spa, and has become a place of great
resort since the recent erection of a commodious inn
by Lord Durham, and an extensive ‘suite of hot and
cold baths, for the greater comfort of invalids: the
water is serviceable in chronic and cutaneous cases :
nearly surrounding the spa are beautiful plantations
and walks. About two miles up the river Tees are the
remains. of an old bath, the water of which is of a
saline quality ; and below the village is a productive
salmon-fishery, belonging to Lord Durham. Francis
Place, the celebrated painter, was born here ; he disco-
vered a species of earth for making porcelain, and ma-
nufactured some at York, where he died in 1728.

DINSDALE (OVER), a township in that part of the
parish of Socksunrn which is in the wapentake of Avr-
LERTONsHIRE, North riding of the county of York, 63
miles (8. W. by W.) from Yarm, containing 66 inhabitants.
. DINTING, a township in the parish of Gurossor,

undred of Hicu Peak, county of Dersy, 9} miles
(N. by w.) from Chapel en le Frith, containing 152 in-

. DINTON, a parish chiefly in the hundred of Ayres-
wURY, but comprising also the hamlet of Aston-Mollins
in the hundred of Asurxpon, and the liberty of More-
© ton in the hundred of DussorouvGu, county of Buck-
4 miles (W. 8. W.) from Aylesbury, zontain-
abita The living is a vicarage, in the arch-
'~ Bu ham, 3:5 diocese of Lincoln, rated
's books at £17. 9. 7., and in the patronage
wan,  The church, dedicated to St. Peter and
‘has a small portion in the Norman style of
The river Tame runs through the parish ;

4T DIS

DIPPENHALL, a tything in the parish and hundred
of CronpaLL, Basingstoke division of the county of
Sou'x:mm_vrox, 1 mile (W.) from Farnham, containing
312 inhabitants.  Dippenhall is within the jurisdiction
of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every Thurs-
day, for the recovery of debts to any amount.

DIPTFORD, a parish in the hundred of StaNBO-
RrOUGH, county of Devown, 5% miles (W.8.W.) from
Totness, containing 653 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £29, 2. 1. Miss
Taylor was patroness in 1817. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary. 4

DIRHAM, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of GrumBaLD'S Asm, county of Grovcks-
TER, 4 miles (W.N.W.) from Marshfield, containing,
with the tything of Hinton, 526 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at £14. 12. 6.
W. Blaithwayt, Esq. was patron in 1828, The church,
dedicated to St. Peter, is a handsome building, with por-
tions in the early and later styles of English architec-
ture. The Rev. W. Langton, in 1668, devised two-thirds
of the proceeds of £600, now amounting to £60. 12. a
year, for educating and apprenticing poor children of the
parish, The Rev. Peter Grand, in 1791, bequeathed a
house and an annuity of £10, producing together £42
per annum for the master; and £16 a year is paid to
a schoolmistress at Hinton, for teaching twenty chil-
dren. Several small springs rise in the parish, which
unite and form the river Boyd. There are remains of
huge ramparts, called Barhill camp, near which Ceawlin,
the Saxon, in a most sanguinary battle, slew Commeail,
Condidan, and Fariemeiol, petty kings of the Britons,
and took possession of their country.

DISCOVE, a tything in the parish and hundred of
Bruron, county of SomerseT, 1 mile (8. E. by 8.) from
Bruton, containing 43 inhabitants. At this place, called
in Domesday-book Dinescove, were discovered, in 1711,
some remains of a Roman tesselated pavement.

DISEWORTH, a parish in the western division of
the-hundred of Goscotr, county of Lercester, 6 miles
(N. W. by W.) from Loughborough, containing 718 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £4, endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the Master and Wardens of the Haberdashers’
Company. The church is dedicated to St. Michael. Dise-
worth is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster,
and within the jurisdiction of a court of pleas held at
Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts
under 40s. William Lilly, the celebrated. astrologer, was
born here in 1602. ’

. DISHFORTH, a chapelry in that part of the parish

 of Topcrirrr which is in the wapentake of HAq}i.;um,

. North riding of the county of Yorx, 4 miles (N, N.w.)
from B u,lcontni 8:;; bita M&M
living is a perpetual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdic-

Al bouinti WG4 ot St ettt
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“Leicester, 13 mile (N.W.) from lthorough, con-
taining, with Thorpacre, 351 inhabitants. The chapel is
dedicated to AllSaints. The river Soar and the Lough-
horough canal pass through the parish.

DISS, a market town and parish in the hundred
of Diss, county of Norrork, 22 miles (S.8.W.) from
Norwich, and 92 (N.E.) from London, containing 2764
inhabitants, This place, formerly Disce or Dice, was held
in royal demesne in the reign of Henry 1., and in that of
Edward 1. became the property of Robert Fitzwalter,
who obtained for it the privilege of a market. The town
is pleasantly situated near the river Waveney, by which it
is separated on the south from the county of Suffolk,
and consists of several strects, of which the prmcxpnl
are spacious and well paved : the houses are in general
well built, and have a neat and handsome appearance :
the inhabitants are amply supplied with water ; and at
the extremity of the town, and nem-ly in the centre of
the parish, is a mere of seven acres in extent, which
abounds with eels. The principal branch of manufacture
is that of hempen cloth. The market is on Friday, which
is also for the sale of yarn and linen cloth : the fair is
“on the 8th of November, for cattle and toys. The living
is @ rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £33. 6. 8., and
in the patronage of the Rev. W, Manning, The church,
dedicated to St. Mary, is an ancient structure in the
early and decorated styles of English architecture, with a
square embattled tower : the nave is lighted by a fine
range of double clerestory windows; and the south
porch has a semicircular-headed door-way, over which
is a large window of seven lights: it was probably
erected by some of the Fitz-Walters, about the close of
the thirteenth or fourteenth century. There are places
of worship for the Society of Friends and Independents.
A charity school, originally endowed at Palgrave, in the
county of Suffolk, was, in 1713, removed to this town,
and kept in a building which was formerly the town-
hall. h de Diceto, Dean of* St. Paul's in the reign
of Henry II.; Walter, a Carmelite friar of Norwich, con-
fessor to John of Gaunt, were natives of this parish; of
-which also, John Skelton, poet-laureat to Henry VIIL.,
Md “styled by Emmns “ the light and ornament of

scholars,” was rector.

BKSSING'!ON (NORTH), a townshlp in that part
~of the parish of Newsur~ which is in the western divi-
sion of CasTLE ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 10
miles (N. W. by W.) from Newcastle upon Tyne, cont-.in
/ing 65 inhabitants. '!’Im'ewufm-meﬂyd , sub-
~ordinate to '
has been long since
Dehvalmbmliue; hcd’iudinno'rw’n T

* DISSINGTON (SOUTH), a towns
ofthep-i-hdﬂmmvh&h; uﬁew
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of which is burnt into lime: mill-stones, and grind-
stones are also obtained. There are manufactories
for linen-thread, hats, and edge tools. A school was
erected in 1754, and is endowed with about £3 a
year, arising from land then given by the parish. South
of the village are the remains “of Hayes castle, tlw
ancient residence of the family of Moresby.

DISTLEY, a chapelry in the parish of S-mc:ronr,
hundred of MA( CLESFIELD, county palatine of CausTEr,
62 miles (8, E.) from Stockport, containing 1533 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with £8 per
annum private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and
£1200 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
Thomas Legh, Esq. The chapel, dedicated to All Saints,
which was rebuilt in 1558, in the later style of English
architecture, has an erbattled tower; also windows of
stained glass, exhibiting several portmts and armorial
bearings. A school is endowed with £10. 5. per annum,
the produce of divers benefactions. The Peak Forest
canal passes through the parish.

DITCHAMPTON, a parish in the hundred of
Brancu and Dorr, county of Wivrts, § of a mile (N.)
from Wilton, with which the population is returned.
The living is a rectory united to the rectory of Wilton,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salisbury, rated in
the king's books at £10. The church, which was dedi-
cated to St. Andrew, has been demolished.

DITCHBURN, (EAST and WEST), a township in
the parish of Ervineuam, southern division of Bam-
BROUGH ward, county of Non'mvmnnunn, contain-
ing 97 inhabitants : the former village is 8% miles
(N. N.W.), and the latter 8 (N.W. by N.), from Alnwick.
Within this township was a fortified tower with l,gphne
of safety for cattle during the border warfare. .

DITCHEAT, a parish in the hundred of Wmn
sToNE, county of SomErseT, 3} miles (N.N.W.) from
Castle-Cn.ry, containing 1223 inhabitants, hvmg
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese
of Bath and Wells, rated in the king’s books avm 5.
Mrs. Leir and another were patrons in 1812. 'The
church is dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene, Thpoﬂ
Roman fosse-way bounds the pansh on the

with £.910 pnvau hene!
,andintbzpntmnagcaf
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Stretton on thé Fass, in the archdeaconry of Gloucester,
and ‘diocese of Worcester, rated in the king’s ‘books at
£6. The church, which was dedicated to St. Giles, has

- DITCHFORD, a hamlet in the of BLockLEy,
upper division of the hundred of ALDSLOW, county
of WorcEsTER, though locally in the upper division of
the hundred of | county of Gloucester, 4}
miles (8. W. by W.) from Shipston upon Stour, containing
46 inhabitants

- DITCHINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Lop-
voN, county of NorrorLk, 134 miles (8.E. by 8.) from
Norwich, containing 761 inhabitants, The living isa
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king’s books at £16, and in the
of the Duke of Norfolk, who presents to a
fellow of St. John's College, Cambridge. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary. j - ’
. DITTERIDGE, a parish in the hundred of Carp-
PENHAM, county of Wivrs, 73 miles (W. 8. W.) from
Chippenham, containing 86 inhahitants. = The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and
diocese, of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at
£2. 8. 9., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the
pat of the Rev. E. Northey.

DITTISHAM, a parish in the hundred of Covrk-
RIDGE, county of Devon, 5% miles (N. by W.) from
Dartmonth, containing 704 inhabitants. The living is a
réctory, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £34. 15. Viscount
Valletort was patron in 1827. The church, dedicated
to St. George, has a richly sculptured stone pulpit.
The which is remarkable for the beauty of its
scenery, is crossed by the navigable river Dart, over
which there is a ferry. ‘

‘DITTON, a chapelry in the parish of Stoxe-Poaes,
dred of Stoxx, county of Buckineuam, 14 mile
from Colnbrook. The population is returned

h. The chapel is dedicated to St. Mary.
, & parigh in the hundred of LArkrieLp,
YLESFORD, county of Kunt, 35 miles (N. W,
m Maidstone, containing 192 inhabitants.
a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese:
A in the king's books at £11, 15.
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IRIDE miles (N.E. by E.) from ‘ ;
“ ﬁi&hw? The living is  £12. 16.

£96. 12

#

1796, Thechurch,
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of the hundred 6f Kinasron, of SUrrEY;
miles (8.8.W.) from Kin nponm Thqmwj » oo
with ‘the hamlét of Talworth, 595 inhabitants. The

is a rectory, in the archde‘eonry of Surrey, and

DITTON (PRIORS), a parish partly in the hundred
of Munsrow, but chiefly within the liberty of the borough
of WeNvLock, county of Savoe, 74 miles (W,8.W.) from
Bridgenorth, containing, with the township of Ruthale
with Ashfield, which is in Munslow hundred, 685 inha-
bitants, The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Salop, and diocese of Hereford, rated in
the king's books at £5.15. 8. . John Baxter, Esq. was
patron in 1791, The church is dedicated to St. John
the Baptist.

DITTON (THAMES), a parish comprising the manor
of Cleygate, in the second division of the hundred of
Kingsron,and the hamlet of Ember with Weston, in the
second division of the hundred of ELMBRIDGE, county
of Surrey, 2} miles (S.W, by W.) from Kingston upon
Thames, and containing 1592 inhabitants, Theliving is
a perpetual curacy, in thearchdeaconry of Surrey, and
diocese of Winchester, and in the pa of the Provost
and Fellows of King's College, Cambridge. The church,
dedicated to St. Nicholas, was formerly a chapel of ease
to Kingston upon Thames, from which it was separated
and made parochial, by act of parliament in 1769: it
is a small building near the bank of the Thames, with
a low square tower and wooden spire at the west end,
and formerly contained many ancient monuments and
sepulchral brasses, which have been either taken away, or
are now concealed by the pews. There is a place of
worship for Independents. An almshouse for four
poor widows, with a small endowment, was founded
about 1630, by Elizabeth Hill; and, in 1720, Henry
Bridges bequeathed a rent-charge of £80 to endow an
almshouse containing tenements for six poor men or
women. William Hatton, in 1703, left by will a rent-
charge of £20 to the minister of Thames-Ditton, subjeet
to the approval of a majority of the inbabitants, other-
wise to poor housekeepers not receiving alms. There
is also a considerable number of small benefactions,
and the overseers have the privilege of sending three
patients annually to the Westminster Infirmary.

DITTON (WOOD),a parish in the hundred of Cugve-
LEY, county of CAMBRIDGE, 24 miles (s.s.n..).ﬁ-ox.n
Newmarket, containing 812 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, consolidated with the rectory of
St. Mary, Newmarket, in the archdeaconry of Sudbary,
and diocese pf Norwich, rated in the king's books at

~ The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
: , or DICKLESTON, a hamlet in the pa-
rish of Arprrron, upper division of the hundred of
TEWKESBURY, county of GLOUCESTER, 43 miles(W.N.W.)
from Winchcombe. The population is returned with
the parish. 'J,‘dl:i: the reign of Edward 111. was
apel
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of the hundred of SkENFRETH, of MonmouTH,
comprising the hamlets of ﬁidnaek Dixton and New-
ton-Dixton, and’ con 565 inhabitants, of which
number, 205 are in the hamlet of Newton-Dixton, 1§ mile
(N.E.) from Monmouth. The living is a discharged vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, rated
in the king's books at £7. 8. 1}., and endowed with
£200 “bounty. = Lord Viscount Gage was patron
in 1828, ' The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

DOBCROSS, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of ‘Rocupare which is in the upper division of the

wapentake of Aenrice, West riding of the county of
Yourk, 13 miles (8. w.) from Huddersfield. The living
is'a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Chester, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
£1000 royal bounty, and £2000 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of certain Trustees.

DOCKER, a township in that part of the parish of
Kenpar which is in Kenparn ward, county of Wesr-
MORLAND, 4% miles (N.E. by E.) from Kendal, contain-
ing 89 inhabitants,

DOCKING, a parish in the hundred of SmiTHDON,
county of NorroLk, 5% miles (8.W. by W.) from Burn-
ham-Westgate, containing 1107 inhabitants. The living
isa discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and ‘diocese 'of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£13.°6. 8., and in the patronage of the Provost and
Feéllows of Eton College, on the nomination of the Bishop
of Norwich. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
There is a place of ‘worship for Wesleyan Methodists. In
the charter of endowment of Eton College, mention is
made of the Alien priory of Dokkyng : the monks are
supposed by Dr. Tanner to have belonged to the abbey
de TIbreio in Normandy, to which this church was for-
merly appropriated.  Summerfield House, about two
miles north-westward, is a corruption of Suthmere,
which ‘at ‘the period of the Norman survey, and later,
was a town of some importance, with a church dedicated
to All Saints, ofwh:chthcremnotatpmtmy
vestiges.

BOCKINGFIELD a tything in that “of the
puhh of FRENSHAM wluch is in the of Amon,

Alton (North) division of the county of 8qm¢umu, :

miles w.fromFunhnm Min-
4 vy S containing

 DOCKLOW; & parish in the husdred of WoLpay,
county of Hlurou, 54 miles (E. by 8.) from Leo-
) , with- the wwmh:p of Fenwét 191

Magdalene. The town, situated on the .
‘hill, is indifferently built, but well &

peculln'wﬂﬁ.

it is noted for its white ale, a bev
part of Devonshire, which is ready for use on the day
after it is brewed, and in this parish is subject to tithe,

in lieu of which, the rector receives a ‘commutation of
ten-pence from each inn-k The market, formerly
held regularly, is now held only on the third Wednesday
in every month : there is a cattle fair on the Wednesday
before Palm-Sunday. The living is a discharged reec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king’s books at £8. 11. 4., and in
the patronage of the Rev. Dr. Owen. The chmh; de-
dicated to St.Thomas a Becket, is built on rising ground,
at the extremity of the town ; it is an ancient structure,
strengthened with buttresses, and embattled, and con-
tains an ancient stone font in the early English style,
and a wooden screen finely carved. 'Dr. Wolcott, the
satirical poet, more generally known by the assumed
name of Peter Pindar, was a native of this place.
DODCOT, a joint township with Wilkesley, partly
in the parish of Wrennury, but ¢hiefly in that of
Avuprewm, hundred of Nanrwicn, county palatine of
CrESTER, 4 miles (W.8. W.) from Audlem, containing
670 inhabitants, The chapel of Burley Dam, which is
in the parish of Audlem, stands in this township; it
is a neat modern structure, founded by Sir Lynch Sa-
lusbury Cotton, Bart. In that part of the township
which is in the parish of Wrenbury, Hugh de Malbane,
in 1183, founded the Cistercian monastery of Comber-
mere, and dedicated it to St. Mary and St. Michael, the
revenue of which, at the dissolution, wuvdhed at
£258. 6. 6. : the site and buildings were pmtelﬁ; in the
32nd of Henry VIIL, to William Cotton, Esq., an an-
cestor of Lord Combermere, whose &mﬂym ‘occu-
pymg the spot, is lgreeubly liwm the 1 of
thetitleofbuunfrmnthls e W
DODDENHAM, a ! of Kum
wick, lower division of the hundred of Dumm!mz.
county of Worcnsren, 74 miles (w by !:M ) from Wot-

of Dmmcu. m




 the archdeaconry
Mhmm-mm £10.3.9. Jarvis Kmrick,
Mﬂum in l818. The church is dedicated to

DWGWN. l’n'ishmthe nm‘.hern division
of the hundred of Wircurorp, Isue of ELy, county of
CAMBRIDGE, 44 miles (8. by W.) from March, comprising
the chapelries of Benwick and Marsh, and the hamlet of
Wimblington, and. containing 5899 inhabitants, ~The
living is a rectory, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
Bishop of Ely, and in the patronage of Sir H. Peyton,
Bart. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. The sum
of £500, given in 1719, by Lionel Walden, Esq., a na-
tive of the parish, for the erection of a free school,
having for many years remained unappropriated, has
accumulated to £1800 three per cents., and £500 four
per cents., and a school has been recently established,
the master of which has a salary of £40 per annum
and a house, .,

DODDINGTON, a township in the parish of Wy.
BUNBURY, hundred of Nanrwich, county palatine of
Cugsrer, 54 miles (8.E.) from Nantwich, containing
39 inhabitants. There is a mutilated tower, which
formed part of Doddington castle, erected by Sir John
Delvesiin 1364, where are preserved statues of Lord
Auﬂky and his four squires who fought under the Black
Prince at Poictiers ; near it stood the old hall, which
wagamde a puliman garrison in the civil war,

o m ill:;gbx».}-qrd Byron, in January 1644, and

e t, shortly after, . Sir Thomas

d in 1727, gave by daed £1535 for the

MM,W derived from which is

_schools at Doddmgtoo;l u;(:
t

‘,mhinhg ,l_ hitants.
'%mhuqmat

ed. wi Miﬂbmﬂ bounty, md in
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Waooler, - The living is a p 1 curacy, h-
deaconry of Northumberland,. mml:f%i;::m
and in the patronage of the Dnhq of Northumberland.

Until 1725, this was a chapelry to the vicarage of Chat-

of ton, lenobmudmthepamh;andthmwacon

mbkmnsneauhe village, which turns a. corn-
mill. A school-room has been erected at the expense of

e B ODDINGION. (DY)

(DRY), a parish in the wapentake
of Lovenex, parts of Kesteves, county of L‘&e:om,
8 miles (N.N.W.) from Grantham, containing 227 inha-
bitants. The living is a vicarage united to a mediety
of the rectory of Westhorough, in. the archdeaconry
and diocese of Lincoln, = The church is dedicated to
St. James.

DODDINGTON (GREAT), a parish in the hundred
of HamrorpsuOE, county of NorTHAMPTON, 2§ miles
(8. by w.) from Wellingborough, containing 442 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Northampton, and diocese of Peter-
borough, rated in the king's books at £8. 18. 4,, and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated
to St. Nicholas,

DODDISCOMBSLEIGH, a parish in the hundred of
ExminsTER, county of Dzvow, 6 miles (8.W.) from
Exeter, containing 356 inhabitants. = The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Exeter,
rated in the king's books at £16. 6. 55, The Rev.
George Hole was patron in 1823. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Michael. There was formerly a chapel at a
place called Sheldon, in this parish, Here is a small
endowed charity school.

DODDLESTON, a parish in the lower division. of
the hundred of Broxroxn, county palatine of CuEster,
comprising the townships of Doddleston and Lower
Kinnerton, and containing 351 inhabitants, of which
number, 266 are in the township of Doddleston, 5 miles
(8.w.) from Chester. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, rated in the
king's books at £7, 0. 23., and in the patronage of the
Dean and Chapter of Chester. The church, dedicated
to St, Mary, contains the remains of Thomas Egerton,
Baron Ellesmere, Viscount Brackley, Lord Keeper of
tbe Great Seal to James 1., and ancestor of the Earls of

ater, who occwonnlly resided here ; he died in
in, 1617. A school is supported by charita-
ble ‘contributions. During the siege of Chester, in 1645,
the old mansion-house was fortified and gamsoned by
the parliamentary general, Sir William Brereton, who

bere fixed his head-q

uarters.
DODFORD, a parish in the hundred of mesv

'éjpumqof ‘NorrHAMPTON, 2§miles (ES,E) from Daven-

mmnjn »247 inhabitants. The living is a vicar-
o x , of Northampton, and. diocese
, rated in the king's books at £10.
Andrew, ,Esq, was patron in 1801, The churck,

to St. Mary, has mwmmwxm of
utchxtectum, the font, um qumh
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24 miles (8.E. by E.) from Chipping-Sodbury, contain-
ing 106 inhabitants. The liviug is-a rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the
king's books at £5. 6. 6§. C. Codrington, Esq. was
pstron in 1816.  The church, dedicated to St, Mary, is
a small building, with a low tower. The river Frome
has its source in this parish. Urns, bones, and Roman
coius, have heen discovered in a place called Dodington
Field.

DODINGTON, a township in the parish and bun-
dred of WritcuuRrcn, Bradford (North) division of the
county of Savror, § of & mile (S.) from Whitchurch,
with which the population is returned.

DODINGTON, a parish in the hundred of WiLLiToN
and FReEEMANNERS, county of SomEeRSET, 91 miles (W,
N.w.) from DBridg-water, containing 113 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in
the king's books at £5, 6, 8, The Duke of Buckingham
was patron in 1821,

DODNASH, in the parish of BentrLey, hundred
of Samronrp, county of Surrork, 73 miles (5.W.) from
Ipswich, A priory of Black cunons, dedicated to St.
Mary, was founded here, as it is said, by an ancestor
of the Howard family, to which the patronage belonged
from the time of Edward I. till the dissolution, when
it contained a prior and three religious, whose revenue
was valued at £42. 18, 8. per annuin.

DODWORTH, a township in the parish of SiLk-
sToNE, wapentake of Starncross, West riding of the
county of York, 24 miles (W.8.W.) from Barnesley, con-
taining 1227 inhabitants. The manufacture of linen
is here carried on to a limited extent.

DOGDYKE, a township in the parish of BrLrixg-
nay, first division of the wapentake of LAncoE, parts
of KesTeven, county of LincoLw, 11 miles (E.N.E.)
from Sleaford, containing 231 inhabitants,

DOGMERSFIELD, a parish in the hundred of
Opinam, Basingstoke division of the county of Souvrn-
AMPTON, 2 miles (E. by N.) from Odiham, containing 218
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's
books at £0, 6. 8., and in the patronage of Lady Mild-
may. The church is dedicated to All Saints. Founda-
tions, suppused to be the remains of a palace of the
archbishops of Canterbury, which stood here so early
88 the twelfth century, were discovered a few years
since. The Basingstoke canal passes through the parish,
which contains a lake covering thirty-six acres.

DOGS (ISLE of), or STEPNEY MARSH, in the
parish of StepNeY, Tower division of the hundred of
OesursTong, county of MippLEéEX, 5 miles (E.B.BE.)
from St. Paul's Cathedral, London. The population is
returned with the parish. The isle comprises about eight
hundred and thirty-six acres of ground, and is thought
to have received name from a kennel for the king's
hounds baving been anciently situated wpom it. The
site of a chapel, dedicated to St. Mary, is now oecupied
by & farm-house, sometimes called the el House,
There is & ship-canal across it, from Liméheuse
to Blackwall, to avoid a curve of the Thames be-
tween those two places, At the southsastern part
of jt.Is & ferry over the Thames to GreewwWich; and
newr it the Steam i

: Company have, -
ment : there are eléo wills for exvrmcting gibfrom lin
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seed, and for making oil-cake for feeding caftle ; a'ma-
mufactory for chain cables, and another for smelling-saits,
There is a place of worship for Independerits. a7

DOGSTHORPE, & chapelry in that part of the pa:
rish of St.Joux the Bapmist, PETERBOROUGH, which
iz within the liberty of PrTERBOROUGH, county of
NorTHAMPTON, 14 mile (N.) from Peterborough, con-
taining 379 inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to St,
Botolph.

DOLTON, a parish in the hundred of NorTH Taw:
ToN and WinkLEY, county of DEvow, 6 miles (N. N. E)
from Hatherleigh, containing 748 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, and dio-
cese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £20. 16. 8,
J. Cleveland, Esq. was patron in 1823. The church
is dedicated to St. Edmund. There are two fairs for
cattle, on the Wednesday before March 25th, and
October Ist. There are donations amounting to about
£7. 11. 6. per aunum, for the instruction of children.

DOMINICK (ST.), a parish in the middle division
of the hundred of East, county of Counwarr, 24 miles
(E.S.E) from Callington, containing 690 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeacoury of Cornwall,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£23. 11. 04., and in the patronage of Mrs. Bluett. Wil-
liam Brent, in 1784, gave £5 per annum for teaching
poor children. On the glebe estate are vestiges of a
Roman intrenchment, called Berry, and the remains of
an old monastery at Baber. The navigable river Tamnar
forme the eastern boundary of the parish. At Halton
was born, in 1579, Francis Rous, a distingnished poli-
tician, speaker of the Little Parliament in the time of
Cromwrell, and provost of Eton College.

DONCASTER, a parish PP
comprising the borough and
market town of Doncaster, §&
which has a separate juris- /g
diction, the townships of \
Balby with Hexthorp, and 3
Long Sandal with Wheatley,
in the soke of DoNOASTER,
and the township of Lang-
thwaite with Tilts, in the
northern division of the wa-
pentake of STRAFFORTH and porat
TickriLn, West riding of the county of Yorx, and con-
taining 9117 inhabitants, of which number, 8544 are
the borough of Duncaster, 8 miles (8. by W.) from
York, and 162 (N.N.W.} frem London. Thiz plsece,
the Danum of Antoninus, '# Roman station on the
river Don, was by the Saxons called Dosa Ceaster, from
which its present name is derived. According tb Cami
den, the town was entirely destroyed by lightnimg
the year 758, at which the castle, of which
founder and the time of its foundation mre wnknown; is
supposed to have been burnt. The town is picasantly sive-
ated on the southern bank of the river Dom, snd the
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with'watér by mheans of water-works mear tlie Fridr's
bridge, from a reservoir at the top of the High-street,
under the direction of the corporation, the expense
being defrayed by a rate. An elegant cross, in the
later style of English architecture,stands on an eminence
called Hall-cross hill, and has saperseded a rude and
ancient structure of a similar kind, which was fur-
merly placed in the centre of a road leading into the
town, but removed in order to widen and improve the
carriage-way. An agricultural society, established in
1808, holds an annual meeting in July or August. A
very commodious suite of apartments was erected in
1821, for a public library and news-room, established by
private subscription, to which a collection of old books,
kept for many years in a room over the church porch, has
been recentty-added : this institution is open to the use of
all the inhabitants, though not members of the society.
The races, which for some years have been in-
creasing in splendour and attraction, and are attended
by nearly all the families of rank in the North of
England, are generally held in the third week in
September, and continue five days. About a mile
from the town is the celebrated race-ground, on which
a very elegant and commodious stand has heen Dbuilt
at the expense of the corporation, who also have for
many years given #n annual plate, of the value £50, of
and a subscription of £42 towards the stakes: in addi-
tion to these donations are His Majesty's plate of £ 105,
and a gold cup of £105, given by the stewards. An ele-
gant building of the louic order, called the Betting-
room, was erected in 1826 : it is ninety feet in length,
and twenty-two teet wide, lighted during the day by a
handsome dome, and at night with gas introduced into
three superb chandeliers. The theatre is a handsome
building, also erected at the expense of the corporation,
in 1774 ; the perforsnances commence in the ruce week,
and continme sbout six weeks. Doncaster has but
little trade or manufacture. There are two or three cast-
iron foundries, und 5 sacking and twist manufactory,
but &1l on a very small scale. The river Don is crossed
by two bridges: Friars' bridge was erected by the cor-
poration in 1614, and subsequently widened and hand-
somely ornamented with iron balustrades: the mill
bridge wds rébuilt in 1782. A long causeway has
been comstructed from both the bridges, to obviate
the danger arising to passemgers from the overflow of
the river, which, being navigable to Sheffield, supplies
& ready means of conveyance for srticles of commerce,
which are sent to0 Londsn, Hull, and other places, in
small vessels of from thirty to fifty tons' burden : timber,
deals, grocery, and other goods are returned. The mar-
ket is held on Saturday : fairs are beld, February 2d,
April Sth, August 5th, for horned cattle, horses, sheep,
angd eonrse woolden -cloth, and November 16th, which is
& wtatnite fair for hiring servents. A wool market com-
meénces ‘onthe second -in June, and continues
onery Saturday ventil the 8th of August. The market-
Pliicen: coompy nearly ¢he centre of the town, consisting
of ¢kt for heldimg the corn-market, = spacious ares,
lﬂﬁm ‘is the meunket forymat, or the new sham-
leq, by the-corporation in W66, the roof of which
is Mlated, mmd gupposted en twerty-four columns: an
etagonat b was also erected by them in the same
yoir, Sor s 'sale-of fowls, butter, eges, &c.; and for fish,
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The government of the town, by charter of Richard I,
confirmed by succeeding kings, and modified by
James I1., is vested in a mayor, recorder, twelve alder-
men, twenty-four common council-men, assisted by &
town clerk and other officers. The mayor is chosen
from among the aldermen, who elect to vacancies in their
own body from the members of the common council, in
which vacancies are filled up by the mayor, gldermen,
and the capital and free burgesses: the mayor may ap-
point one of the aldermen who has passed the chair as
his deputy. The recorder, who must be an outer bar-
rister at least, is elected by the mayor, aldermen, and
common council-men, The mayor, and threc senior
aldermen, are justices of the peace withiu the borough
and soke of Doncaster. The freedom is inherited by
birth, or obtained by seven years' apprenticeship within
the horough, or by purchase for £3. 6. 8. The corpo-
ration hold quarterly courts of session, for determining
on offences not capital ; and a court of record, under the
charter of Henry VIIL, for the recovery of debts to any
amount. A court of requests is held under commission-
ers appointed by an act passed in the 4th of George 111,
for the recovery of debts under 40s, within the borough
and soke: the annual session for the wapentake of
Strafforth and Tickhill is also held here, and the
county magistrates hold s meeting every Saturday
for the adjoining district. The mansion-house, which
is an elegant structure, was completed in 1748, and
furnished at an expense of more than £8000: it
was enlarged in 1800, and an attic raised above the
columns to screen the roof. The principal rvom is
decorated with a full length portrait of his late Majesty,
George 1IL, in his coronation robes; also with portraits
of the present Earl Fitzwilliam, and of the Marquis of
Rockingham, in parliamentury robes, both presented to
the corporation by the earl. Here the muniments
of the corporation are preserved, the feasts of the
corporate body held, and concerts and assemblies pe-
riodically take place. This town had a residence espe-
cially appropriated for its chief magistrate before either
London or York. The town-hall, which occupies the
sitc of a church dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene, was
thoroughly repaired and beautified in 1784, and con-
siderably enlarged and improved in 1828, and is now
one of the most convenient court-rooms in the county.
The corporation are about to remove the present gaol,
built in 1778, and to erect a new oneupon the radiating
plan, adapted to receive four classes of prisoners, with
distinct airing-courts to each, the gaoler's house to
occupy the centre, and to command an entire inspection
of the prisoners.

The living is a vicarage, in the* archdeaconry and
diocese of York, rated in the king's books at £32.19.9.,
and in the patronage of the Archbishop of York; itis
under lay impropriation to Miss Sharp, alineal descend-
antof the archbishop of that name, and from this lady
the vicar receives an annual stipend of £60. The church,
dedicated to St. George, is a spacious cruciform struc-
tuare, principafly in the later style of Emglish architec-
ture, with a tower, of which the details are exquisitely
rich. #ecording to Leland, it was partially built with ma-
terigls from the ruins of the-old castle: the exact period
of #ts original erection is uncertain, but a stone, disco-
vered & oW -years since, during ‘some repairs, with the
date of 1071 upon it, trengthens the opinion that part



DON

of it was erected about the time of the Conquest : it has,
however, undergone so many alterations that no purt of
the original structure now remains, though there are
some traces of an earlier date. The building consists of
a nave, nisles, and a transept, with & choir and side
chapels, or chantries, extending north and south to the
extremity of the transept. The roof of the nave is sus-
tained by twelve massive octangular pillars, with plain
capitals, whence spring ten obtusely pointed arches. The
tower is supported by four ponderous octagonal columns,
with richly decorated capitals, of a later date than the
rest of the fabric; and from these rise four finely point-
ed arches, on each side of which and in the belfry are
monograms, armorial ensigns, &c., commemorative of
various benefactors. The height of the church is seventy-
cight feet, hreadth sixty-cight fect, and length one hun-
dred and fifty-four feet; the height of the tower is one
hundred and forty-one feet. In the interior is an an-
cient font, though probably not of such remote antiquity
as the date 1061 upon it implies : a magnificent east win-
dow has been recently erected, containing figures of the
Apostles and the Prophets, the gift of Mrs. Baker. Among
the various monuments is that of Robin of Doncaster,
placed just hehind the reading-desk, and bearing 2 cu-
rious inscription with the dite 1579 ; the tomb is an
altar of free-stone near the north-west supporter of the
tower ; also the tomb of Ellis, founder of the hospital,
and five times mayor of Doncaster. A new church,
in the luter ‘style of English architecture, called
Christ’s church, has lately been erected, from a fund
-of £18,000, granted by John Jarratt, Esq., a native of
Doncaster, and formerly an iron-master at Bowling,
near Bradford : it consists of a nave and side nisles, is
ninety-five feet long and fifty-two fect wide, separated
by slender-shafted pillars, and the spire, which is one
hundred and sixty feet in height, is remarkable for its
lightness and elegance. There are places of worship for
the Society of Friends, Independents, Presbyterians, and
Wesleyan Methoedists,

The grammar school, kept on the ground-floor of the
town-hall, was founded for the sons of freemen, by
.the corporation, who appoint the master, and allow
him a salary of £80 per annum : there is a scholar-
ship of £10 per annum in Jesus College, Cambrid
belonging to this and the school at Arksey. A
tional school has been lately established, in
two hundred and twelve boys, and one hund:
eight girls are taught reading, writing, and aritbmetic ;
the girls being likewise instructed in needle-work : it is
supported by voluntary contributions, mcl\ﬂn' an
annual gift of £20 by the corporation. Sundagpschools
were introduced ‘here at their first institution, St
Thomas® Hospital was erected in 1588, By Thoth
.whose tomb js in the church, for the" sgif
poor and decayed housckeepers ; the fou
with an estate then let for £10 per &
from the increased value of land, ne
£400 per annum, enabling the tf
mayor and vicar, with others, to give _
poor persons not resident, but w e admitted as
vacancies arige. A dispensary ' was lished' im 1792,
and is supported by voluntary contribwtions, and an
annual gift of £105 from the co on, &t whose
-eXpense the building was ereced. e poor-house, situ-
ated in St. Sepulchire's gate, was erected in 1719 hy
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subscriptions of the more wealthy inhabitants; the annual
rent of fifty-nine acres and sixteen of land, in
a place called the Intacks, with a rate on the tnhabitunta
under the management of a select vestry, is paid to the
master for the maintenance of the poor. Edward Fen-
wick, of London, bequeathed £100 for the benefit of
the poor of Doncaster, at the disposal of the mayor and
corporation; Thomas Martin gave £20, charged on
lands at Stainforth and Tudwath, to apprentice three,
four, or five poor boys, natives of, ‘and resident in,
Doncaster ; Mr. Quinston Kay, of Ludgate-hill, London,
upholstcrcr, in 1804, gave to the corporation £ 2000
three per cent, Bank Annuities, and £ 6000 four per cent.
Bank Annuities, producing £300 per annum, in trust,
to apply the dividends as follows; viz,, £2. 2. to the
vicar, or curate, for a sermon on the first Sunday in
September, and £5 to be distributed on that day in
bread to the poor ; £60 to apprentice every year six poor
children, of cither sex, residing in the township, at the
are of fourteen, to some useful mechanical husiness;
£3. 3. anmually to thc dispensary ; £10 to the town
clerk, for his trouble in making payments, and kecping
accounts; the residue of the dividends to be paid in sums
of £1. 1. per month to poor reduced persons, of either
sex, being resident, and not less than fifty years of age.
John Jarratt, Esq., of Doncaster, isvested £2200 with
the corporation, for an annuity of £110 per annum, to
be divided amongst =ix reduced housekeepers.

The ancient Roman road, Watling-street, on which
the town stands, may be traced over Scawsby Lees,
near Adwick le Street, and in many other places north-
ward, towards Legiolinm, now Castleford, near the
confluence of the rivers Aire and Calder ; and some years
since, a Roman votive altar was dug up in the cellar of
a house belonging to John Jarratt, Esq., near S
pulchre’s gate.  Among the religious establis
anciently existing here, were the hospitals of bt.' i
and St, Nicholas, founded for lepers in the '
Henry IIL. ; a honse of Grey friars, founded in
and & house of Black friars, of which the foun i
the date are unknown. John Lacy, an actor and:
 in the time of Charles II., was born ¢
eaton, chaplain to Archbishop Heni'ng
g academiecs who assisted the Yorkes in fhe
n of the Athenian Letters; and Dr. Edward
shed the sttorv of Doncas-

gives #he title of ear to

prodn
Miller, who in 1804 p

the Duke of Buccleuch®":"

DONHEAD (ST. ANDREW), a parish in the htm-
dred of DunworTH, county of Wrrts, 5§ milee (8.byE.)
from Hindon, uontaining 753 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salisbury,
rated in the king's books at £18. 6. 8. - T. Warburton,
Eeq. was patron in 1820. The church has lutely vo-
ceived an addition of one hundred and four free sit
the Incorporated Society for the enlargement of churches
and chapels having gimmted £180 toward- hlg thc
expense, Onthe: gn gide of the
summit of Tﬂt p NN, is an old anﬂl-ma'k ulhd
Cutledlﬁ i B area of fifteen acres and & half,

RAD (BT MARY), o parish in the hundired of
Dunworma;eounty of WiLrs, 54 miles (8,) from Hindon,
containing, with the chapelry of Chariton, and t.h ty-
things of Dognell and Haystone, 1364 The
living is o rectaey, i the archm-'ddim#
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Salishury, rated in the king's books at £30. 14. 4},
and in the patronage of the Warden and Fellows of
New College, Oxford.

DONINGTON, a market town and parish in the
wapentake of Kirrton, purts of HoLnanp, county of
LincoLn, 32 miles (8. E. by 8.) from Lincoln, and_108
(N.) from London, containing 1638 inhabitants, It is
situated in the fen district, through which a wide ram-
part of earth has been made, forming a convenient road
to Sempringham. Hemp is very extensively cultivated
in the neighbourhood, for the manufacture of thread
and cloth, and for the seed. Canals, called Blacksluice
and Hammond-beck, pass through the parish; and
there is a port for barges, by which goods are conveyed
hetween Boston and the Washes. A murket is beld on
Saturday ; and fairs, May 16th and October 26th, for
horses, cattle, flax, and hemp. The living is a vicarage,
in the archdeacomry aud diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £138. 17. 34., and in the patronage of
the Rev. Johm Wilson. The church is dedicated to St.
Maury and the Holy Rood. There are places of worship
for Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists,  ere is a large
endowed school, founded by Lord Cowley; and there
arc also other charitics,

DONINGTON, a parish in the Shiffnall division
of the hundred of BrimsTrEE, county of Sivor, 5%
miles (E.8.E.) from Shifinall, containing 330 inhabitants.
The hving is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop,
and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the
king's books ut £13. 6. 8. The Murquis of Stafford
was patron in 1773. The church is supposed to have
been built early in the fourteenth century, and the ad-
ditions aud alterations, though made at intervals, har-
monize with the more ancient parts of the structure:
e foot of the rocky eminence upon which it stands
ring, formerly called St. Cutheard's, or St. Cuth-
well. A free grammar school was founded by
Alcocke, in 1627, at Donnington, then described
in the parish of Wcoxeter; to the original en-
t other donations were made in 1658 : it is open
boys of Wroxeter and Uppington, but at present
only are upon the foundation: two bhiti
a¢'Obrist. Church Cellege, Oxford, are appro
this school, of which the late Dr. Douglas,
Salisbury, was in early life the master, whe :
Baxter, the non-conformist dii_r_i' and Dr. Allertree, Pro-

vost of Eton, recsived the e
cation. Adjoining the parish’ extra-parochial place,
Boscohel and White Ladies; it is regarded as within the
cure of souls of the minister, and pays six shillings and
eightpence in liea of tithes and offerings: though for-
merly populous, there is now only the house celebrated
a8 having been the hiding-place of Charles IL, within a
few bundeed yards of which stood the oak, whose
branches comcealed the king, September 6th, 1653 ; no
vestiges pf,.this tree remain, but ghere is another close
to its site, produced from one of jg4 acorns, and distin-
gwished by the title of The the brick wall

tor the protection of which ten years ago
by a handsome and lofty iron _ .sunrounds
it.. The priory of white or Cistercian muns, dedicated

o St. Leonard, is supposed to have been founded either
in the relgn of Richard 1., or in-that of John ; at the dis-
sedution it . aix -religious, and was valued
i £31. 1 4y ihe nawg, choir, and gransepts of the
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chapel still remain, with a handsome Saxon arch over
one of the doors ; the interior is used as a burial-place
by the Roman Catholic families in the neighbourhood.

DONINGTON upon BAIN, a parish in the north-
ern division of the wapentake of GARTREE, parts of
Linpsey, county of LixcorN, 6} miles (8.W. by W.)
frm_n Louth, containing 969 inhabitants, The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's hooks at £15. 12. 2.
Lord Monson was patron in 1797. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Andrew.

~ DONINGTON (CASTLE), a parish in the western
division of the hundred of Goscorr, county of Lei-
CESTER, 94 miles (N.E.) from Ashby de la Zouch, con-
taining 2560 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicurage, in the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £8. 2. 3.,
endowed with £ 200 private benefaction, und £200 royal
boanty, and in the patronage of the Marquis of IHas-
tings. The church is dedicated to St. Edward. There
is a place of worship for Independents. The parish
is bounded on the north-west by the river Trent.
Fairs are held, March 18th, on Whit-Thursday, and
September 29th.  On cuminence are the remains of
an old castle from \l‘hi:# the parish derives its distin-
guishing prefix; and there are vestiges of an hospital,
dedicated to St, John the Evangelist, supposed to have
been founded by John Lacy, constable of Chester in the
time of Henry 1L, for a master and thirteen brethren
and sisters, who received a portion of the tithes of the
parish, and whose revenue at the dissolution was va-
lued at only £3.13. 4. per annum,  Castle-Donington is
in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and
within the jurisdiction of & court of pleas held at Tut-
bury every third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts
under 40s.

DONISTHORPE, a hamlet partly in the parish of
NeTuer Sean, western division of the hundred of Gos-
COTE, county of LeicesTer, and partly in the parish of
CuurcH-GresLey, hundred of Repron and GresLey,
county of Dersy, 3% miles (S.W.) from Ashby de la
Zouch, containing, with the hamlet of Oakthorpe, 732
inhabitunts, Donisthorpe is in the honour of Tutbury,

chy of Lancaster, und within the jurisdiction of a
et of pleas held at Tutbury cvery third Tuesday, for

very of debts under 40s.

JEPNNINGTON, a tything in the parish of Snaw,
hundred of Faircross, county of Berks, 1 mile (N,)
from Speenhamland. The population is returned with
the h. Donnington castle, built by Sir Richard
de A 7, who was guardian to Richard II. in his
minority,, stood upon a declivity, at the foot of which
runs the sjver Kennet : it was garrisoned for Charles 1.,
and withstéesl two sieges during the civil war, in the
first of whicj s of its towers were demolished, and
in 1044 [t w gost battered down by Colonel Dalbier,
from whom a the vicinity, in which he planted his
cannon, is still ed : the only remains of this once im-
preguable fo sconsist of a gateway flanked by two
towers, a great pijkion of the ruins having been removed
and appropriated for erection of a house close by.
A friary of the prder of the Holy Trinity was also founded
by Sir Richard de Abberbury, the revenue of which, at
the dissolution, was valued at £20. 16. 6. per annum.
An hospital, called God’s House, is supposed to have




